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201-203 Cach Mang Thang Tam Street, Dist. 3, HCMC Indevendence — Freedom — Happiness
[T] 028 3929 6699 - [F] 028 3929 6688 P pp

[Hotline] 1900 6679 - [W] www.namabank.com.vn
S6: 443 /2025/CBTT-NHNA TP.HCM, ngay 0b thdng 05 ndm 2025

No.: 25 /2025/CBTT-NHNA HCMC, date 06 month 05 year 2025

CONG BO THONG TIN PINH KY
PERIODIC INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

Kinh gii/7o: - ﬁy ban Chirng khoan Nha nwdc/State Securities Commission of Vietnam
- Sé giao dich Chirng khoan Viét Nam/Vietnam Exchange
- Sé giao dich Chirng khoan TP. H6 Chi Minh/Hochiminh Stock Exchange

1. Tén tb chirc phat hanh/Name of organization: Ngan hang Thuwong mai ¢6 phin Nam A/
Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank.
- Ma chirng khoan/Stock code: NAB.

-  bia chi/dddress: 201-203 Cach Mang Théng Téam, Phuong 4, Quéan 3, TP. H6 Chi Minl/
201-203 Cach Mang Thang Tam Street, Ward 4, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City.

- Email: namabank@namabank.com.vn

w9

Noi dung thong tin céng bd/Contents of disclosure:

Ngay 06 / 0% /2025, Ngan hang TMCP Nam A thuc hién cong b théng tin Thong béo
moi hop Pai hdi ddng c6 dong thudng nién nam 2025 clia Ngan hang TMCP Nam A. Dé thuc hién
cong bd thong tin theo dung quy dinh, Ngin hang TMCP Nam A kinh giri dén Uy ban
Chung khoan Nha nuéc, S& giao dich Chimg khoan Viét Nam va S& giao dich Ching khoan
TP. H5 Chi Minh céc van ban sau: Thong bao s6 22J /2025/TMQT-NHNA v/v théng bao
m&i hop Pai hoi ddng c6 dong thwong nién nim 2025, dinh kém dw thao tai liéu hop.

On March 6‘6%025, Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank discloses information about the 2025 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders of Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank. To disclose the information in
accordance with the regulations, Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank respectfully sends to the State
Securities Commission of Vietnam, the Vietham Exchange and the Hochiminh Stock Exchange the

documents. Notice No.23/2025/TMQT-NHNA about the invitation to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of

Shareholders and the meeting’s documents.



3. Thong tin nay da duoc cong b6 trén trang thong tin dién tr cia Ngan hang TMCP Nam A:

https://www.namabank.com.vn/

This information was published on the company’s website as in the link: https.//www.namabank.com.vn.

Chiing toi cam két céc thong tin cong bé trén day 12 ding sy that va hoan toan chiu trach

nhiém trudc phép luét vé nodi dung céc thong tin da cong bd.

We hereby certify that the information provided is true and correct and we bear the full responsibility

to the law.
NGAN HANG TMCP NAM A/NAM 4 BANK
NGUOI PUGC UY QUYEN CBTT/(
% Person authorized to disclose information
Noi nhin/To: PHO CHU TICH HPQT/

- Nhu Kinh giri/As the Greetings part;
- Luuw/Archived: VPHPQT/Office of BOD.

' i Tuyét Nga
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No.: 2.22./2025/TMQT-NHNA Ho Chi Minh City, March Oéﬁfx, 2025

INVITATION NOTICE
THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

To: SHAREHOLDERS OF NAM A COMMERCIAL JOINT STOCK BANK

The Board of Directors of Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank (Nam A Bank) is
pleased to invite the esteemed Shareholders to attend the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders with the following information:

1. Dateand  :08:30 a.m, Friday March 28™, 2025.
time

2. Venue : Dalat Palace Heritage, 02 Tran Phu, Da Lat City, Lam Dong Province.

o

Participants : Shareholders of Nam A Bank who are determined according to the list
closed on February 24™, 2025.

Content to note:

- Shareholders are kindly requested to present the following documents upon participating
in the meeting: (i) Original Invitation Notice with the company seal of Nam A Bank,
(ii) Copy of ID card/Passport duly authenticated for individual Shareholders; or Copy of
Business Registration Certificate (BRC) and Legal Representative’s ID card/Passport duly

authenticated for institutional Shareholders.

- Shareholders can authorize Third Parties to attend the meeting according to Power of
Attorney under the form of Nam A Bank or in accordance with current law. In this case,

the Authorized Parties is kindly requested to present:

+ For individual Authorized Parties: (i) Original Invitation Notice with the company seal
of Nam A Bank, (ii) Original Power of Attorney, (iii) Copy of ID card/Passport duly
authenticated of the Authorized Party in case of authorized by individual Shareholder;
or Copy of Shareholder’s BRC duly authenticated and Copy of ID card/Passport duly
authenticated of the Authorized Party in case of authorized by institutional
Shareholder.



+ For institutional Authorized Parties: (i) Original Invitation Notice with the company
seal of Nam A Bank, (ii) Original Power of Attorney, (iii) Copy of BRC duly
authenticated and Copy of Legal Representative’s ID Card/Passport duly authenticated
of the Authorized Party in case of authorized by individual Shareholder; or Copy of
Shareholder’s BRC duly authenticated, Copy of BRC and Copy of Legal
Representative’s ID Card/Passport duly authenticated of the Authorized Party in case
of authorized by institutional Shareholder.

- For the purpose of this meeting to be conducted in a dignified, thoughtful manner,
Shareholders or Authorized Parties are requested to confirm the attendance at the meeting
to the Office of the Board of Directors of Nam A Bank before 05:00 p.m on March 26",

2025 with the following contact information:

OFFICE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Address : 201-203 Cach Mang Thang Tam, Ward 4, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City.
Tel : (84-28) 39 296 699 (Ext: 80510 — 80524 — 80530).

Email : quanhecodong@namabank.com.vn

Sincerely./.

FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS

e
Recipients:
- As above;

- Archived: Office of BOD.

AN

Irs. Vo Thi Tuyet Nga

Notes:

- Shareholders please refer to the Agenda and relevant documents of the General Meeting of Shareholders
posted on the section “Investors/General Meeting of Shareholders/2025” at the website of Nam A Bank:
www.namabank.com.vn;

- Shareholders are kindly requested to pay all accommodation and travel expenses themselves when attending
the meeting.
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Ho Chi Minh City, March 28", 2025

NAM A BANK
THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
(March 28™, 2025)

MEETING AGENDA

No. CONTENTS

I. | FORMALITY OF THE AGM:

1. | Declare the reason for convening the AGM and introduce the participants.

Introduce the Presiding committee, Secretariat Board and Shareholders’ eligibility
verification committee.

3. | Announce the verification result of shareholders’ eligibility.

4. | Elect the Vote Counting Committee.

5. | Declare the opening of the AGM and approve the AGM’s agenda.

Il. | CONTENT AT THE AGM (Presentation of Reports and Proposals):

Board of Directors’ Report on bank operation management results in 2024 and management
orientation for 2025.

2. | Report on Business Performance in 2024 and Business Plan for 2025.

Report on the activities of the Board of Supervisors and the results of financial statement
review for 2024.

4. | Independently audited Consolidated financial statements for 2024.

5. | The 2024 Profit distribution and distribution of shares from the equity capital source plan.

6. | Proposal on the approval of the independent auditing firms for the year 2026.

Proposal on the operating budget for the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors
for the fiscal year 2025.

8. | Proposal on the increase of charter capital in 2025.




No. CONTENTS
9. | Proposal on the approval of the plan for private placement of convertible bonds.
10. Proposal on the listing of bonds issued to the public by Nam A Commercial Joint Stock
Bank.
11. | Proposal on capital contribution and share acquisition.
12. | Proposal on the policy to participate in restructuring People’s Credit Funds.
13. | Proposal on the policy to expand business network into international markets.
14, Report on the approval of remedial plan in case of early intervention at Nam A Commercial
Joint Stock Bank.
I11. | DISCUSSION AND VOTING:
1 Di.scPssion and comment on the reports at the AGM and direct response to the shareholders’
opinions.
2. | Announcement of election results of Vote Counting Committee.
3. | Approval of the voting procedures by the Vote Counting Committee.
4. | Voting on the issues within the jurisdiction of the AGM.
(Break time)
IV. | CLOSING OF THE AGM:
1 The speech of Manage Board’s Representative of the State Bank of Vietnam and the
reception of guidance from the Manage Board of the State Bank of Vietnam (if any).
2. | Announcement of shareholders’ eligibility verification results (second time).
3. | Announcement of the voting results regarding matters within the authority of the AGM.
4. | Approval of the Minutes of Meeting of the 2025 AGM.
5. | Closing of the AGM.




NAM A BANK SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

Independence — Freedom — Happiness
NAM A BANK — HEAD OFFICE

201-203 Cach Mang Thang Tam, Dist. 3, HCMC
[T] 028 3929 6699 - [F] 028 3929 6688 DRAFT
[Hotline] 1900 6679 - [W] www.namabank.com.vn

BALLOT
NO. 01 NAM A COMMERCIAL JOINT STOCK BANK

THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
(March 28™, 2025)

BALLOT
VOTING ON THE VOTE COUNTING COMMITTEE

Shareholder’s Mr/Mrs: (Shareholder’s name) NO.. o,
name
Number of shares | .............cooiiini. shares ID Card/Passport/Business
owned Registration Certificate No.:
Authorized Mr/Mrs: (Authorized Party’s name) ID Card/Passport/Business
Party’s name Registration Certificate No.:
Number of shares | ............ccoooeviiinnini. shares
owned

CONTENT Agree | Disagree | Abstain
The Vote Counting Committee, included:
L
, [] [] []
P

\Voting instructions:

- Select the voting option: check (x or v') in the respective voting boxes (“Agree” or
“Disagree” or “Abstain”). For example: Xl or M

- In case of cancelling the selected option: circle the selected box to cancel and select a new box.

For example:or@

- In case of re-selecting a cancelled option: fill in the cancelled box to re-select. For example:.

User: Namabank01_Printed date: ..../..../2025
Page 1/1



NAM A BANK

NAM A BANK — HEAD OFFICE

201-203 Cach Mang Thang Tam, Dist. 3, HCMC
[T] 028 3929 6699 - [F] 028 3929 6688
[Hotline] 1900 6679 - [W] www.namabank.com.vn

BALLOT

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence — Freedom — Happiness

DRAFT

NO. 02 NAM A COMMERCIAL JOINT STOCK BANK

THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

(March 28™, 2025)

BALLOT

VOTING ON THE CONTENT OF THE MEETING

Party’s name

Shareholder’s Mr/Mrs: (Shareholder’s name) NO.: tieeernrennrenrennns

name

Number of shares | ..............coooiiintl. shares ID Card/Passport/Business
owned Registration Certificate No.:
Authorized Mr/Mrs: (Authorized Party’s name) ID Card/Passport/Business

Registration Certificate No.:

Number of shares | .....ccoeeeeeeieiiiiniiii... shares
owned

Seq. CONTENT

Agree

Disagree

Abstain

Approve the Board of Directors’ Report on bank operation management
results in 2024 and management orientation for 2025. The Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders (AGM) authorize the Board of Directors: (i)
Organize the implementation (including reviewing and adjusting the
business plan in accordance with the actual situation); (ii) Approving the
1 business plan in each specific case; (iii) Deciding on business cooperation
with domestic and international partners and financial institutions; (iv)
Proactively approve and implement the business plan of the next fiscal year
based on the CEQO's proposal until officially approved by the Annual General
Meeting; (v) Carry out necessary related tasks in compliance with legal
regulations and the Charter of Nam A Bank.

[]

[]

[]

Approve the Report on Business Performance in 2024 and Business Plan for

equity capital source plan.

2005, [] [] []
3 Approve the Report on the activities of the Board of Supervisors and the D D D

results of Financial Statement review for 2024.

Approve the Independently audited Consolidated Financial Statements for
4 | Homn [] [] []
5 Approve the 2024 Profit distribution and distribution of shares from the |:| |:| D

User: Namabank01_Printed date: ..../..../2025

Page 1/1




Seq. CONTENT Agree | Disagree | Abstain

Approve the Proposal on the independent auditing firms for the year 2026. The
AGM authorize the BOD to decide on the selection of an independent auditing l:l
company to review the Interim Financial Statements, audit the Financial D
Statements, audit the internal control system operations for the content of the
internal assessment of capital adequacy and for the preparation and presentation
of financial statements at Nam A Bank in 2026 and report to the next AGM.

Approve the Proposal on the operating budget for the Board of Directors and D D D
the Board of Supervisors for the fiscal year 2025.

Approve the Proposal on the increase of charter capital in 2025. The AGM
authorize the BOD to organize the implementation of the charter capital increase
contents according to the 2025 Charter Capital Increase Plan attached to the D D D
Proposal in accordance with legal regulations; at the same time, carry out
procedures to submit to the competent State Agencies for approval of the charter
capital increase according to regulations and report the results at the next AGM.

Approve the Proposal on the approval of the Plan for private placement of
convertible bonds. The AGM authorize the BOD to decide on all matters
related to the convertible bond placement plan and the plan for issuing
9 | shares to convert the bonds, in accordance with legal regulations; at the same D D |:|
time, carry out procedures to submit to the competent State Agencies for
approval of the convertible bond placement plan according to regulations
and report the results at the next AGM.

Approve the Proposal on the listing of bonds issued to the public by Nam A
Bank. The AGM authorize the BOD to direct, execute and make necessary D D D
decisions related to the implementation of the bond listing ensuring
compliance with legal regulations and report the results at the next AGM.

10

Approve the Proposal on capital contribution and share acquisition. The
AGM authorize the BOD to decide the form, method, sequence, percentage
11 | of capital contribution, share acquisition; establishment, acquisition of D D |:|
subsidiaries or affiliated companies in accordance with current legal
regulations and report the results at the next AGM.

Approve the Proposal on the policy to participate in restructuring People’s
Credit Funds. The AGM authorize the BOD to select and decide on the D D D
option to participate under the review and approval of the State Bank of
Vietnam and report the results at the next AGM.

12

Approve the Proposal on the policy to expand business network into
international markets. The AGM authorize the BOD to determine the timing,
13 | form, location and scope of operations, as well as to undertake necessary legal |:| |:| |:|
procedures in accordance with the law to expand the business network in line
with the direction approved by the AGM and report the results at the next AGM.

Approve the Proposal on the approval of remedial plan in case of early
intervention at Nam A Bank. The AGM authorize the BOD to: (i) Directing
the research, development and approval of the "Remedial plan in case of
14 | early intervention at Nam A Bank"; (ii) Proactively adjust, change the D D |:|
contents related to the Remedial Plan depending on the objective reality or at
the request of the competent State Agencies and report the results at the next
AGM.

\Voting instructions:

- Select the voting option: check (x or v") in the respective voting boxes (“Agree” or
“Disagree” or “Abstain”). For example: Xl or ¥

- In case of cancelling the selected option: circle the selected box to cancel and select a new box.
For example:or@

- In case of re-selecting a cancelled option: fill in the cancelled box to re-select. For example: .

User: Namabank01_Printed date: ..../..../2025
Page 1/1




NAM A BANK SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
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Ho Chi Minh City, March 28", 2025

RESOLUTION

THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
NAM A COMMERCIAL JOINT STOCK BANK

Pursuant to the Law on Credit Institutions No. 32/2024/QH15 dated January 18th, 2024
and the implementing, amending and supplementing documents;

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17th, 2020 and the
implementing, amending and supplementing documents;

Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26th, 2019 and the
implementing, amending and supplementing documents;

Pursuant fo the Charter of Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank;
Pursuant to the Minutes of Meeting of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
dated March 28", 2025 of Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank.

HEREBY RESOLVES:

Article 1. Approve the Board of Directors’ Report on bank operation management results in
2024 and management orientation for 2025 (details according to the Report No.
...../2025/BCQT-NHNA dated March ..., 2025).

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (AGM) authorize the Board of
Directors: (i) Organize the implementation (including reviewing and adjusting the
business plan in accordance with the actual situation); (ii) Approving the business
plan in each specific case; (iii) Deciding on business cooperation with domestic and
international partners and financial institutions; (iv) Proactively approve and
implement the business plan of the next fiscal year based on the CEQO's proposal
until officially approved by the Annual General Meeting; (v) Carry out necessary
related tasks in compliance with legal regulations and the Charter of Nam A Bank.

+ The number of votes of approval of the ratio: ...... %.

Article 2. Approve the Report on Business Performance in 2024 and Business Plan for 2025
(details according to the Report No. ...../2025/BC-NHNA-03 March ..., 2025).

+ The number of votes of approval of the ratio: ...... %.



Article 3. Approve the Report on the activities of the Board of Supervisors and the results of

Article 4.

Article 5.

Article 6.

Article 7.

Article 8.

Financial Statement review for 2024 (details according to the Report No. ...../2025/
BCBKS-NHNA March ..., 2025).

+ The number of votes of approval of the ratio: ...... %.

Approve the Independently audited Consolidated Financial Statements for 2024
(details according to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements for 2024 No.
60758135/68418664-HN dated February 28", 2025).

+ The number of votes of approval of the ratio: ...... %.

Approve the 2024 Profit distribution and distribution of shares from the equity
capital source plan (details according to the Plan No. ..... /2025/PAQT-NHN dated
March ..., 2025).

+ The number of votes of approval of the ratio: ...... %.

Approve the Proposal on the independent auditing firms for the year 2026 (details
according to the Proposal No. ...../2025/TTQT-NHNA dated March ..., 2025).

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders authorize the Board of Directors to
organize the implementation and report the results at the next AGM.

+ The number of votes of approval of the ratio: ...... %.

Approve the Proposal on the operating budget for the Board of Directors and the
Board of Supervisors for the fiscal year 2025 (details according to the Proposal No.
...../2025/TTQT-NHNA dated March ....., 2025).

+ The number of votes of approval of the ratio: ...... %.

Approve the Proposal on the increase of charter capital in 2025 (details according to
the Proposal No. ...../2025/TTQT-NHNA dated March ....., 2025).

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders authorize the Board of Directors to
organize the implementation of the charter capital increase contents according to the
2025 Charter Capital Increase Plan attached to the Proposal and proactively adjust
and change related contents in accordance with legal regulations; at the same time,
carry out procedures to submit to the competent State Agencies for approval of
the charter capital increase according to regulations and report the results at the
next AGM.

+ The number of votes of approval of the ratio: ...... %.

Article 9. Approve the Proposal on the approval of the Plan for private placement of

convertible bonds (details according to the Proposal No. ..... /2025/TTQT-NHNA
dated March ....., 2025).



The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders authorize the Board of Directors to
decide on all matters related to the convertible bond placement plan and the plan for
issuing shares to convert the bonds, in accordance with legal regulations; at the same
time, carry out procedures to submit to the competent State Agencies for approval of
the convertible bond placement plan according to regulations and report the results
at the next AGM.

+ The number of votes of approval of the ratio: ...... %.

Article 10. Approve the Proposal on the listing of bonds issued to the public by Nam A
Commercial Joint Stock Bank (details according to the Proposal No. ...../2025/TTQT-
NHNA dated March ....., 2025).

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders authorize the Board of Directors to direct,
execute and make necessary decisions related to the implementation of the bond listing
ensuring compliance with legal regulations and report the results at the next AGM.

+ The number of votes of approval of the ratio: ...... %.

Article 11. Approve the Proposal on capital contribution and share acquisition (details according to
the Proposal No. ...../2025/TTQT-NHNA dated March ....., 2025).

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders authorize the Board of Directors to
decide the form, method, sequence, percentage of capital contribution, share
acquisition; establishment, acquisition of subsidiaries or affiliated companies in
accordance with current legal regulations and report the results at the next AGM.

+ The number of votes of approval of the ratio: ...... %.

Avrticle 12. Approve the Proposal on the policy to participate in restructuring People’s Credit Funds
(details according to the Proposal No. ...../2025/TTQT-NHNA dated March ....., 2025).

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders authorize the Board of Directors to
select and decide on the option to participate under the review and approval of the
State Bank of Vietnam and report the results at the next AGM.

+ The number of votes of approval of the ratio: ...... %.

Article 13. Approve the Proposal on the policy to expand business network into international
markets (details according to the Proposal No. ...../2025/TTQT-NHNA dated March
ceeey 2025).

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders authorize the Board of Directors to
determine the timing, form, location and scope of operations, as well as to undertake
necessary legal procedures in accordance with the law to expand the business network
in line with the direction approved by the AGM and report the results at the next AGM.

+ The number of votes of approval of the ratio: ...... %.

3



Article 14. Approve the Proposal on the approval of remedial plan in case of early intervention at
Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank (details according to the Proposal No.
...../2025/TTQT-NHNA dated March ....., 2025).

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders authorize the Board of Directors to: (i)
Directing the research, development and approval of the "Remedial plan in case of
early intervention at Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank™; (ii) Proactively adjust,
change the contents related to the Remedial Plan depending on the objective reality
or at the request of the competent State Agencies and report the results at the next
AGM.

+ The number of votes of approval of the ratio: ...... %.

This Resolution was approved by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
of Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank at the meeting on March 28%, 2025.

Members of the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors and Board of Management
are responsible for implementing this Resolution and organizing its implementation according
to their authorities and duties in accordance with the provisions of law and the Charter of
Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank.

FOR THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

OF SHAREHOLDERS
'_?‘f:'é’l'\sl'_“s: CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING
- SBV, SSC:
- BOD;
- BOS;
- BOM;
- Archived: Office of the BOD.

Tran Ngo Phuc Vu
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No. : .../2025/BCQT-NHNA Ho Chi Minh City, March ... 2025

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' REPORT
ON BANK OPERATION MANAGEMENT RESULTS IN 2024
AND MANAGEMENT ORIENTATION FOR 2025

To: THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

The global economy in 2024 has had positive transformations and gradually regained
its recovery momentum. However, the growth rate remained slow due to the impact of
prolonged geopolitical tensions. In this context, despite facing numerous challenges and
fluctuations, with the flexible and decisive policy administration of the Government,
Vietnam still achieved the growth target set by the National Assembly and continued to be a
bright economic spot in the region and globally.

Facing a volatile business environment, the Board of Directors (BOD) has always
promptly grasped market developments, proactively adjusted business strategies, and
regulated growth rates to ensure safety, sustainability, and efficiency in all business
activities of Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank (Nam A Bank). On that basis, the
BOD respectfully reports to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (AGM)
the following contents:

I. ASSESSMENT OF BANK OPERATION MANAGEMENT RESULTS IN 2024:
1. Results of implementing the Resolutions of the 2024 AGM:

1.1. Regarding business performance results:

—  Total assets reached 245,129 billion dong, achieving 106% of the 2024 plan.

—  Mobilizing capital from customers and issuance of valuable papers reached 178,341
billion dong, achieving 100% of the 2024 plan.

—  OQutstanding credit balance reached 167,738 billion dong, achieving 105% of the
2024 plan.

—  Consolidated profit before tax reached 4,545 billion dong, achieving 114% of the 2024 plan.
—  Successfully achieved the credit quality control target set for 2024.
1.2. Regarding the increase of charter capital:

—  Implementing the Resolution of the 2024 AGM, Nam A Bank had completed the
increase of charter capital from 10,580,416,150,000 dong (Ten trillion, five hundred
eighty billion, four hundred sixteen million, one hundred fifty thousand dong) to
13,725,505,530,000 dong (Thirteen trillion, seven hundred twenty-five billion, five
hundred five million, five hundred thirty thousand dong) through:



1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

+ Issuing 264,508,938 shares to increase share capital from owner's equity,
corresponding to an increase in charter capital of 2,645,089,380,000 dong (Two
trillion, six hundred forty-five billion, eighty nine million, three hundred eighty
thousand dong). Nam A Bank had received Official Dispatch No. 4632/UBCK-
QLCB dated July 25", 2024 from the State Securities Commission regarding the
report on the results of the shares issuance to increase share capital from owner's
equity; and

+ Issuing 50,000,000 shares under the employee stock option program,
corresponding to an increase in charter capital of 500,000,000,000 dong (five
hundred billion dong). Nam A Bank had received Official Dispatch No.
7015/UBCK-QLCB dated October 17", 2024 from the State Securities
Commission regarding the report on the results of the shares issuance under the
employee stock option program.

Currently, Nam A Bank is in the process of carrying out procedures to amend the
charter capital limit in the Establishment and Operation License with the State Bank of
Vietnam (SBV) in accordance with the current legal procedures and regulations.

Regarding amendments and supplements to the Charter of Nam A Bank:

The BOD has completed the amendments and supplements to the Charter in
accordance with the actual situation and legal regulations and has reported to the
SBV as prescribed.

Regarding the operational network:

In 2024, Nam A Bank completed the opening and operation of 05 branches and 03
transaction offices approved by the SBV according to the Official Dispatch No.
9586/NHNN-TTGSNH and Official Dispatch No. 9587/NHNN-TTGSNH dated December
15 2023, increasing the total number of business locations nationwide to 262, including
148 traditional business locations and 114 modern business locations (Onebank).

Regarding the development of the business network into the international market,
in the context of an unfavorable macroeconomic environment, and the need for
more time to carefully research and analyze the economic, cultural, and legal
characteristics of each country, the development of the business network into the
international market has not yet been implemented in 2024. The BOD will continue
to submit this content to the AGM for implementation in 2025.

Regarding the operating budget and remuneration of the BOD and the Board of
Supervisors:

Overcoming the unfavorable impacts of the macroeconomic environment, Nam A
Bank still ensures safety, sustainability, and efficiency in business operations. This
result demonstrates that the BOD and the Board of Supervisors (BOS) have
fulfilled their responsibilities assigned by the AGM. The operating budget and
remuneration of the BOD and the BOS in 2024 are within the plan approved by the
AGM and are used reasonably and effectively.



1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

1.9.

1.10.

Regarding capital contribution and share purchase:

In 2024, due to the influence of some objective reasons from the market, the BOD
assessed that it was not appropriate to implement capital contribution and share
purchase. The BOD will continue to submit these contents to the 2025 AGM to have
a basis for implementation under appropriately conditions.

Regarding the selection of an independent audit firm:

Based on the list of companies approved by the 2024 AGM, the BOD decided to select
Ernst & Young Vietnam Co., Ltd. to audit the financial statements and the operation of the
internal control system at Nam A Bank in 2025.

Regarding the private placement of convertible bonds:

The domestic bond market in 2024 has slightly improved, but there are still many
difficulties for businesses due to declining solvency and limited capital absorption.
Therefore, the BOD proactively postponed the private placement of convertible bonds as
planned and will continue to submit this convertible bond issuance to the 2025 AGM to
have a basis for implementation under appropriately conditions.

Regarding the listing of publicly issued bonds and participation in the restructuring
of people's credit funds:

In 2024, due to some objective reasons, Nam A Bank did not implement the issuance
of public bonds and participate in the restructuring of people's credit funds. The
BOD will continue to submit these contents to the 2025 AGM to have a basis for
implementation under appropriately conditions.

Regarding the implementation of the ""Restructuring Plan associated with bad
debt settlement of Nam A Bank for the 2021 — 2025 period*:

Nam A Bank has completed the development and approval of the "Restructuring
Plan associated with bad debt settlement of Nam A Bank for the 2021 — 2025 period"
and has reported to the SBV for approval before implementation as regulated.

Nam A Bank continues to implement the approved Plan in accordance with the
guidelines and orientations of the Government and the SBV.

Bank operation management results in 2024:

With the function of strategic orientation and operational supervision, the BOD

regularly organizes exchanges and discussions among its members on basis of the
principles of centralization and democracy to make appropriate decisions for the
operational situation in each period. In 2024, through meetings (regularly and
extraordinary) or obtaining opinions in writing, the BOD issued 284 Resolutions, 161
Decisions, and 115 Official Dispatches related to various fields to provide strategies
and business policy directions for the Board of Management (BOM). Some of the main
guidelines and orientations of the BOD in 2024 include:

Absolutely comply with the orientations, guidelines, and policies of the Party
and the State; ensure that all business activities of Nam A Bank are conducted in



accordance with current legal regulations; comply with the limits and safety
ratios in banking operations as prescribed by the SBV.

Effectively implement strategic key projects of Nam A Bank, especially projects
related to the "digitalization” and "greenification™ guidelines directed by the
Government and the SBV recently.

Promote the position as the best risk management bank in Vietham by
strengthening the early warning and checkpoint system, improving the quality of
remote monitoring activities, and implementing international risk management
standards such as enhanced Basel 11 and Basel 11I.

Standardize the financial and management accounting information system to create a
solid foundation for making business decisions combined with preparing financial
statements in accordance with international standards (IFRS9).

Information technology continues to be invested in and upgraded to ensure the
system always operates stably, smoothly, safely, and securely according to current
regulations, along with applying technology to management and administration to
affirm the distinction of Nam A Bank reputation.

Comprehensive and synchronous human resource management based on
consolidating core values of corporate culture; aiming to build a human resource that
converges the values of pioneering, integrity, and politeness, specifically:

+ Recruitment focuses on both professional quality and ethics. As of December 31,
2024, the Bank has 5,306 employees (including AMC Co. Ltd), who are considered
by the market to be dynamic and capable.

+ Internal training activities are regularly organized with diverse content and forms
to improve professional expertise, management and administration capacity, as
well as to enhance team spirit among employees.

+ Salary, bonus, and benefit policies are also reviewed and adjusted to be linked to
the business performance of the entire bank as well as the productivity and
contribution of employees through the KPIs evaluation criteria.

Proactively review, arrange, and adjust the functions and tasks of units within the entire
system to ensure efficiency and streamlining in operations as well as alignment with the
development orientation of Nam A Bank in each period.

Focus on reviewing, adjusting, and supplementing the system of policies, regulations,
rules, and internal processes to comply with current legal regulations and the business
strategy of Nam A Bank.

Brand promotion and communication efforts have been standardized and unified to
enhance Nam A Bank's standing and prestige within the industry and ensure
increased public recognition of Nam A Bank's image and reputation.

Supported numerous social welfare programs and community initiatives, including:
(i) donating compassionate houses, solidarity houses, and cultural center and
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constructing infrastructure and bridges in various provinces and cities nationwide;
(i) contributing to funds for the impoverished, scholarship funds, funds for disabled
children and providing aid to those affected by Typhoon Yagi.

Activities of the Committees under the BOD in 2024:
Personnel Committee:

The Personnel Committee, comprising of 05 members, effectively advised the BOD

on matters related to organizational structure, functions, duties, and human resource
management within the BOD's authority, with significant activities in 2024, specifically:

3.2

Advised on Nam A Bank's organizational and operational model, providing a basis
for adjusting the organizational structure to suit business conditions and needs in
each period.

Advised on the planning and monitoring of the implementation of Nam A Bank's
human resource management strategy in accordance with the Bank's business
development orientation.

Reviewed and evaluated the suitability and effectiveness of the Bank's current human
resource management policies, regulations, procedures, and processes, and proposed
appropriate and timely improvements.

Advised the BOD on the recruitment, appointment, reappointment, and dismissal of
management personnel of the Bank and its subsidiary within the BOD's authority,
based on recommendations from the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and/or the
subsidiary's Chairman.

Risk Management Committee:

The Risk Management Committee, comprising of 06 members, assists the BOD in

overseeing and managing risks during operations, ensuring compliance with legal regulations,
and serving the needs of safe and efficient business operations. In 2024, the Risk Management
Committee effectively fulfilled its functions and responsibilities as prescribed, focusing on the
following key matters:

Directed monitoring of information technology risks, cyberspace risks, digital risks,
and fraud risks to ensure the sustainable and secure development of digital banking.

Advised the BOD on developing a risk management framework at Nam A Bank
that integrates environmental, social, and governance (ESG) risk management
factors. Oversaw and directed the development of the ESG risk management
policies at Nam A Bank.

Reviewed and evaluated the suitability and effectiveness of Nam A Bank's risk
management policies, regulations, procedures, and processes, and recommended
timely and appropriate adjustments to the BOD.

Analyzed and provided warnings about the Bank's safety in the face of potential risks
and proposed preventive measures for these risks in both the short and long term.



4. Evaluation of the effectiveness of the BOD’s members:

Having earned the trust of the AGM, the BOD has consistently striven in
management and administration, promptly making market-appropriate decisions to ensure
the sustainable, stable, and efficient operation of Nam A Bank, contributing value to
shareholders, customers, and society. Moreover, the BOD’s members have demonstrated a
strong commitment to realizing strategic objectives, positioning Nam A Bank among the
leading commercial banks in Vietnam. The BOD wishes to continue receiving support and
cooperation from shareholders in order to successfully fulfill its assigned mission and
tasks during the remaining years.

The effectiveness of the Board of Directors members in 2024 is assessed as follows:

—  All members of Nam A Bank's BOD has met the standards, qualifications, and
professional expertise stipulated by current law; they are also individuals of
respectable morality, ensuring no negative issues arise that could damage the
reputation of the BOD in particular, or Nam A Bank in general.

—  With solid professional qualifications and extensive experience in financing and
banking, all the BOD’s members perform their duties with a high sense of
responsibility, legal compliance and successfully complete the tasks entrusted by
shareholders through the implementation of the resolutions of the AGM.

5. Evaluation of the effectiveness of the BOM members:

In 2024, the BOM demonstrated a high sense of responsibility and decisiveness in
implementing the business plan and effectively developing the strategic direction set by
the BOD. This contributed to Nam A Bank's impressive business results, achieving all key
financial targets assigned by the AGM. Concurrently, risk management and bad debt
resolution were consistently prioritized and implemented, achieving positive results.

The performance of the BOM members in 2024 is assessed as follows:

—  Successfully completed the duties and responsibilities of the CEO and BOM’s members as
prescribed by law and the Charter of Nam A Bank.

—  Fully implemented the directions and instructions of the BOD through Resolutions,
Decisions, and regularly and extraordinary meetings between the BOD and the BOM.

6. Evaluation results of the Independent Board Member on the activities of the BOD and
the activities of Independent Board Member:

6.1 Independent Board Member’s assessment of the Board of Directors' activities:

In 2024, the BOD operated actively and effectively with a high sense of
responsibility; proactively and promptly issued Resolutions and Decisions to effectively
implement the Resolutions of the 2024 AGM, specifically:

—  The BOD’s members actively and diligently performed their assigned tasks with care and
honesty, contributing to the successful business results of Nam A Bank in 2024.



Fully attended meetings of the BOD, assigned Committees/Councils; unanimously
approved the issues raised at the meeting/through written opinions.

Completed the duties, powers, and roles of the positions held as assigned by the BOD.

Reported and disclosed information fully and promptly on matters as prescribed by
law and the Charter of Nam A Bank.

6.2 Activities of the Independent Board Member:

Associate with other BOD’s members, directed and supervised the BOM in implementing
the 2024 business plan approved by the AGM.

Successfully fulfilled the roles, duties, and authorities of an Independent Board
Member as prescribed by law, the Charter of Nam A Bank, and assigned by the
BOD.

Participated in meetings of the Risk Management Committee and made
recommendations on risk management policies and monitored the implementation of
risk prevention measures of Nam A Bank.

MANAGEMENT ORIENTATION FOR 2025:
Operational direction of the Board of Directors in 2025:

Focus resources on standardizing the product and service portfolio in accordance
with the market demands, linked to the digitalization and greenification strategy,
aiming to affirm the sustainability, professionalism, and distinction of the Nam A
Bank reputation.

Participate responsibly in the international financial market by establishing
business locations and representative offices in leading global standard markets;
strengthen cooperative relationships with global financial institutions to maximize
business opportunities from new potential customers, especially overseas
Vietnamese and foreign-invested enterprises.

Invest in, upgrade, and develop information technology infrastructure to ensure the
pioneering, readiness, and seamless operation of the system to effectively meet the
features of products and services deployed on the digital platform as well as to
improve labor productivity in the operation and business processes of the Units.

Research and deploy financial supermarket tools to ensure the successful
implementation of a comprehensive financial model for a sustainable and stable
customer base with diverse needs for banking and financial services.

Form strategic alliances between Nam A Bank and financial, insurance, securities,
real estate, and retail chain companies to expand the market and exploit customers
within the same ecosystem to provide products and services.

Continue upgrading and improving the traditional distribution channel system towards
standardization and high standards, combine with standardizing the modern distribution



channel system towards convenience and safety to serve all individual and corporate
customer segments.

Manage credit operations with a focus on centralization and safety, digitize approval and
disbursement processes; consolidate the system of policies, solutions for debt control and
handling; strengthen and enhance risk management capacity of the internal control
system.

Restructure and reorganize the apparatus towards streamlining and professionalism.
Clearly separate the functions and tasks of each department, reduce intermediary
layers, and increase the effectiveness and responsibility of personnel, especially the
leadership and management team.

Consolidate and develop high-quality human resources, paying special attention to the
planning of the key leadership of the Regional level, Business Units, and Units at the
Head Office.

Standardize training towards synchronization, quality, and effectiveness based on
reviewing and updating training programs suitable to the business context;
consolidate and promote the capacity of the internal lecturer team.

Actively consolidate, build, and cultivate extensively the unique cultural values of
Nam A Bank by creating a civilized and professional, safe and transparent working
environment, along with the spirit of long-term commitment between Nam A Bank
and its employees.

Enhance the role and activities of the Committees and Councils under the BOD in
consulting and supervising specialized areas such as credit, investment, monetary
business, risk management, human resources, and information technology.

Continue to increase charter capital according to the plan until 2025 (according to the
Restructuring Plan associated with bad debt resolution of Nam A Bank for the period
2021 — 2025), while considering seeking reputable strategic partners domestically
and internationally to enhance financial capacity and management capacity.

Business Orientation in 2025:
The economy in 2025 is expected to have many positive developments, but there are

still many new challenges from macroeconomic uncertainties that will affect the stability
of the finance — banking industry. In that context, based on the objectives of the
Restructuring Plan associated with bad debt resolution of Nam A Bank for the 2021 —
2025 period that has been approved, and the domestic and international business
environment, the BOD respectfully submits to the AGM for consideration and approval of
the business plan targets for 2025 as follows:

Total assets: reach 270,000 billion dong as 10% growth compared to 2024.

Mobilizing capital from customers and issuance of valuable papers: reach 209,000 billion
dong as 17% growth compared to 2024.

Outstanding credit balance: reach 194,000 billion dong as 16% growth compared to
2024 while ensuring a credit growth rate in line with the SBV's regulations in 2025.



—  Control the bad debt ratio not exceeding 2.5%.

—  Consolidated profit before tax: reach 5,000 billion dong (this profit level is
calculated based on credit growth reaching the planned level and in accordance with
SBV regulations; ensuring safety ratios according to current regulations of the SBV;
stable macroeconomic conditions). In addition, to encourage units to exceed the
assigned profit targets, the BOD proposes to the AGM to approve a policy of
allocating 20% of the consolidated profit before tax exceeding the plan to motivate
and encourage Nam A Bank's employees, which will be accounted for in personnel
expenses in the bank’s operations.

1. PROPOSAL

Respectfully request the AGM to discuss, contribute the opinions, and approve all
contents of this report, and authorize the BOD to decide on all matters related to the
implementation of the annual business plan, including:

— Reviewing and adjusting the business plan in accordance with the actual situation;
—  Approving the business plan in each specific case;

—  Deciding on business cooperation with domestic and international partners and
financial institutions;

—  For the business plan of the next fiscal year, until officially approved by the AGM,
the BOD is authorized to approve and implement it based on the CEQ's proposal, in
accordance with the business context and legal regulations.

—  Carry out necessary related tasks in compliance with legal regulations and the
Charter of Nam A Bank;

Wishing the General Meeting a successful conclusion.
Respectfully reported./.

FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Recipients: CHAIRMAN
Nam A Bank’s Shareholders;

BOD, BOS;
- Archived: Office of the BOD.

Tran Ngo Phuc Vu
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REPORT ON BUSINESS PERFORMANCE IN 2024
AND BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2025

To: THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

- Pursuant to the consolidated audited financial statements of 2024 of Nam A Commercial
Joint Stock Bank (Nam A Bank);

- Pursuant to the actual situation of Nam A Bank and forecasts regarding global and
Vietnamese economic fluctuations in 2025.

In 2024, the global economy was on a recovery trajectory but at a slow pace, with growth
rates of only 2.7% to 3.2%. Strategic competitions among major powers and escalating
geopolitical conflicts continued to affect global peace and economic stability. Despite these
challenges, Vietnam’s economy achieved a GDP growth rate exceeding 7%; inflation
remained under 4%; total import-export turnover reached a historic milestone of
approximately 800 billion USD.

The banking sector closely followed domestic and international economic developments
to implement comprehensive solutions to facilitate access to credit capital for businesses and
individuals. Credit growth in the industry exceeded 15.08% compared to 2023. Despite
challenges from rising bad debts and economic volatility, the industry maintained a positive
growth outlook, achieving record-breaking profits while ensuring system safety. The regulatory
framework, mechanisms, and policies for cashless payments and digital banking continued to
be enhanced, integrating new technologies while ensuring security in payment operations.

Amid the unpredictable challenges of the world economy in general and the domestic
economy in specific, Nam A Bank turned challenges into opportunities, leveraged its
strengths, maximize and effectively mobilize the resources of the system on the basis of
thorough application of information technology and effective risk management to excellently
complete the targets assigned by the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (AGM).
The Board of Management (BOM) respectfully reports the results of business performance in
2024 and the business plan for 2025, which details as follows:

PART 1: BUSINESS PERFORMANCE IN 2024

I.  RESULTS OF ACHIEVING BUSINESS TARGETS ASSIGNED BY THE AGM
IN 2024

—  Total assets reached 245,129 billion dong, an increase of 35,233 billion dong
compared to the beginning of the year as 17%, achieving 106%o of the plan. The profit-

earning asset ratio was 98%.

1
Nam A Bank



Mobilizing capital from customers (included the issuance of valuable papers) reached
178,341 billion dong, increased 14,453 billion dong compared to the beginning of the
year as 9%, achieving 100% of the plan.

Outstanding credit balance reached 167,738 billion dong, increased 26,300 billion
dong compared to the beginning of the year as 19%o, achieving 105% of the plan. Credit
quality was well controlled and Non-Performing Loans ratio was 2.33%.

Consolidated profit before tax reached 4,545 billion dong, increased 38% compared
to the beginning of the year, achieving 114% of the plan. Risk provisions were fully set
aside in accordance with regulations.

Safety ratio limits were strictly controlled to ensure compliance with the Law on Credit
Institutions No. 32/2024/QH15 dated January 18", 2024, Circular No. 41/2016/TT-
NHNN, Circular No. 22/2019/TT-NHNN and related amending Circulars, as follows:

+ Consolidated Minimum CAR: 12.66% (8% higher than the minimum required
level).

+ Liquidity coverage ratio: 23.42% (10% higher than the minimum required level).

+ Short-term capital used for medium and long-term loans ratio: 22.33% (ensuring it
does not exceed the maximum allowable limit of 30%).

+ Investment and capital contribution to joint-stock company ratio: 4.06% (ensuring it
does not exceed the maximum allowable limit of 40%).

+ Loans to deposit ratio (LDR): 76.98% (ensuring it does not exceed the maximum
allowable limit of 85%).

IMPLEMENTATION OF KEY BUSINESS PROGRAMS

In 2024, Nam A Bank was officially be upgraded in terms of Circular 52/2018/TT-
NHNN dated December 31%, 2018 regulating the rating of credit institutions and foreign
bank branches to “A”, which is the highest rating on the assessment scale, affirming that
Nam A Bank had a credible risk management system, sustainable and stable financial
development.

Nam A Bank officially listed NAB shares on the HOSE (Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange).
This is a significant milestone in the development journey that strengthens market
positioning, enhances transparency, increases shares’ value and sustainable
development on the market.

Moody’s upgraded Nam A Bank’s credit rating, improving asset quality from B3 to B2,
profitability indicators from B2 to B1, and affirming the issuer rating at B2 with a
"stable™ outlook.

Completed the transition to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS),
marking a significant step to prepare a pioneering effort for the adoption of
internationally regulated financial governance standards.

Nam A Bank



—  Promoted green credit development, which is a key target, including: (i) Completion of
the Environmental and Social Risk Management System (ESMS), a crucial step toward
achieving "Green Bank" level 5; (ii) Publication of the Sustainability Report.

—  Expanded operations by opening and operation of 05 branches and 03 transaction
offices, bringing the total number of business locations to 148. Additionally, the
OneBank system was expanded to 114 locations, covering almost all key economic
regions nationwide.

—  Strengthened workforce development, ensuring transparency in assignments,
implementing HR restructuring, and fostering a skilled, tech-savvy workforce.

—  Celebrated 32 years of establishment with successful promotional campaigns,
reinforcing corporate culture and teamwork.

—  Earned multiple prestigious awards, including: "Best Green Bank in Vietnam 2024",
awarded by Global Brands Magazine; Top 10 Outstanding ASEAN Enterprises 2024;
"Best Risk Management Bank in Vietnam 2024"; "Vietnam Digital Transformation
Award 2024"; "Most Innovative Digital Banking Ecosystem in Vietnam 2024"; "Most
Innovative Open Banking in Vietnam 2024"; "Open Banking by Nam A Bank"
recognized as an Outstanding Technology and Digital Transformation Product;
"Outstanding Bank for Green Credit" and "Outstanding Retail Bank", awarded by
Vietnam Retail Banking Forum 2024; "Best Workplace in Asia 2024" and "Best
Workplace with Employee Care Benefits 2024", awarded by HR Asia; "Vietnam Digital
Transformation Award 2024", awarded by Vietnam Digital Communications
Association.

In conclusion: At the end of the 2024 fiscal year, despite numerous challenges and
difficulties, Nam A Bank, with its internal strengths and collective commitment across all
levels, has achieved impressive business results, surpassing the targets approved by the AGM,
specifically: (i) Total assets reached 106% of the target; (ii) Mobilizing capital completed
100% of the target; (iii) Loans reached 105% of the target; (iv) Profit before tax achieved
114% of the target. Additionally, credit quality remained strictly controlled, ensuring full
compliance with the State Bank of Viet Nam (SBV) regulations.

PART 2: BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2025

The global economy in 2025 is forecasted to experience stable growth, but it will face
numerous challenges, including weak investment, high public debt, geopolitical tensions, and
persistent trade protectionism. Meanwhile, Vietnam’s economy is expected to maintain its
growth momentum, with a target of 8% GDP growth set by the Government, in which public
investment disbursement is expected to be the main driver supporting growth alongside
exports and digital technology development.

2025 is considered a "pivotal year" for the 2025-2030 period, providing an opportunity
for Nam A Bank to strengthen internal capabilities, overcome limitations, enhance operations
and elevate position to be fully prepared for the next challenging journey yet promising
development era. The leadership has set a strategic direction for 2025, focusing on
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restructuring the system and organization, ensuring a harmonized integration of three key
elements: Strategy - Mechanism - Human Resources, with a strong commitment to
successfully achieving the 2025 business plan. Accordingly, the key business targets for 2025
have been established and are presented as follows:

BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2025
Total asset is 270,000 billion dong increased 10% compared to 2024.

Mobilizing capital (included issuance of valuable papers) is 209,000 billion dong, an
increase of 17% compared to 2024.

Outstanding credit balance is 194,000 billion dong increased 16% compared to 2024.
The non-performing loan (NPL) ratio does not exceed 2.5%.

Consolidated profit before tax is 5,000 billion dong increased 10% compared to 2024.
Ensuring safety ratios in accordance with the regulations.

IMPLEMENTATION SOLUTIONS IN 2025

To achieve the key business targets for 2025, Nam A Bank has set the following strategic

initiatives:

1.

Adhering to transparent corporate governance, ensuring compliance with legal
regulations, SBV’s directions, and international practices. At the same time,
implementing comprehensive measures to complete the restructuring plan in
conjunction with non-performing loan resolution for the 2021-2025 period as
approved by the SBV.

Remaining steadfast in the pursuit of sustainable development, with a strategy centered
on “Digitization” and “Greenization”, reinforcing Nam A Bank’s distinct brand
identity through its "digital" and "green™ initiatives.

Developing business operations alongside upgrading core technology infrastructure,
following the principles of *‘modernization, centralization, and connectivity.
Preparing for system upgrades, integrating IT solutions and applying artificial intelligence
to enhance digital transformation across “operations — business — supervision”.

Affirming the "Digital Finance' strategy, continuing to expand the financial
supermarket model on a digital platform, offering personalized products and services to
increase the proportion of customers using digital banking.

Building strategic alliances between Nam A Bank and key partners to establish an
integrated financial ecosystem, expanding the customer base and boosting operational
revenue.

Enhancing the application of technology in risk assessment and control, ensuring
effective monitoring of the Bank’s and its partners’ financial services. Strengthening
supervision, internal control, and compliance, ensuring safe and efficient operations that
provide optimal benefits for customers and shareholders.

Nam A Bank



7. Strictly managing credit quality, implementing proactive measures to reduce overdue
debts and applying resolutions to solve non-performing loans to improve operational
efficiency and financial stability.

8.  Maximizing profitability, focusing on service sector growth, optimizing capital costs by
increasing CASA deposits and expanding USD growth strategies. Enhancing funding
quality, reducing input costs, and fostering sustainable growth while boosting
competitiveness.

9.  Continuing the organizational restructuring and workforce development, ensuring a
streamlined, professional, and high-performing structure. Developing a young,
tech-savvy, and highly skilled workforce, and establishing a leadership pipeline with
both “Integrity” and “Proficiency”.

10. Strengthening corporate culture values, integrating them deeply into operational
strategies, connect corporate culture with operating strategy and promote increased
labor productivity.

In Conclusion: Nam A Bank successfully achieved the ambitious goals of the 2024
fiscal year. This achievement has created a strong foundation of trust and confidence for its
2025 strategic objectives. Facing the challenges of domestic and foreign economic
environment, the competition in the industry is increasing, with the determination and unity
of all employees, along with the support of shareholders, the Board of Directors, and
regulatory authorities such as the SBV, Nam A Bank is fully confident in achieving its 2025
business targets.

We sincerely express our deep gratitude to our valued shareholders for the unceasing
trust and support. To affirm the shareholders’ belief, Nam A Bank remains committed to
striving for excellence, working towards its goal of becoming a leading commercial bank in
Vietnam, ranking among the top financial institutions in the State.

Respectfully submitted./.

Recipients: ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
- Shareholders of Nam A Bank;

- Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors;
- Archived: FPD, Office of BOM, Office of BOD.

Tran Khai Hoan
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REPORT
ON THE ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AND

THE RESULTS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT REVIEW FOR 2024

To: THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to the Law on Credit Institutions No. 32/2024/QH15 dated January 18", 2024
and the implementing, amending and supplementing documents;

Pursuant to the Regulation on Operation of the Board of Supervisors No.
21/2024/QODBKS-NHNA of Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank dated August 12", 2024;

Pursuant to the Charter of Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank (Nam A Bank);

Pursuant to review results of the Board of Supervisors on Nam A Bank’s business
activities for 2024.

The Board of Supervisors (BOS) hereby reports to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of

Shareholders (AGM) on activities and the financial statement review results for 2024 as
follows:

ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

Oversaw compliance with laws and Nam A Bank’s Charter in governance and
operational management.

Monitored compliance with the State Bank of Vietnam (SBV) regulations regarding:
safety limits, ratios in credit institution activities, supervision of compliance with laws,
classification of assets, risk provisioning, and key business operations, providing
recommendations for addressing identified shortcomings (if any).

Monitored the implementation of the AGM Resolutions.

Conducted internal audits and assessments on adherence to laws, Nam A Bank’s
Charter, resolutions and decisions of the AGM and the Board of Directors (BOD), and
Nam A Bank’s internal regulations.

Reviewed financial statements for the first half and the full year of 2024, audited by
Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited Company, including the Statement of Financial
Position, Income Statement, Cash Flow Statement and Notes to the Financial
Statements.

Issued internal regulations for the BOS, conducting annual reviews of these regulations
and key accounting and reporting policies.



Attended and participated in discussions during BOD meetings and other periodic or
extraordinary meetings of Nam A Bank (if any).

Maintained and updated the list of founding shareholders, major shareholders and
related parties of BOD members, BOS members and the Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
in accordance with regulations.

Carried out tasks as required by the SBV, banking inspection and supervision Agency
and internal regulations, etc.

RESULTS OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT REVIEW FOR 2024:

The BOS reviewed Nam A Bank’s 2024 Financial Statements and agreed with the audited
results provided by Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited Company.

The financial data in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Financial Position, Income
Statement, and Cash Flow Statement fairly and legally reflects the Bank’s financial
position and performance in all material respects, in accordance with current accounting
standards and regulations.

Confirmed the 2024 profit distribution plan which had been submitted to the AGM was
accordant with the State regulations and Nam A Bank’s Charter.

EVALUATION OF THE IMPLEMENTATION OF AGM RESOLUTION
DATED MARCH 29t 2024

1.  Implementation of the 2024 Business Plan:
Unit: Billion VND
As of Completion
No. Criteria 2024 Plan December 31°%, Ratz (%)
2024 °
Total Assets 232,000 245,129 106%
Mobilizi ital f
ooifizing — capital — from 178,000 178,341 100%
customers
Outstanding credit balance 160,000 167,738 105%
Profit before tax 4,000 4,545 114%
. . Met the target for controlling
Non-perf I < 3% . .
on-performing loans ratio =3% non-performing loans in 2024

Selection of independent Auditing firms:

The BOD unanimously decided to appoint Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited Company
to review the interim Financial statements, audit Financial statements, audit the internal
control system in terms of internal capital adequacy assessment and the preparation and
presentation of financial statements for Nam A Bank in 2025.



10.

Operating Budget of the BOD and the BOS for fiscal year 2024

Operating budgets (remuneration, bonuses, benefits and other expenses) for the BOD
and the BOS were used reasonably and effectively, staying within the limits outlined in
the AGM Resolution on March 29", 2024,

Amendments and supplements to Nam A Bank’s Charter and business lines in the
business registration certificate:

Following the 2024 AGM Resolution, Nam A Bank has approved the Charter on July
29t 2024, effective from August 121, 2024 to align with practical conditions and legal
regulations, with a report submitted to the SBV as required.

The increase of charter capital:

Nam A Bank has successfully increased the charter capital from 10,580,416,150,000
dong (Ten trillion, five hundred eighty billion, four hundred sixteen million, one hundred
fifty thousand dong) to 13,725,505,530,000 dong (Thirteen trillion, seven hundred twenty-
five billion, five hundred five million, five hundred thirty thousand dong) by issuing shares
to increase equity capital from its own resources, corresponding to an additional charter
capital of 2,645,089,380,000 dong (Two trillion, six hundred forty-five billion, eighty
nine million, three hundred eighty thousand dong) and issuing shares under the
employee stock option program, corresponding to an additional charter capital of
500,000,000,000 dong (Five hundred billion).

Currently, Nam A Bank is in the process of implementing procedures to amend the
charter capital in the Establishment and Operation License with SBV in accordance with
the procedures and regulations of current laws.

Plan for the private placement of convertible bonds:

Nam A Bank is in the process of promoting the search for partners and has not yet
implemented plan for the private placement of convertible bonds.

The listing of bonds issued to the public by Nam A Bank:

Nam A Bank is in the process of preparing documents and implementing the issuance
of bonds to the public, expected to continue in 2025.

Capital contributions and share purchases:

As of December 31%, 2024 Nam A Bank’s total capital contributions and share purchases
in enterprises, including subsidiaries and associates, amounted to 4.06% of the Bank’s
charter capital and reserves, adhering to the maximum regulatory limit of 40%.

Policy on participating in the restructuring of People’s Credit Funds:
Due to unfavorable conditions, Nam A Bank has not proceeded with this initiative.
Expansion of operational network to international market:

Due to unfavorable conditions, Nam A Bank has not proceeded with this initiative.



In conclusion: In 2024, global trade began to recover, with global GDP growth in 2024
reaching about 3.2%. The same went for Vietnam's economy, with a GDP growth rate of
about 7.09% over the previous year. Vietnam is considered a Southeast Asian growth star
with a good recovery trend, with each subsequent quarter achieving higher growth than the
previous one.

Amid the economic challenges faced globally and within the banking sector, Nam A
Bank has worked hard to overcome difficulties, and met the targets set by the AGM for 2024,
affirming its sound and effective development strategy.

The above constitutes the report on the activities of the BOS and the audit results of
Nam A Bank’s business operations for 2024, as well as an assessment of the management and
administration performance of the BOD and the Board of Management.

IV. RECOMMENDATIONS:

1.  Respectfully request the 2025 AGM to review and approve the reports of the BOD and
the Chief Executive Officer as presented at the AGM, including the 2024 business
results report, the 2024 Profit distribution plan, and the 2025 business plan.

2.  Respectfully request the BOD and the Chief Executive Officer to continue enhancing
management and governance in line with new trends set by the SBV, ensuring that Nam
A Bank operates safely, sustainably, and efficiently.

Respectfully submitted./.

FOR BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Recipients: HEAD OF BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
- Shareholders of Nam A Bank;

- BOD;
- Chief Executive Officer;
- Archived: BOS, Office of BOD.

Nguyen Vinh Loi
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Mam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

GENERAL INFORMATION

THE BANK

Mam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank i"the Bank’) s a commercial jeint stock bank incorparated in the
Socialst Republic of Vietnam.

Tha Bank was incorporated under Banking Operation License Mo DDZENH-GP on 22 August 1992,
issued by the State Bank of Vietnam (“SBEV"), Establshment License Mo, 463/GP-UB issued by the
Peoples Committee of Ho Chi Minh City on 1 September 1952, and Business Registration Certificate
No. 0300873215 issued on 1 September 1992, amended 45th time on 3 August 2023 issued by the
Dapartment of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City. The valid of opsration period of the Bank
is 99 years:

The Bank's principal activities include providing banking services such as mobilizing short, medium
and kong-term funds in the form of term deposits. demand deposits, centificates of deposit, recenving
entrusted investment and development funds, borrowings fram other financial institutions; granting
short, medium and long-term loans; discounting of commercial notes, bonds and valuable papers;
contributing capital and investing in joint-ventures. providing settlement services to customers, trading
foreign currengies, gold, internaticnal payment, mobilizing everseas funds and other banking SErVicEs
to overseas counlerparties as sliowed by the SEV. conducting debt factoring activities; supplying cash
management services, banking and financial consuliancy, preserving assels, leasing cabinets and
safes; buying and salling Government bonds and corporate bonds, giving and receiving entrustment
loans: insurance agency; credit granting under bank guarantes; debt purchasing activites. trading and
providing foreign exchange services on domestic and infernational market within the scope as
prescribed by the SBY, trading goid; leasing a parl of unused office owned by the Bank.

The Bank's Head OHice is localed at 201 - 203 Cach Mang Thang Tam Street, Ward 4, Distict 3. He
Chi Minh City. As at 31 December 2024, the Bank had cne (1) represantative office, one (1) Business
Center, one hundred forty seven (147) branches and transaction offices located in cities and provinces
throughout Vietnam

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The members of the Board of Directors of the Bank during the year and at the dale of this report are
as follows:

Name Posilion

Mr. Tran Ngo Phuc Vu Chairman

Mr, Tran Ngoc Tam Standing Vice Chairman (from 28 March 2024}
Ms Vo Thi Tuyet Nga Vice Chaiman

Mr. Tran Khai Hoan Member (from 29 March 2024)

Wr. Hguyen Duc Minh Tri Mambes

KM=, Mguyan Thi Thanh Dag fMember

Me Le Thi Kim Anh indepandent Membear

THE BOARD OF SUPERVISION

The members of the Board of Supervision of the Bank during the year and at the date of this report
are as follows:

Wr. Mguyen Yinh Lo Chief Supervisar
M=, MHguyen Thuy Yan hember

Ms, Do Thi Hong Tram Membar

" W#TEH . =



Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND CHIEF ACCOUNTANT

Tne members of the Board of Management and Chief Accountant of the Bank during the year and at
the date of this report are as follows

MName Position

Mr. Tran Khai Hoan Acting Chief Execuftive Officer (from 30 March 2024)

Mr. Tran Mgoc Tam Chief Executive Officer (until 28 March 2024

Mr. Tran Khai Hoan Standing Deputy Chief Executive Officer (until 29 March 2024)
Mr. Hoang Viet Cuang Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Ha Huy Cuong Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Le Anh Tu Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Nguyen Vinh Tuyen Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Vo Hoang Hal Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Ho Nguyen Thuy Vy Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Huynh Thanh Phong Deputy Chief Executive Officer (from 5 December 2024)
Mr, Nguyen Minh Tuan Deputy Chiel Executive Oficer (from 5 December 2024)
i=. Lam Kim Khoi Deputy Chief Executive Officer (from 5 December 2024
Ms. Nguyen Thi My Lan Director of Finance Division and Chiel Accountant

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

The legal representative of the Bank during the year and al the date of this report is Mr. Tran Ngo
Phuc Wu, Ghairman

Mr. Tran Khai Hoan - Acting Chief Executives Officer was authorized by Mr. Tran Nge Phuc Vu -
Chairman of the Board of Directors to sign the accompanying consclidated financsal statements for
the year ended 31 December 2024 in accordance with the Power of Attorney No. 567/2024/UQ0T-
HNHMA datad B April 2024

AUDITOR

Thie audior of tha Bank and its subsidiary are Ernst & Young Vietnam Limiled.

i E—
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Management of Nam A Commersial Joint Stock Bank ["the Bank’) is pieased 1o present
this report and the consolidated financial staterents of the Bank and its subsidiary for the year ended
31 December 2024

THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Management of the Bank is responsible for the consclidated financial statements of each
financial year, which provide a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Bank and
its subsidiary, and the consolidated income statement end consclidated cash flows for the year. In
preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Board of Management is required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them congstenty;
» make judgements and estmates that are reasonable and prudent;

» sigle whether spplicable account standards have been followed by the Bank and its subsidiary,
subject to any malerial deparures disclosed and explained in the consolidated finamcial
stataments; and

» prepare the consclidated financial statements on the going concermn basis unless it is inappropriate
1o presume that the Bank and its subsidiary will continue its business.

The Board of Management fs responsible for ensuring that proper accourting records are kept, which
disciose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the consclidated financial pesition of the Bank and is
subsidiary ard for ensuring that the accounting records comply with the applied accounting system. It
is glso responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Bank and its subsidiary and, hence, for taking
reasonable sieps to prevent and detect fraud and other imegulariies.

The Board of Managemant confirmed that it has complied with the above requirements in preparnng
the sccompanying consalidated financial staternents

STATEMENT BY THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Management of the Bank hereby stales that in its opinion, the accompanying
consclidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Bank and its subsidiary as at 31 December 2024, the consofidated income statement and their
consolidated cash flows for the year than ended, which are in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit Institutions, and the statulory requifements
relevant 1o the preparation and presentation of the consalidated financial statements.

Ho Chi Minh City, Viginagm

28 February 2025

-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To: The Shareholders of
MNam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

We have audited the acocompanying consolidated financial statements of Nam A Commercial Jaint Stock
Bank {‘the Bank")and &s subsidiary, as prepared on 28 February 2025, and s&! out on pages & o 74,
which compnse the consoldated stalement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, the
consalidated income statement, the consolidated cash flows statement for the year ended, and the
accompanying nobes

The Board of Managemant’s responsibility

The Beoard of Management of the Bank iz responsible for the preparation and fair presantation of the
congclidated financial stalements in accordance with Vielnamese Acccunting Standards, Vietnamese
Accounting Systern for Credi! Instiiutions and the statutory requirements relevant ta the preparalion and
presentation of congolidated financial statements, and for such internal contral that the Board of
Management deamed necoseary [0 enable the praparation and presentation of coneolidated financial
slatermnentz that are free from matenal misstatement. whather due to fraud or ermar

Auditors’ responsibility

Dur responsibility is 1o exprass an apinion on thase consolidated financial statements based on our audit
We conducted our awdit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and o plan and perform the audit to ablain reascnable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statemants are free from matenal misstatameant

An audit involves performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment
including the assessment of the risks of malerial misstatement of the consclidated financal statements,
whether due to fraud or emror. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the Bank's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audt procedures that are appropnate in the crcumstancas bul nat far the purpose of expressing
an opinion an the effectiveness of the Bank's internal control. An audit slso includes evaluating the
approprizteness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of accounting estimates made by
management, 3z well as evauating the cverall presentation of the consolidated financial statemants:

We balieve that the audit evidence wae hava obtainad is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion

e s | O
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Opinion

In cur opinicn, the consoldated financial statements give a true and fair view, in all matersal respects, of
the consolidated financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2024, and of the consclidated Income
statement and its consclidated cash fiows for the year then ended, in accordance with Vieinamese
Accounting Standards. Vietnamese Agcounting System for Credit Institutions, and other statutory
requirements relevant to the preparation and presentaton of the consolidated financial statementa

Ernst & Young Vielnam Limited

o~
”’;@“ﬁ“ﬁ_—.

Yu Tien Dung Mguyen Van Trung

Deputy Ganeral Director Auditar
Audit Practicing Regisiration Audit Practicing Regisiration
Cerfificate No. 3221-2025-004-1 Cerificate No. 3847-2021-004-1

Hao Chi Minh City, Vietnam
28 February 2025
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

COMSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BOXTCTO-HM
g5 at 31 Decamber 2024
Ending balance Baginning balance
Noles WND milion VND miltion
ASSETS
Cash and gold d 1,148,489 1,132,969
Balances with the State Bank of Vietnam
{*the SBV™) -] 13,632,932 16,268,047
Due from and loans to other cradit institutions 36,809,781 22,591,302
Duie from other credit institutions .1 36,519,898 20,801 417
Loans to other credit insttutions 6.2 260 585 1,789, BR5
Dervatives and other financial assets T - 19,455
Loans to custamers 165,672,890 139,894 641
Loans to customers B 167,737,997 141,438,441
Fravigion for loans to custaomers 4.1 (2,065,107 (1,543 800)
Investment securities 20,841,857 24,068,777
Avallabla-for-sata securities 101 10,269,877 13,110,808
Held-to-maturity securtiss 10.2 10,566,774 10.976.514
Frovision for invesimeant sacunas 10.4 (14, 784) (183.545)
Long-term investments 11 142,753 BS,320
Omer long-term invesiments 224,011 835,320
Provisicn for long-term investment (B1,252} =
Fixed assets 2,188,108 1,586,997
Tangible fixan assals 12 1,528,845 g01, 068
Cost 2307181 1,554,014
Accumulated depraciation (F7B,335) (B52,245)
Elnancial lease fixed aesals 13 TR T45 104,336
Cost 159 317 158 813
Accumulated depraciation {79,572} (54 577)
intangibie fixed assels 4 578,517 587,592
Cost 755,807 Td44,438
Accumulated amortizatson (176,080} (152 847
Investment properties 15 30,439 15,9714
Cost 30435 15,871
Other assets 4,661,726 4,212,760
Recaivables 18.1 Q18 487 1,488 711
Interest and fea recawables 16.2 2001116 2,076,285
Other assels 16.3 780,289 702 7a7
Provision for other assets 16.4 (38.178) {33,023}
TOTAL ASSETS 245 128 983 209,896,239




Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION {continued) BO2/TCTD-HN
&8s ak 31 December 2024
Ending balance  Baginning balance
MNolas WML muliran VND pullian
LIABILITIES
Borrowings from the Government and the SBY 17 2,577,611 345
Borowings from the Govemment and the SBY 2577611 345
Due to and borrowings from cther credit
institutions 39,198,316 24,021,674
Due to ather credit mstbutions 181 37,715,284 22.816 0867
Borrowings from other credit institutions 182 1.481.021 1,204,707
Due to customers 18 168,334,003 145 428 845
Darivatives and ather financial labilities 6. TRE =
iGrants, entrusted funds, and loans exposed to
risks 20 1,076,174 1,066,485
Valuable papers issued 21 20,006,940 18,458 868
iDiher liabilities 4 642 639 5,6TE 150
Interest and fee payabiles 221 3,395,608 4. 282773
Other liabilitias 222 1.24T 031 1,395 37T
TOTAL LIABILITIES 225 840 450 1494 654 44T
OWMERS' EQUITY
Capital 13,725,604 10,580 866
Charter capial 13,725,506 10,530,416
Fund for capital expenditure 10 10
Share premium 63 415
her 25 25
Reserves 2,174,392 144773
Retained eamings 3,388,537 3,213,195
TOTAL OWHERS' EQGUITY 24 _ 15155,52 15,241 742

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS' EQUITY 245,128,983

209,896,230
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION {cantinued) BO2MCTD-HN
as at 3 December 2024

OFF-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ITEMS

Ending balance Beginning balence

Notes YND million WD millfon
Loan guarantess ag 3,658,957 -
Foreign exchange commitments a8 B.075,790 14,684 585
- Commitments on currency swap transaclion B.OT5. 790 12105195
- Spol forgign exchangs commiments - buy . 2,420,000
- Spot foreign exchange commitmeanis - seil - 169,400
Letters of cradit 28 549 B81 6,114,363
Other guaraniess 38 3,656,250 8,847 873
Othar commitments 38 148 655
interest and fes raceivable not ye! collected 38 232141 2.019.140
Wiritten-off debts 40 2,508,183 2,674 247
Assets and other documents 41 10,123,872 11.470531
31,034,753 46,820,658

\
Mr. Le Dinh Tu Ms. Mguyen Thi My Lan allls
Head of Director of Finance Division ¢ ° Acting Chief Executive Officer
Accounting Department cum Ghief Accountant

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

28 February 2025
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

COMSOLIDATED INGOME STATEMENT BO3TCTDHN
far the year ended 31 December 2024
Curren yoar Pravious year

Nofas YIND mililion YND midion
Interest and similar imcome 2% 17411, 707 19,338,240
Interest and similar exponse 27 (9,473,887 (12,661,031}
Met interest and similar income 7937620 €.647.3098
Fee and commission income 551, 804 1.141 500
Fee and commission expanse {390 838) 1551, 465}
Net fee and commission income 26 560,966 580,031
Net gain from trading foreign currencies 28 2,807 14,607
Met gain from trading securities 30 B64 -
Net gain from investment securities 3 123,787 59,287
Other oparating income 467 824 498 520
Other oparating expanse (42,027 (165,581
Met gain from other operating activitles 32 425,797 332,939
Met gain from investment in other entities 33 22 3B
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 8,052,083 7,644,211
TOTAL DPERATING EXPEMNSE 34 13,985,763) (3.492,455)
Met profit before provision for credit losses 5,066,300 4,151,756
Provisicn expense for credit losses g (520,802) (547 804)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 4 545 198 3,303,952
Current corporate income tax expense 23.1 (333,305 (682.333)
Total corporate income tax expense (938,305) ~ (682,333)
PROFIT AFTER TAX 3,607,093 2,621,619
Basic earnings per share (VNDvshara) 28 2,702 1,937

—|l 7/
—

Mr_ Le Dinh Tu Ms. Nguyen Thi My Lan =f%". Tran Knhai Hoan o
Head of Diracior of Finance Divisio Acting Chief Executive Officer
Accounting Departrent cum Ghief Accountant

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

28 Fabruary 2025
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest and similar income receipts

Interest and similar exponse paymeanta

Met fes and commission receipts

Met receipts from trading of securities, gold and
foreign currencies

Less from other activities

Recovery of loans previausly written-aff
Fayments for empleyess and other operating
BEpRNSE

Corporate income tax paid for the year

Het cash flows from operating activities
before changes in operating assets and
liabilities

Changes in oparafing assels
Dacrease/increase) in dua from and loans 1o
ather credit institutions

Dacraase in imvastimeant securifies

Decraase in derivatves end athar financial assels
Increasa in loans Lo cusiomerns

Utilization of provision to write-off loans 1o
customers, securities, and kong-term investments
Decrease in olher assels

Changes in operating labilities
Increasel|decrease) in borrowings from the
Govemnment and the SBY

Increase in dus o and borrowings from other
credit institutions

Imcrazse in dus 1o cusiomers

Imerease in valuable papers issued

Imeraasa in grants, entrusted funds and loans
exposad o risks

Increase in derivatives and other financial liabilities
Decreass in athar liabilites

Net cash from operating activities

4]

BOLTCTD-HN

Currer] paaf Previous year

Motes VD miflicn WM million
16,480 418 10,082,045

(10,248,873} (11,538,747)

531 B54 537 BE6

122 507 45,593

(41.381) [163,114)

a1 455 822 456, 895
[3,363.963) (3,828,059)

23 (850.901) (501,892)
2,927,209 5,029,587

1.500.000 (1,704, 735)

3,230,971 352,278

39,455 65,4594

(26,299, 556) (20,238,351)

[3,944) (1,023,708)

71868 1,034 357

2,577.266 (46T

15,165 082 2BT75TR

12805058 20435610

1,548.072 B.075206

8709 115,235

6.768 -

(308.806) |B94.055)

13,398,152 12,524 215




Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

COMNSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS STATEMENT (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchaees of fixed assals

Proceads for disposals of fived assets

Procesds for disposals of investment proparty
Paymants for investmenis in other entites
Proceeds for investments in other entities
Proceeds for dividend and profit distributed from
nvestment in other entities

Wet cash used In Investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in charter capital from capital contribution

andfor share Bsuance
Dividends distributed 1o shareholders

Met cash fromfjused in) financing activities
Net change of cash for the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the baginning
of the year 13

BOSTCTD-HM
Currant year Frawious yaar
Nelas VAND million ¥ND million
(659 BTT) (581, 238)
1,181 1,181
7.527 .
(142 187)
3,506
22 38
(799,828) (580,009)
400 648 =
(86) [226)
499,562 (226)
13,088,886 11,943,980
28,202,433 26,258 453
51,301,319 38,202,433

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 33

N

al
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¥

Mr. La Danh Tu
Head of
Accounting Department

Ms Nguyen Thi My Lan
cum Chief Accountant

Ho Ghi Minh Gity, Yiatnam
28 February 2025

m

T r
Directar af Finanoe Division

4 Khai Haan
Acting Chief Executive Officer



Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BOS/TCTD-HN
s at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

1. THE BANK

Mam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank (‘the Bank”) is a joint stock commercial bank
incorporated in the Socialist Republic of Vietnam

Establishment and Operations

The Bank was incorporated under Banking Operation License No. CO26/NH-GF on 22 August
1992 issued by the State Bark of Vietnam ("SBY"), Establishment License No. 4563/GP-UB
issued by the People’s Committee of Ho Chi Minh City on 1 Seplember 1892, and Business
Regisiration Cerificate No, 0300873215 on 1 September 1252, amended 45ih time on 3
August 2023 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City. The
valid of operalion parod of the Bank is &9 years,

The Bank's principal activities include providing banking services such as mobilizing shor,
medium and lang-tarm funds in the form of term deposils, demand deposits. certificates of
deposit; receiving entrusted investment and development funds. borrowings from other
financial ingtitutions; granting shart, medium and long-term loans, discounting of commercial
notes, bonds and valuable papers. contributing capital and Investing in joint-ventures,
praviding setilement services to customers, trading foreign currencies, gold, international
payment, mobilizing overseas funds and cther banking sefvices to overseas counterparties
as allowed by the SBY, conducting debt faclonng activities, supplying cash management
services. banking and financial consultancy; presenving assets, leasing cabinats and safes;
buying and selfling Govemment bonds and corporate bonds, giving and receving enfrustment
loans; insurance agency, cradit granting under bank guarantee, debl purchasing activities,
irading and providing foreign exchanges services on domestc and international market within
the scope as prescribed by the SBY; trading goid; ieasing a part of unused office owned by
the Bank.

Charter capital

The charter capital of the Bank as at 31 December 2024 is VYND13,725,505,530,000 {31
December 2023 is VHD0,580,416,150,000)

Operation nobwork

The bank's Head Office iz located a1 201 - 203 Cach Mang Thang Tam Street, Ward 4, Disinict
3, Ha Chi Minh City. As at 31 December 2024, the Bank has cne (1) representative office. one
{1) Businass Canter, and one hundred and forty seven (147) branches and transaction offices
Incated in cities and provinces throughout Vietnam.

Subsidiary
As-at 31 December 2024, tha Bank has one (1) subsidiary’

' Nafure of | Ownership
Subsidiary Operating License No business of the Bank

| Nam A Bank Asset | 0304891951  issued by  the | Debt 100%
Management Department of Planning and | management

Company Limited Investment of Ho Chi Minh City, | and assal

armanded for ninsteanth (10} me on | mining
16 January 2023

Employees

Tha Bank and its subgidiarny's total number of empioyees as al 31 December 2024 is 5.317
persong (31 Decamber 2023 is 5,357 persans).

12
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued) BOSITCTD-HM
a5 at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

7

2.2

2.3

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statemant of compliance

The Board of Management of the Bank confirms that the accompanying consolidated financiz
statements have been prepered in accordance with Viethamese Accounting Standards,
Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit Insiitufions, and other relevant statutory
requirements pertaining to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

Accounting standards and system

The conzolidsted financial stalements of the Bank and itz subsidiary have been prepared in
poccordance with the Acecunting System applicable fo Credit Institutions, a3 required under
Decision No. 4792004/ 00-NHNN issued on 28 April 2004, Circular 1020148 T-NHNN dated
20 March 2014 and Crcular 2Z2/2017/TT-NHNM dated 29 December 2017, which amend and
supplemant Decision Mo 4792004/Q0D-NHNN, Decision No. 16/2007/00-NHNN dated 18
April 2007, Circular 2772021 TT-NHNN issued by State Bank of Vietnam on 31 December
2021, Circular 492014 TT-NHNM, which amends and supplemenis saveral articles af
Decision No. 16/2007/QD-NHNN,. other Vietnamese Accounting Standard ssusd by the
Minisiry of Finance as per.

+ Decision No. 148/2001/QD-BTC dated 31 December 2001 on the Issuance and
Promulgation of Four Vietnamese Standards on Accounting (series 1),

» Decision Mo. 165/2002/QD-BTC dated 31 December 2002 on the lesuance and
Promulgation of Six Vietnamese Standards on Accounting (series 2

> Decision Mo 234/2003/QD-BTC dated 30 December 2002 on the Issuance and
Promulgation of Six Vietnamese Standards on Accounting (saries 3,

b+ Decwsion Mo, 12/2005/QD-BTC dated 15 February 2006 on the [|ssuance and
Promulgation of Six Vietnamesa Standards on Accounting (series 4); and

b Decsmion Mo 100/2005/0D-BTC dated 28 December 2005 on the Issuance and
Promulgation of Four Vietnamesa Standards on Accounting (Senes 5).

Accordingly, the accompanying consalidated financial statements and their utilzation are nat
designed for individuals who are not familiar ‘with Vietnam's accounting principles,
procedures, and practices, and furthermore, are not intended to present the consoldated
financial position, consolidated income statement, and consolidated cash flows in accordance
with accounting principles and practices generally sccepted in countries othar than Vietnam

Any itams or balances required by Decision Mo 1R2007/0D-MHNN dated 18 April 2007,
Circular 49/2014MT-MHNMN dated 31 Decamber 2014, and Circular 27202 17T T-NHNN dated
11 December 2021, which stipulate the reporting mechanism for consolidated financial
statements of credit instifutions, that ara not shown in these corsolidated financial stetements,
indicate nil balanca.

Fiscal year
The fiscal year of the Bank and its subsidiary starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December.
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Mam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued) BOSTCTD-HM
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

-

24

2.5

26

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Aeccounting currancy

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in Viatnam dong ("WND®). For thfe
prasantation of the consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2024, the data is
raunded to millions and expressed in milions of Vietnam dong ("VND milion"). This
presentation does not affect the view of users of the consolidated financial statements
regarding the consobdated financial position, consolidsted income siatement, and
consolidated cash flows.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprse the financial statemeants of the Bank and its
subsidiary for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Subsidiary is fully consolidaled from he date of acquisition, which is the date on which the
Bank and its subsidiary oblain control and continue (o be consolidated unbl the date when
such controd ceasas.

The financial statermants of tha Bank and ite subsidiary are prepared for the same reporting
year as the parent bank, using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-company balances, mcome, expenses. and unrealized gains or losses resulting from
intra-company transactions are fully eliminated

Assumptions and uses of estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires the Board of Management
of the Bank o make eslimates and assumpiions that affect the reporied amount of assels and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilties. These estimates and assumptions also
impact the income, axpenses, and Ihe resuflant provisions. Such estimates are necessarily
based on -assumptions involving varying degrees of subjectivity and uncertainly, and actual
results may differ, leading to fulure changes in such provision

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting poficies adopted by the Bank and its subsidiary in the preparation of the
consolidated financial stalements are consistent with these followed in the preparation of the
Bank and its subsidiary's consolidated financial statements for the year endad 31 Decembar
2023, except for the following change in ascounting policy

The Law on Credi instifutions No. 322024/0H15 daled 1B January 2024 regulates fhe
esfablishment. organization. operalion. eary intersention, special confral, recrganization,
digsafulion and bankrupicy of credit insiitutions. esfablishment, organization, oparalion, early
intervention, dissofulion and fermination of operafions of branches aof foreign banks:
astablishment and gperation of representative offices in Vietnam of foreign credil institulions
armd other foreign mstitutions parforming bankrng aperations; sefflement of bad debls and
coffateral of bad debls of credit institutions, branches of fareign banks and whaily state-owned
arganizations authorzed to buy, sell and settle debts. This law fakes effect from 1 July 2024
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MNam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

HOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad) BOS/TCTD-HN
as at 31 Decernber 2024 and for the yaar than ended

31

3.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

Changes In accounting policies and disclosuras (continued)

Decree No. BE2024/ND-CP reguiates amounts and methods of establishing nisk provisions
and use of provisions for management of rsks ansing from operetions of credit mshifutions
and forgign bank branches and cases in which credit instiubions allocale forgivable intenest
{"Decraa 86°).

Decreée 86 takes effect from 11 July 2024, replaces the regulations related o the provisioning
levels and methods for sk provisions, as well as the use of provisions to address risks in
Gircular 11202 1VTT-NHNM (“Cieular 11"). The Bank and its has mplemented the
provisioning and utilization of risk provisions in accordance with the regulations of Decree 88
guring the year.

Circular 3120247 T-NHNN ("Circular 31" regulates the classiicalion of assefs in fhe
aperations of commercial banks. non-bank cradit institutions, and foreign bank branches.

Circular 312024 TT-NHNN ("Circular 317 regulales the classification of assets in the operaticns
of commercial banks. nan-Dank credit institutions, and foreign bark branches, effective from 11
July 2024, replacing Circular 11. Circular 31 amends the regulations relaled to debt classification
in Circular 11, The main changes of Circular 31 affect the estimation of provisions as follows: it
adds principles for classifying debts arising from letter of craddt operations, outright purchase of
documenis presented under letters of credd, and some other cperalions.

Circufar 21/2024/TT-NHNN [“Circular 21°) reguiales the operalions of leffers of credit and
atfer husiness achivifies related fo leffars af credil

Cireular 21 takes effect from 1 July 2024, and the letter of credil oparation is consiered a
form of credit provision through the issuance, confirmation, megotiation of payment, and
raimbursamant of leiters of credit. Contracts and agreements related 1o this operation signed
before the effective date of Circutar 21 wil continue to be executed until they expire and the
obligations are fulfiled. Amendments, supplemenis, and extensions can only be made if they
comply with Circular 21

Circular QE2024/TT-NHNN [“Circular 08°) caled 18 Juna 2024, amends and suppfemenis
some Arfielas of the Cireilar No, 02/2023TT-NHNN dalted 23 Apri 2023 of the Gavemar af
Ihe Stale Bank of Welnam providing insirichions for oredit mistitulions-and foraign branch
banks on debl rescheduling and refantion of debt catagory fo azsist bomowers in difficullies
This circidar lakes affect from 18 June 2024

Circular 532024/ TT-NHNN ("Circular 537 dafed 4 December 2024, regulates insiructions for
credilt instiulions and foreign bank branches on debl rescheduling for borowers facing
difficulties due fo impact and demage caused by Storm No. 3, floods, landslides o the
aftermalth of Starm No. 3. This clrewlar takes effect from 4 December 2024,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalanis include cash on hand and gold, balances with the SBY, amounts
due from other credit institutions on demand or with an criginal maturity of less than thres
manths from the transaction date and investment securities with a maturty of less than thres
months from the purchase date, which are readily converfible into cash and do not baar tha
liquidity risk at the reporting date.

15

d g



Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued) BOSTCTD-HN
gs at 31 Decemper 2024 and for the year than ended

3.3

314

3.5

351

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Due from and loans to other credit Institutions

Due from snd loans to other credit institutions are presenied gf the pnncipal amounts
outstanding at the end of the year

The classification of credit risk for deposits and loans to other credit institutions and the
coresponding provisiening is camied out in accordance with the regulabons in Circular 31 and
Decree B5, which stipulate the ciassification of assets, provisioning levels, methods of
provisioning for risks, and the use of provisions to handie risks in the operations of credit
mstitutions and foreign bank branches

Accordingly. the Bank makes specific provisions for deposits (excludng damand deposiis)
and loans to other credit institutions according to the methed cutlined in Node 3.5

According o Decree 88, the Bank is not required to make genesal provisions for deposits at
and loans ta other credit institutons

Under Circular 31, for loans to cradit institlutons that are under spacial control ag stipulated in
Clause 9, Article 174 of fhe Law on Credit Institufions No. 32/2024/QH15, the Bank classifias
these loans as standard dabt and is not required o adjus! the debl classification accordmg 10
the customer list provided by the Mational Credit Information Center of Vietnam under the
State Bank of Vietnam ["CICT).

Loans to customers

Loans to customers are disclosed and presented at the pnncipal amounts cutstanding at the
end of the year

The provision for credit losses of loans to customers is presented separately as 1 (one) line
in the consalidated statement of financial pesition

Shori-ierm loans have a maximum term of 1 (one) year from the disbursement date. Medium-
term lsans have a term ranging from above 1 {one) year 1o a maximum of 5 (five) years. Lang-
ierm loans are loans with a term of over 5 years from the disbursament date.

Loan classification and provision for credst losses are made according to Circular 31 and
Decree 66 as described in Maofte 3 4.

Debt classification and provision for credit losses applied to due from and loans to
other credit institutions, direct and entrusted investments in uniisted corporate bonds,
lpans to customers, entrustments for credit granting and other credit risk bearing
assols

Debt classification and provison for credit losses

The classification of due from and lnans to cther credit institutions. direct and entrusted
investments in unlisted corporate bond, and laans to customers, and antrustments for credit
granting, as well 85 other credi risk baaring assets (collectively referred to as "oebls’), 1S
recognized based on the guantilative method prescribed In Article 10 of Circular 31.
Accordingly, debts are classified into the foliowing levels of risk. Current, Special mention,
Substandard, Doubtful and Loss, based on their overdue #alus Debts classified as
Substandard, Doubtful and Loss are considesad bad el

& general provision as at 31 December 2024 is made at 0.75% of the total cutstanding icans
as at 31 December 2024 excluding due from and loans to other credit institutions and loans
classified a8 loss.
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as st 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contnued)

35 Debt classification and provision for credit losses applied to due from and loans to
other credit Institutions, direct and entrusted investments in unlisted corporate bonds,
loans to customers, enfrustments for credit granting and other credit risk bearing

assets (continued)

BOHTCTD-HM

Specific provision as at 31 December 2024 is calculated using the principal batance mnus
the discounted value of collaterals, multiplied by provision rates determined based on the debt
clagsification results a5 at 31 December 2024 The basis for determening the value and
discounted rate for each type of coilateral is specified in Decrea B6

The debt classification and specific provision rates far @ach loan group are as folkows.

Loan group

Descriphion

Speciic |
[rowTSIon |

rafe

1 | Current

{a] Current debls are assessad as fully and timely recoversble for

(o)

both principals and interasts; of

Debts are overdus for a period of less than 10 days and assessed
as fully recoverable for both overdue principals and inferests, and
fully and timely recoverable for both remaining prncipals and
interasts.

0%

2 | Special
Mentian

(&)

(b

Debts are averdue for a pericd of between 10 days and S0 days;
or

Debts which the repayrment terms are restructured for the first
Eme that s unmaiured,

5%

SEncar

ia)
b
{c)

()

(e}

i

(g

Debts are overdue for a period of betwaen 91 days and 180 days;

or

Debts which the repayment terms are extanded lor the first time

that is unmatured; or

Debts which interests are exempted or reduced interest due to the

customer's mabdlity to pay the full interest as agread, o

Debts under one of the folowing cases which have no been

recoverad In less than 30 days from the dale of the recovary

dacision:

* Debts made incompliance with Clausa 1, 3, 4, 5 B under
Brtcle 134 of Law on Cradit Institutons; ar

" [Debts made incompiance with Clause 1, 2 3, 4 under Aficle
135 of Law on Credi Institutions; or

s Debts made incompliance with Clauses 1, 2, 5, B under Article
136 of Law on Credit Institutions.

Debis ae required to be mcovered acconding to regulatony

inspection conclusions:; or
Debts are required to be recoversd under a premature debt |
recovery decision isswed by the bank due to the cusiomers
breach of sgreemants made with tha Bank but is not yet recovered
within a peried of less than 30 days from the effective date of the
debt recovery decision; or

Al the request of the SBY based on the inspection, supervision
canclusions ard ralevant credit nformation

20%
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

WOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINARKCIAL STATEMENTS {continuad) BOSTCTO-HN

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

3. SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continusd)

as Debt classification and provision for credit logses applied to due from and loans to
ather eredit institutions, direct and antrusted investments in unlisted corporate bonds,
loans to customers, entrustments for credit granting and other credit risk bearing
aszats (continued)

251 Dabt classification and provision for credit lasses (continued)

Specific
PRI
Loan groug Descrplion it
4 | Doubtiu | (@) DOebis are overdue for a penod of between 181 days and 350 days; o 50%

by Dabts which the repayment terms are rastructured for the first fime: but
stll overdus for a penod of kess then 90 days under el restruciured
PEpayEnt Yem; ar

{c} Deabts which the repayment terms am estnuciured for he second bme

tsat is unmatured; or

id) Debes are specified in point (d) of Loan group 3 and ovesdue for a period
of between 30 days and 60 days after decisions of recovery have been

| tssued; or

(@ Debis ae reguired to be recovered acooeding to reguistory mspechon
conchsions bul slill sutstanding with an overdus peniad up 1o B0 days
sinee the recovery date as required by regulslony inspecion conclusions,
or

ifi Debts are required to bi récovered accordng fo @ premabure debi
recovery decision issuad by the bank or non-bank crecil institution dué 1o
the cusiomers breach of agresmants made wilh the bank or non-bank
credn instaution but is rot vt recovered witin a penod of J0 o &3 days
from the effecive dale of the debd recovery dedsn, ar

gy Al the request of the S5V besed on the inspeciion, supervision
pandusons and ralevart cradil informahon.

| & | Loss {@) Debts are overdus for a penod of mone than 360 cays, or 100%

{b) Dabts of which the repayment tenms are restructuned for the first ime but
il overdue for a panad of 91 days ar more under that firs! resinciuned
PEpay Tant ienm; or

(£} Debts of whach the repayment ierme ana restiuciunsd forthe second tme

| but still overdus under that second restructured repaymant tenm; or

[d] Diebis of which the repayment terms ar restruciured for the third Sme or

| mone, regardiess of being owerdue ar nok] or

(8} Debis ae specified in point (d) of Loan group 3 and ovendus for a perod
of maore than &0 days after dedisans on recavery have been issued, ar

ifi Debls are requred to be recoversd under regulatory Inepection
condusions but 55 oulstanding with an owerdwee perod of mone than B0
daye since the recovery date as required by regulsiony inspeckon
conclusions; of

ig) Debls ane requred to be reccuensd Bocording @ premature debl ecovery
decision issued by the bank or non-bank credht institubion due fo the
oustomar's breach of agreements made with the bank of non-bank credit
irstitution bt i not yet recovered withen a peniod of more than €0 days
fram the efecive dale of the detd recoveny dedsion, of

(R DCebts of credd inslilutans under special confrod as announced oy he
SEY, ar debts of foreign bank branches which capital and assels ane
blocked, or

(i} Al the request of the SBY based on the inspecton, supervision
concusons and melevan credit informafon
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [contnued) BOSTCTD-HN
as at 31 December 2024 and Tor the year then ended

3.

-]

d.51

382

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Debt classification and provision for credit fosses applied te due from and loans to
other credit institutions, direct and entrusted investments in unlisted corporate bonds,
joans to customers, entrustments for eredit granting and other credlt risk bearing

asgets (continuad)

Debt classification and provisian for eregll logses {continued)

If @ customar has more than one debt with the Bank and its subsigiary, and any of the
outstanding debts is classified info a higher risk group. the entire remaining debls of such
customer should be classified Into the comespending higher risk group.

If & customer is classifisd into 3 debt group with lower risk than the debt group in CIC list, the
Bark and its subsidiary must adjust the debt classification results according to the CIC list

When the Bank and its subsidiary pasticipate in a syndicated loan as a participant, they should
classify loans (including syndicated lcans) of the customer into the group of higher risk
batween the assessment of the leading bank and the Bank and s subsidiary

Loan restructuring and Joan clessification refention suppor! borrowers facing financial
cifficuities

From 12 March 2020 to 30 June 2022, the Bank and its sub&diary applied the policy of loan
restructuring, interest andior fees examption or reduction and lean classfication ratention for
loans that meet conditions according to Circular 01/20200TT-NHNN dated 13 March 2020
(“Cireular 017), Circular 03/2021/TT-NHNN dated 2 April 2021 ("Circular 037), and Circular
1472021/ TT-NHNN dated 7 September 2021 (“Circular 147) issuad by the State Bank of
Vietnam, which provide regulations on loan restructuning, Interest and/or fees exemplion o
reduction, and loan classification retantion to assist customers affected by the COVID-13
pandemic,

Fram 24 April 2023, the Bank and s subsidiary applied the poicy of loan restrecturing and
loan classification ratention o support customers who face difficulties in production and
business activities, as well 3 facing difficulties in repaying leans lo mest their daily iife and
cansumption needs. This palicy aligns with the conditions set forth in Circular 02/2023TT-
WNHMNMN. which was issued by SBY on 23 Apnl 2023 and Circular 08/2024/TT-NHNN, which
was issued by SEV on 18 June 2024 amends some articles of Circular 02, which provides
instructions to credit insttulions and foreign branch banks on loan restructuring and tha
ratention of loan classification to assist borowers facing financial difficulties.
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Mam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BOSTCTD-HN

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

2.8

J.52

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Debt classification and provision for credit losses applied to due from and ipans to
other credit institutions, direct and entrusted investments in unlisted corporate bonds,
loans to customers, enfrustments for crodit granting and other credit risk bearing
assets (confinued)

Loan resfructuring and loan classification refention suppor! Dorrowers facing financigl
difficuities (cortinued)

Accordingly, the Bank and its subsidiary apply loan classification for lcans thal fall under the
policy of loan restructunng and loan classification retention as follows

Disbursement | Cverdue
date slatus Overdus date | Frinciple of loan classification reteniion
Before 1/8/2021 | Gurrent or | From | Retain the latest loan classfication as
owerdue for | 30032020 to before 23 January 2020 or as befors the
a period of | 30MG2022 first-time restructuring date
10 days ;
Before Overdue | From | Retain tha latest loan classification as
2312020 2372020 o before 23 January 2020
2G/3/2020 |
From 23/1/2020 Fram Retain the latest loan classification as
to 10672020 23/1/2020 to bafore overdue fransfarming date
17EZ021
From 10/8/2020 | Fram
o 11872021 170712021 to
Trar2021
Before Current or | From Retain the latest loan classfication as
240412023 overdue for | 2442023 o befara the restruciunng data
a parod of | 3122024
1D_da':.r5

From 4 December 2024, according to Circular 5372024/ T-NHNN ("Circular £3"), the Bank
will restructure the rapayment terms and maintain the debt classification for customers facing
difficulties due 1o Storm No. 4. This policy applies to individual and organizational cusiomers
(excluding credit institutions and foreign bank branches) in 28 affected provinces and cities
The restructuring of repaymeant terms and maintenance of dabt classification will be carried
out based on the customer's request and the Bank's financial capacity

Dishursement Overolie
date atatus Cwverdue dale | Prnciple of loan clagsification retention
| Before 7/8/2024 | Current or | From 7/9/2024 | Retain the latest loan classfication as
overdue for | to 31112/2025 | before the restructunng date
a pencd of
| 10 days

For loans whose repayment term was restructured, interest andfor fees were exempted or
reducad, and loan classification was retained, If they become overdue under the restructured
repayment term and are not eligible for further restructuring under cument regulations, the
Bank and its subsidiary makes loan classification and provigions in accordance with Lircular
31 and Decres BE.



Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) BORTCTD-HN
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

3.5

3:5..1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cantinuad)]

Debt classification and provisien for credit losses applied to due from and loans to
other credit institutions, direct and entrusted imvestmants in unlisted corporate bonds,
loans to customers, entrustments for credit granting and other credit risk bearing

asgsets (continued)

Specific provision for customers with debis that have been restructured on larm basis and are
subject to loan classification redention

The Bank and its subsidiary make specific provisions for customers with debts that have been
restructured an a term basis and are subject to loan classification retantion according to the
fallowing formuela: C= A-B
In which:
. Additional specific provision;
A Specific provision to be made for all outstanding loan balances of customers according 1o
the resufts of loan classification under Circular 31 and Decree 86 (Nols 3.5.1),

B: Total specific provision to be made for the outstanding balance of lcans applying loan
elassification under the palicy of lsan classification retention (Note 35 2) and specific
provision to be made for the remaining lean balances of the customers according 1o the
rasulte of laan classification under Circular 31 and Decree B6 (Note 3.5 1)

The additional speciiic provision (referred to s C) is made by the Bank and is subsidiary when
praparing financial statemants, ensuring the provisioning at &s follows:

» For loans that fall under the policy of loan restructuring and lean classification retentian as
prescnbed in Circular 01, Circuiar 03, and Circular 14,

+ By 31 December 2021: At laast 30% of the additional specific provision must be made;
+ By 31 December 2022- At least 60% of the additonsl specific provision must be made,
+ By 31 December 2023: 100% of the additional specific provision musl be mads.

# Faor loans that fall under the policy of loan restructuring and loan classification retention as
prescribed in Cirgular 02

+ By 31 December 2023: At least 50% of the additional specific provision must be made;
+ By 31 December 2024: 100% of the additional spacific provision must be made

+ For loans that fall under the policy of loan restructuning and loan cassification réentbon as
prescribed in Circutar 53,

+ By 31 December 2024; Atleast 35% of the additional specific provision must be made;
+ By 31 December 2025: Al least T0% of the additional specific provision must be made
+ By 31 December 2026: 100% of the addtional spacific provision rmust be made.

Write-aff had debls

Provisions are recognized as an expensa in the consolidated income statemant and arg used
o address bad debts. According to Circular 31 and Decree 86, the Bank and s subsidiary
establish a risk settiement committes to handle bad debts if they are classified in group 5 or
if the borrower is an organization thet is dissclved or bankrupt, or an individual who is
deceased or misaing.
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NOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS {centinusd) BOSTCTD-HHN
g5 at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES |continuad)
Lecurities held for trading

Classificafion and recognition

Securitfes held for trading include deb! securities purchased for rading purposes, Securilies hekd
for trading are initially recognized at cost on fransaction date,

Measurement
Perodicaly, sacurities held for trading will be considered fior diminution in value

Frovision for diminution in value of sacurities heid Tor trading & made specifically for loss
investment The Bank and it subsidiary make provision for securities held for irading if there is
substantial evidence indicating & decline in the value of these investment al consolidated
staterment of financial postion date. Provision for diminution is recognized to the consdlidated
incarme staternent al “Nel gain from secunities held for iading”,

Provision for securiies held for trading which s mentioned above & reversed when the
recoverable amount of securities held for rading Increases after the provision is made as a result
of an objective event. Provision is reversed up to the gross value of these securities before the
provision is made,

Gains or losses from sales of traxling securlies are recognzed in the consolidated income
statemen,

Interest and dividends derived from securities held for frading are recognzed on cash basis in the
consoldated income statement.

De-recogniion

Securitios hald for trading are de-recognized when tha rights fo raceive cash flows from these
sacuriies are terminated or the Bank and its subsidiary transfers substantially all tha risks
and rewards of ownarship of these sscurities

Availahla-for-sale securities

Clessification and recogrilion

Available-for-sale securities include debt and equity securities thal ane acguired by the Bank for
Investment and available-for-sale purposes. These securities are not regularty treded but can be
sold when there s a benefit. For equity securities, the Bank and its subsidiary is also neither the
founding shareholkier nor the strategic pertner, and it does not have the abdity to exert significant
influence in establishing and making the financial and operating policies of the investees through
a writhen agreemant on the assignment of peraonnel fo the Board of DireciorsManagemeant.

Available-for-sale equity securibes are indially recognized at cost on the purchase date and
continuously presentad at cost in subsequent pencds

Available-for-sale debt securities are recognized af par vaiue on the purchase date Accrued
interest (for debt securities with interest payment in arears) and deferred interest (for dabt
securities with interest paymaent in advanca) are recognized in consofidated accounts The
digcountpremium, which is the difference between the cost and the par value plus (+) sccnued
interast (i any) ar minue (-) defarred interest (if any) is slso recognized in a consobdated account.

In subsequent perods, these secunties are contnuously recorded at par value, and the
dscount'premium (if any} s amorized to the consolidated income statement on @ strasghi-line
basis over he remaining term of securites Interest received in arrears is recorded as follows:
Cumutative interest incurred before the purchasing date is recorded &5 adecrease in the accrued
interest, while cumulatye nberest incurred afier the purchasing date s recognized &8 INGoMme
based on the sccumulated method. Interest recetved in advance is amortized into e securties
investment interest income on a straight-ine basis over the barrm of securities imestmant,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) BORTCTD-HN
as &t 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuad)
Available-for-sale socurities |continuad)

Measuramarn!
Fariodically, available-for-sale securities will be considered for dirminution in value.

The provision for diminution in value of available-for-sale securities is mace when the boox
value of the securities is higher than their market value accordance with Circular 482018/TT-
BTC (Circular 48) and Circular 24/2022/TT-BTC (Circular 24). The provision for diminution in
valie is recorded under “Net gaindlozs) from investment secunties” in the consolidated
income statement

For corporate bonds thal have not yet been lIsted on the securibes market or have not been
registered for trading on uniisted public companies, the Bank and its subsidiary shall classify
and make provisions for those bonds in accordance with Circular 31 and Decree BE a3
presented in MNote 3.5

Held-to-maturity investment securities

Held-to-maturity invesiment securities are debt cecurities purchased by the Bank and its
subsidiary for the purpose of earning interest, and the Bank and its subsidiary has the
capability and intertion to hold these investments until maturity, Held-to-maturity secunties
have a datermined value and maturity date. In the event that the securibes are sold before
the maturity date, they wil be reclassified as either securities held for trading or avalable-for-
sale securities,

Held-to-maturity investment securities are recognized and measured smiardy to available-
for-sale securities, as described in Mote 3.7,

Repurchase agreements

Sacurfies sold under agreemants 1o be repurchased at a specific date in the future (“repos’)
are not derecognized from the consolidated financial statements. The corresponding cash
received is recognized in the consofdated staterment of financial position as a liability item.
The difference between the sale price and repurchase pnce |3 recognized to the consolidated
income statement using contract inlerest rate.

Qther fong-ferm investments

investments in subsidiany

Investments in subsidiary are carried at cost in the consolidated financial stataments of the
Bank and its subskdiary = Dividends received from the profit after tax of subsdiary are
recognizéd &s income in the consolidated income siatemeant,

Provigions for diminution in the valie of investments in subsidiary are made for each impaired
investment and are subject to revision at the date of the consolidated statement of financial
position. Provigion for mvestments in subsidary s made when the investments are impaired
due to losses incurrad by the subsidiary. Increases or decreases in the provision balance are
recognized as *Other operaling expansa”
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MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) BOS/TCTD-HMN
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cortinued)
Other long-tarm investmaents {continued)
Other long-term investmeanis

Other long-term invastments represent investments in entities i which the Bank and its
subsidiary haolds bess than or equal to 11% of voting rights. These invesiments are initially
recorded at cost on the investment date.

Pravision for diminution in the value of investment is made whan {hane is substantial evidence
indicating a decling in the value of thesa investmanis at the consalidated statemeant of financial
position dale,

For securities whisch are ot listed but are registered for trading on the unlisted public company
market (UPCoM), provision for diminution in value is made when their aveérage referenced
price within the kast 30 trading days prior to the preparation of the consglidated financial
statements, as announced by the Stock Exchange, is lower than the carrying value of the
secunties at the fiscal vear end date.

In other cases, provision for diminubon in the value of long-term investment is made if the
invesied economic organizations expenance losses The provision for diminution is caleulated
according io the following formula:

Emﬂﬂaﬁzﬁ%} Parties’ actual Actual equity
of the Bank and s investment capita al capital of
Level of Esidfigey 8tan the business business
provigion for = oo :;mﬂr:ss x| organization receiving -  organization at
investmeant srganzation at the capital contribution at the time of
tima of eraking the the time of making the making the
provision provision provisian

Provision Is reversed when the recoverable amount of the investment Increases after the
provision is made. The provision is reversed up to the gross value of the investment before
the provision is made

An increase or decraase in the provision for long-term invesiments is recognized in "Oher
operaling expense” on the consclidated income statement

Fixad assefs
Fixed assels are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation or accumulaled amortization,

The cost of a fixed asset includes any directly alinbutable costs of bringing the fiwed asset 1o
warking conddtion for €5 intended use.

Expendilures for agdiions, improvements, and renewals are added to the carrying amournt of
the assets, while cther expenditures are charged o the consolkdaled moome slatemant as
irSurTed

When fived assets are sold or refired, any gain or loss resulting from their disposal {the

differencs batwean the nel disposal praceads and the camying amount) = included in the
consolidated noome statement
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued) BOSTCTD-HN
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

a.12

1.13

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinuad)

Leasa

The determination of whether an arrangement @, or contains, a lease is based on the
substanca of the arrangemaent at the inception date and requires an assessment of whether
the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the usa of a specific asset and whether the
arrangement conveys a nght o use the assel

A lease is classified as a finance lease whanever the terms of the lease ransfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset {o the lessee. All other leases are classified
& Operaling leasas.

Assets held under finance leases are capitalized in the consolidated statement of financial
postion at the inception of the lease al the fair value of the leased assels or, if lower, at the
net present value of the minimum lease payments. The principal amount includad in future
lease payments undes finance leases are recorded as a liability. The interest amounts
included in lease payments are charged to the consclidated income siatement over the lease
term to schieve a constant rate of nterest on the remaining balance of the finance lease
limhility,

Capltalized financial leased assels are depreciated using the straight-line basis over the
shorter of the estmated useful lives of the asset and the leass term, it there is ne reasenable
certainty that the lessee will obtain ownership by the end of the lease lerm.

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the consolidated income staterment in
‘Operaling expensas” on a straight-line basis over the lgase 1emm

Income from operating lesses is recognized in “incoms from service achiviies” in the
consolidated statement of inceme on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Investmant properties

Investment propertes are stated st cost, including transaction costs, less accumulated
depreciation andior amortization

Subsequent expenditure refating to an invesiment property that has already been recognized
is added 1o the nel book value of the investment property when it is probable that fulure
sconamic benefis, In excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the
existing investment propearty, will fiow to the Bank and its subsidiary.

Investment properties are derecognized when they have been disposed of or when the
invesiment properties are parmanently withdrawn from use and ne fulure economic benefit s
expected from its disposal. The difference betwean the net disposal proceeds and the carmying
amount of the assets is recoanized in the consolidated income statement in the penod of
retiremant or dispasal

Transfers are made to investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by the ending of pwner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease o
anather party, or ending of construction or development Transfers are made from investmant
properties when. and only when, there is change in use, evidenced by commencement of
ownes-oocupation of commencement of development with a view 1o sale. When reclassitying
investment properties to fixed assets, the cost and the net book value of the fixed assets
remain unchanged at tha reclassNed date
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NOTES TG THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) BOSTCTD-HN
&5 at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Depreciation and amartization

Depreciation and amorfization of tangible fixed assets and infangible fixed asseis are
caleulated on a straight-line basis over the estmated veeful life of the assets as follows

Buildings and structiuras 5=~ 30 years
Machinery and equipment 3- Byears
Yehicles 3« Byears
Office eguipmant 3~ Byears
Crther tangible assets 3-10 years
Software 3= Byears
Land use rights a0 = 50 years

Infinite land use rights granted by the Government are not amortized, Definite ferm fand use
rights are amortized over the term of use

Other recolvablios

Retaivabies dlassifed as credif-rsk assels

Receivables classified ag credit-rigk assets are recognized at cost. Doubtful receivablas are
classified and provided for allowanca by tha Bank and its subsidiary in accordance with the
requlatons on recognition and use of provision as prasented in Nofe 3 5.

Other recsivables

Recenables other than recevables from cradil adlivities in the Bank and s subsidiary s
pperations are recognized at historical cosl and subsequently recognized &t cost during ihe
holding perods

Prowvision for receivables is determined based on the overdue status of debts or expected loss
of current debts. This provisicn is made when the debis are net vet due for payment, but the
corporate debtors have falien into bankruptcy or are in the process of dissolution, or when
individual debtors are missing, having escaped, are being presecuted, on trial or deceased
The provision expense incurred is recorded into "Other aperaling expense” of the
consolidated income statement during the year.

The provision for overdue debts s made in accordance with the guidance provided in Circular
48/2019TT-BTC, as amended by Circular 24/2022TT-BTC, as follaws:

Dviardue pariod Provision rafe
From six months up to one year %%
From one year up to under two years 50%
Frarm two yaars up to under thrae years 70%
From three years and above 100%
Frepald expenses

Prepaid expenses include shori-term prepaids of long-lerm prepaids on the consoidated
statement of financaal position and are amertized over the period for which the amounts are
paid ar the pericd in which economic benefits are generated in refaton (o Ihess expenies.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES |continued)

Borrowings from the Gowvernment and the SBV; due to and borrowings frem other
eradit institutions; dve fo customers; valuable papers issued; and grants, enfrusted
funds and loans axposod 1o risks

Borrowings from the Gavemment and the SBY, due to and borrowings from other credit
institutions; due to customers; valuable papers isswed, and grants, entrusted funds, and loans
exposed to risks are disclosed at the principal amounts outstanding a! the date of tha
consohdated financial statements. At initial recognition, issuance costs are deducted from the
cost of the valuable papers. These costs are allocated on a straight-ine method during the
lifetime of the valeable papers 1o “Inferest and simiar expense’.

Payables and accruais

Payabies and accruals are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for geods and
services received, whether or not billed to the Bank and its subsidiany

Loan classification for eff-statement of financial positinn commitments

Off-statement of financial position commitments include guaraniees, payment acceptances,
and koan comméments that are irrevocable. uncondifional and have a specific time of
execution

Classification for off-staterment of financial posiion commitments is only utad to monitor the
credit quality. Accordingly, commitments and contingent liakbdities sre classified for
managemeant and credit quality monfonng purposas, as described in Nafe 3.5,

According to Circular 31 and Decree 86, the Bank and its subsidiary are nat required to make
pravisions for off-statement of inancial position commitments.

Fiduciary assois

Aszgets in entrusted assets management of the Bank and its subsidiary are not recognized as
the Bank and its subsidiary’s assats, hence, will not be included in the consolidated financial
statemants.

Derivatives financial instruments

The Bank and s subsidiary nvolve in currency forward contracts and cumency swap
contracts to facilitate customers in transferring, modifying, or minimizing foneign axchange rsk
ar other market nsks, 85 well as for the frading purpose.

Currency forward confracts

The currency forward contracts are commitrments io settie in cash on a pre-determined future
data based on the difference between pre-delermined exchange rates. calculated on the
notional amount, The currency forward contracts are recognized at the nominal vaiue an the
transaction date and are revalued for the reporting purposes at the exchange rate on the
reporting date, Realized or unrealized gains or losses are recognized in the "Exchange rate
revaluation” in "Owners’ equity’ and will be transferred 10 the consolidated income statement
at the end of the financial year. The premium or discount derived from the difference batween
the spot rate and the forward rate is recorded as assels if positve or a abllity il negative in
the consolidated statemant of fmancal positon al the contract date, The difference
amortized on a straight-ine basis over the forward contract period and recognized in the
consolidated incorme stalement

27

LN

[ T

O

=0 E juj

| %)



Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {centinued) BOSTCTD-HN
@s at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continuad)

Darivatives financial insfrumanis (continusd)

Cumency swap confracts

The swap confracts are commitments to settie In cash on a pre-determined future date based
on the difference batween pre-determinad exchange rates calculated an the notionai principal
armount. The premium or discount resulting from the difference batween the spot rate at the
effective date of the contract and the forward rate is recognized immediately st the effective
date of tha contract as an assetif positive or a iabilty f negative in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The difference is amartized on a siraighl-line basis over the life of the
gwap cantract and recognized in the consolidated income statement

Capital

Crdthary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as aquity.

Share premium

The Bank and its subsidiary record the difference between the par value and issue price of
ghares if the issue pricé is higher than par value, and the differénce between the price of
repurchasing of treasury stocks and the re-issue price of treasury stocks 1o the share pramium
account. The expense related to issuing shares will be recorded as a deductible share
premiurm,

Fungs amd resenes

The Bank and its subsidiary have established the following reserves in accordance with the
Law on Credit Institutions No. 3212024/QH15, Decree Mo, 83/2017/ND-CP, and the Bank's
Charier as follows:

% nl’p;::ﬁf affar fax Maximum rate
Capital supplementary rasarve 10% of profit after t&x 100% chariered capital
| Financial reserve 10% of prafit ater tax Mot requlated

Other funds will be allocated from profit after tax. Tha allocaton from profit after tax and the
utization of funds must be approved by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholder. These
reserves are not regulated by statutory requirements and are allowed to be fully allocated

Resarvas of Nam & Bank Assel Manasgement Company Limiled

According 1o Circular 27/2002/TT-BTC dated 22 March 2002, the allocation of retained
eamings, appropriation of profit to reserves, and utilization of reserves of the Company are
implemented in accordance with the reguiations sppled to the Bank and its subsiciary
through which the Company was established.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Recognition of incoma and expenses

Interest incorme and interast expensss

Interest income and interest expenses are recognzed in the consclidated mcome statement
on an accrual basis. The recognition of accrued interest income arising from loans classifiad
in Groups 2 to 5 In accordance with Circular 31 and Decree 86, and loans with repaymant
term resiructuring and lan classification retention according to regulations, will not be
recognized in the conselidated Income statement. Suspended interest income is reversed,
monitored off-statement of financial position and recognized in the consolidated incomea
statament upon actual recaipl

Eges snd commissions income
Fees and commissions are recognized when senvices are renceangd.

Income from invesirmeant

Income frorm invastments is recognized based on the difference between the selling price and
average cost of the securties sold.

Cash dividends from investment are recegnized in the consolidated incarse slatemant when
the Bank and its subsidiary's right to recaive the payment i established. For stock dividends
and bonus sharas, the number of $hares is updated, and no dividend Income Is reccgn@eda in
the consolidated Income stalement

Cher income
Other income s recognized on cash basis

Accarding to Circular 16/2018/TT-BTC issued by tha Ministry of Financa on dated 07 February
2018, which provides guidance on financial regulations for credit institutions and branches of
foreign banks, in the event that accounts receivable previously recorded as income but are
deemed uncollectible or are not receved when due, the Bank and its subsidiary shall
recognize a reduction in revenus if it occurs within the same accounting pencd, If the reduction
does not happen in the same accounting period, they shall recognize such receivables as
expanses and remove them from the statement of financial position to fecilitate collzction.
Cnce the accounts receivable is eventually collected, the Bank and its subsidiary shall record
tham as income in the consolidated income statement.

Coarporate [ncome fax

Current carporate nceme fax

Current income tax assels and liabilies for the current and pricr years are measured at the
amount expacied to be recovered from (or paid to) the taxation authornties. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the amount ama those that are effective as at tha consolidatad
statamert of financial position date

Current income tax is charged or credited to the consolidated incoma statement, except when
it retates to iteme recognized directly to equity, in which case the current income tax is also
accounted in equity

Current incoma fax assels and labilities are offset when there is a legally enforceabis right
for the Bank and its subsidiary o set off current tax assels agalast current tax liabilities, and
when the Bank and its subsidiary intend to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.

The tax refums of the Bank and its subsdiary are subject 1o examination by the tax authoribes.
Due to the ambiguity associated with the applicability of ax 1aws and reguiations, the amaunis
reported in the consolidated financial statements could be changed latéer upon final
detarmination by the lax authoribes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Faoreign currency fransactions

In accordanca with the accounting system of the Bank and its subsidiary. all transactons are
racorded in their original currencies. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are converted into VNI using exchange rates that are in effect at the consolidated
statarnant of financial position (Note 51). Income and expenses arsing n foreign currencies
are converted into WND at the rates that are in effect on the transaction dates. exchange rate
ravaluation resulting from the conversion of monefary assets and liabilities from foreign
eurrency to VD during the year are recognized and tracked under "Exchange rate revaluation’
within "Cwiners’ Equity” in the consobdated statement of financial position. These differences
will be transferred to the consolidated income statement at the end of the financial year

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilties are offset, and the net amount is repored in the
consclidated statermant of financial position if, and only f, tha Bank and i1s subsidiary have a
currently enforceable legal nght to offsal financial assels against financial liabilities or vice-
warsa and thera is an intention 1o sedlle on a net basis, or 1o reaize the assets and seltie the
labiity simulanecusky.

Employee beneilis

Post-ermnplayment benelits

Post-employment benefits are paid to retirad employees of the Bank and its subsidiary by the
Social Insurance Agency, which belongs to the Ministry of Labeur, Invalids and Sccia! Affairs.
The Bank and its subsidiary are required to contribute to these post-employment banefits by
paying social insurance premiums to the Social Insurance Agency at the rate of 17.5% of an
employee's basic salary monthly, alowances and ather additional payments. Besides, the
Bank and its subsidiary have no further cobligations for post-employee benefits.

Voluntary resignation benefis

Under Article 46 of Labor Code No. 45/2019/0H14, effective from 1 January 2021, the Bank
and its subsidiary have the obligation to pay an allowance arising from the voluntary
resignation of employeas. This allowance is equal to one-half month’s salary for each year of
employmant up to 31 December 2008, plus salary allowances (if any), From 1 January 2008,
the average manthly salary used in this calculation is the average monthly salary of the latest
six-month up to the resignation date.

Unemployment insurance

According to current regulations, the Bark and its subsidiary are obliged to pay unamployrmant
insurance at a rate of 1% of its salary fund used for unemploymant insurance purposes and
required to deduct 1% of each employes’s salary to pay simullanecusly to the Unemployment
Insurance Fund.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Earnings per share

The Bank and its subsidiary present basic eamings per share for ordinary shares. Basic
earings per share amounis are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss afler tax
attribulable to ordinary sharehoiders of the Bank and its subsidiary (after adjusting for the
bonus and welfare fund) by the weighted average number of ardinary shares ouistanding
during the year.

It tha shares issued during the year anly change the number of shares without changing the
totai equity, the Bank and its subsidiary will adjust the weighted average nurmber or ondinary
shares currently circulated tothe previous presented on the consolidated financial statements,
resufling in a comesponding adjustment of the opening balence of the basic earnings per
shares.

Segment reporting

A sagment i& a companent determined separately by the Bank and its subsidiary, which is
engaged in providing products or related services (business segmant) or providing products
of sarvices in a particufar economic environment (geographical segment). Each segment is
subiect to risks and retumis that are different from those of other segments. The business
segment of the Bank and its subsidiary are derived mainly from the business segment

Related parties

Parties ane considerad related parties of the Bank and its subsidiary If one party has the ability
to control the other party or exarcise significant infiuence over the ofher pary in making
financal and operating decisions. Additionally, related partes Iinclude situations where, or
when the Bank and its subsidiary along with another party are under common control of under
common significant influence. Related parties can be enterprises or individuals, including
close members of their famibes

CASH AND GOLD
Ending balance  Beginning balance
VANID million VIND mition
Cash an hand in VND 1.009,089 1,001,030
Cash on hand in forsign currencies 138 834 130654
Manetary gold 566 1,285
1,148,489 1,132 968
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) BOS/TCTD-HN
as &t 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

5. BALANCES WITH THE STATE BANK OF VIETNAM [“SBV")
Ending balance  Beginning balance

YND rml.ﬁ’clrl YND miVion
In WHD 13.563 341 18,178,300
In foreign currencies 69,541 EG B4B
13,632,932 16,268,047

Batances with the SBY include settlement and compulsary reserves, The average balances
of the Bank and Its subsidiary with the State Bank of Vietnam are no! less than the compulsory
reserve in any given month The compulscry resanve is calculated by multiplying average
geposit balances of previous month by the compulsory reserve rates.

The compulsory deposit rates are as folows.
31 December 2024 31 Dacombaer 2023

% %
For customers
Demand deposits and term daposts with
maturity tarm less than 12 months in VND 3.00 25.00
Term deposits with maturty em from 12
manths and abowe in YND 1.00 1.00
Demand deposits and term deposits with
maturity 1erm kess than 12 months in forgign
CUITBNGCIES a.00 B.0D
Term deposits with maturity termn from 12
months and above in foresgn currencies 6.00 6.00
Foroverseas credit institutians
Deposits in forsign currencies 1.00 1.00

The actual annual interest retas on batancas with the SBY are as follows:!
31 Dacember 2024 31 December 2023

% p.a % pa
Within compulsory resende in WND 0.80 0.50
Within compulsory reserve in foragn currencies 0.0o Q.00
Over compulsony resense in WYND and foreign
CUMMENCIES 0.00 0.00
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) BOSTCTD-HN
as at 31 Dacember 2024 and for the year then ended

6.1

6.2

6.3

DUE FROM AND LOANS TO OTHER CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

Dusa from othar credit institutions

Ending balance Beginning balance

YND mitlion VND million

Demand deposits 12,021,626 9.267 817
- InwND 11,693,725 5,468,742
In forsign currencies 327 801 799075
Term deposits 24,458,272 11,533,600
- InWND 23,891,000 10,856,000
In foreign curmences 807,272 677,600
36,518,858 20,801 417

The interest rates of due from other cradi institulons at the year-end are as follows:

31 December 2024 31 Decembar 2023

% p.a. % p.&
Demand deposits
- lnyND 0.00-40.50 000 - 0Ed
In forasgn SUffenchEs 0,00« 10D a0d-100
Term deposits
In WD J80-580 0.80 - 4.00
- Inforeign currencias 5.00-510 5.10-530

Loans to other credit institutions

Ending balanca Bagnning balance
VND mikicn YND million

In WD 289,885 1,789,885

Thesa are loans provided to three pecple's credit funds under specially supervision following
the direction of the State Bank of Vietnam st @ 0% intarest rale (2023 09} with an amount of
YND289,835 million {31 December 2023: WND2ZE9, B85 million).

The interest rates of loans to other credit institutions at the year and are as follows:

31 Decamber 2024 371 December 2023
%o p.a % p.a

Loans to other credit institutions
InWHD 0.40 0.00-8.30

Analysis of term deposits and loans to other credit institutions by quality

Ending balance Beginning balance

WY rrullia WINE million

Current 24, TE8 157 13,323,485
Temm depasits 24, 498272 11,533,600
Loans 289 885 1,789 885
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cantinued) BOSTCTD-HM
a5 gt 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended
T. DERIVATIVES AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND {OTHER LIABILITIES)
Tolal contract Total carmying vaite
Aaminal vals {a! exchange rale
{af contractual as &t reporting date)
axchange rate) Asgels Liakiliies
VYWD millicn YIND milfian WND mailies
Currency derivative instruments
as &t 31 December 2024
Swap contracts 4,118,782 (B, 768)
4,118,782 - (6,768
Net amount {6,758
Currency derivative instruments
as at 31 December 2023
Forward confracts 11,807 57
Swap contracls 5752 651 20,308
5,764,558 39,455 .
Het amount 39,455
8. LOANS TO CUSTOMERS
Ending batance  Baginning balance
— WD rmillvary — WMDY miillion
Loans o domestic economic enfities and
individuals 167, 702 005 141,428 637
Paymeants on behalf of custamers 15,087 5,238
Digcounted transferabla instruments and
valuable papers 1773 3,402
Loans financed by grants and entrusted funds 164 164
167,737,997 141,438 441

The annual interest rates of ioans to customer at the year-and are as foliows:

b o oy

37 December 2024

31 Decemiar 2023

% g T .8
In WND 4.00-23.50 3.80 - 23.50
In foreign currencias 300~ 550 320- 7.30

a4



Mam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued) BOSTCTD-HM
as at 31 December 2024 and fogr the year then ended

8. LOANS TO CUSTOMERS (contisnued)

8.1 Analysis of loans by quality
Ending bafance  Beginning balance

VND million WND il i1

Currant 161,359, 366 133,053 654
Specizl mention 24649 6832 5.3495 665
Substandard 264,204 820,688
Daushtful 1.027.409 1,183,425
Less 2,617,266 986,031
167,737,997 141,432,441

8.2 Analysis of loans by original terms
Ending balance  Beginning balance

— WIND rtilfia WAND milion

Shori-term 91,523,908 77,293,520
Pedium-term 27,730,309 o0.841 078
Long-term . 48 483 689 43,203,745
167,737,997 141,438,441

8.3 Analysis of loans by type of customers and ownership

Ending balance Baginnirg balance

VWD million % _ VND million %
Corporate loans 138,327,454 8247 113,313435 B012 b
Other limited companies 80,371,152 4782 61288527 4333 o
Other joint stock companias £7.818921 3447 51,962,750 3674 H'IH
Cooperatives and inter-cooperatives 101,236  0.06 B110 001 g
Private companies 32 0.00 32 000 .J'r
Joini-foreign-invested entarprizas 27 0.00 265 0.00 §
Oihers 35,088 Q.02 52,751 0.0d
Loans to individuals 29,410,643 17.53 28125006 2 19.88

167,737,987 100 141,438.441 100

Ja



MNam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

8.4

LOANS TO CUSTOMERS (continued)
Analysis of laans by industry

Trading, repair of motor vehicles, motorcycles,
and oiher vehicles

Hotels and accommodation senvices

Real estate frading and consulting services
Construchon

Actvites of houssholds as empleyers,
undifferentiated gocds and services producing
actvities of househodds for own use

Agriculture, forestry, and fishenes

Electricity, gas, sieam, and air conditioning supply
Manufacturing and processing

Arts, enteriainment, and recieation

Finance services, banking, and insurance actvities
Transportalion and warehousing

Science and technology activibes

Adminisiralive activites and supporting service
Mining exploration

Education and training

Health and social support achvities

Water supply: sewerage, waste management and
remediation activities

Information and communication

Oihers

PROVISION FOR CREDIT LOSSES

The breakdown of provison for credit losses at the year-end 5 3 follows:

BOSTCTOD-HN

Ending balance  Beginning balance

VND mithion VIND miliicn
71,838,507 £5693,320
23 416,639 15,730,332
19,982,380 12 802 865
12418, 316 10,241 208
12,243, T61 13,848 257
B, 138,305 10,433,935
7,758,688 11,513,182
3,560,168 3,623,355
2 BAT 304 3,883,787
2,147 909 1,020,340
063,362 1,278,707
B77.837 195 048
317,028 344,531
251,707 211,781
150,854 10.813
137,800 53,620
24,518 28,715
1,710 5,464
22,824 12,133
167,737,997 141,438,441

Ending batance Beginning balance
Node VND: milliar YND ﬂ'll'ﬁ'nl_ﬂ
Provision for loans to custemears g1 2.085 107 1,543 800
Prowision for credil risk receivables 16.4 = 4,340
2,065,107 1.548,149
The provision for credit losses at the year-end s as follows:
Current year Pravious yesar
MNots VND mullion WND mmiillion
Provision expensa for loans g1 525251 1,323,280
{(Reversad)/charged for provision for
cradil fisk recevables 16.4 [, 348) 274
Reversed of provision for spacial bonds
issued by VAMG 10.4 = (475,750)
520,802 B4T BO4

= Mk Y W O G g owmk
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued) BOSTCTD-HM
as at 31 December 2024 and for the yesar then ended

9. PROVISION FOR CREDIT LOSSES [continued)

8.1 Pravizion for loans fo cusfomers

The movements of provision for credit losses during the current year are as foliows:

Specific General

provision previgion Tofal

VND mitlion  VND millign ~ WIND million

1 January 2024 430 407 1,063,383 1,543 800

Provisian charged to dunng the year 0 234 185,012 525,251
Provision used to write-off bad debis dunng

fhe year {3,944) o (3, 544)

31 December 2024 826,702 1,238,405 2,065,107

The movements of provizsion for credit losses dunng the previous year are as follows!

Epecific Ganeral

pIrosion s Tolal

VND million  WND mitlion  VND million

1 January 2023 359,510 B84 718 1,244 225

Provision charged 1o dunng the year 1,154,605 168,675 1,323,280
Provision used to write-0ff bad debts during

the year {1,023,708) - {1,023,708)

31 December 2023 480,407 1,063,383 1,543,300

J7
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

10,

10.9

INVESTMENT SECURITIES
Avallablo-for-gale socuritios

Debt securities

Government bonds (a)
Bonds and deposit cedificates issued by other
domestic credit institutions (&)

Bonds issued by domestic esonomic entities

Equity securities

Equity secuntias issued by other domestic credit
institutions

Equity securities issved by domestic aconarmic
entities

Provislon for available-for-sale securities
Dirninution pfﬂ'ﬂﬂ-ﬂn
Ganeral proy B

BOSTCTOD-HMN

Ending balance  Baeginming balance
WVND miliion VIND miition
2.867.573 3084083
7,280,000 G 582 574

- 300, 00
10,147,573 12,966,667
103,358 103,364
38,535 40,772
142,304 144 141
10,289,877 13,110,808
{14, 794) (16.585)

- _(2.250)

{14,794) (168,845)
10,275,083 13,091,863

(a) Government bonds have tarms ranging from fiteen (15) years to thirty (30) years and
bear interest at rates ranging from 3.60% pa o 7.80% pa

{b) Bonds issued by other credit institutions have terms ranging from twenty-four (24) months
to thitty-six (36) menths and earn interest at rates from 5 50% p.a. o 6 80% p.a. Deposit
certificates ssued by other credt insttutions have terms ranging from six (8) manths to
twelve (12} months and earn interast at rates from 3.00% p.a. 1o 6.80% pa.

The listing status of available-for-sale securities is as follows:

Debt securities
Listed
Lnlisted

Equity securities
Unlisted

Ending balance  Beginning baiance
VIND miion WD rmdllion
2,857,573 3,084,093
7,290,000 EH;-EJE_’ET&F
10,147 573 12,966 667
142,304 144 141
142,304 144,141




MNam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conbnued) BOSITCTD-HN
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

10.

10.2

10.3

INVESTMENT SECURITIES (continued)

Held-to-maturity securities
Ending balanrce  Beginming balance
= WG mdifon VD miition
Government bonds (&) B 266 428 8977613
Debt securities by ather domestic credit )
institutions /[b) 2,300,346 990,201
10,566,774 10,976,814

{g) These are Governmentibonds that have terms from ten (10) years to thitty (30} years and
earn interest ai rates ranging from 2.20% p.a. b0 8.30% p.a,

j5] These are bonds msued by other domestic cradit institutions that have terms ranging from
two |2) years to fifteen (15) years and earn interest at rates ranging from 5.50% 1o 7.60%
p.a. Deposit certificates issued by other credit instiutions have t1@rms ranging from six (&)
manths and earn interest at rates 5.50% pa

The listing status of held-to-maturity securites is as follows:

Ending balance Beginning balance

VIND! million VD miliion
Debt securities
Listed 8,666,774 10,776,814
Unfisted 1,900,000 200,000
10,566,774 10,976,814

Analysis of securities classified as credif risk assets by quaiity

Ending balance  Beginming balanoe
WND milfian YND millicn

current 8,190,000 10,831,775

35
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {contnued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

10.  INVESTMENT SECURITIES (continued)

10.4  Provision for investment securiiios

BASTCTD-HM

The movemant of provision for investment securites during the year are as follows:

Crirent year Praviaus yasr
VND miign  VND milion
1 January 2024
Available-for-sale securities 18,845 49825
Special bond issued by VAMC - 637,815
18,845 687,440
Utilization of provision
Spacial bonds issued by VAMC 1162.085)
- (162,065)
Provision charged/{reversal) in the year
Available for sale securities r4.051) (30, 7840)
Special bonds issued by VAMG = (475,750)
{4,051) (506,530)
41 December 2024
Available for sale secusities 14,794 18,845
14,7494 18,845
11. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
Breakdown of long-lerm investments al cost are as follow:
Ending balance Beginning balance
VD miflicn WHE millian
Bata Securities Incorporation 74,800 74,800
Other joint stock companias 148211 10,520
224,011 85,320

The movements of the provision for long-tenm investment during the year are as follows:

Fravious year
WND mifticn

Current year
WD muillion
1 January 2024 -
Frovision charged durng the yaar 81,252
31 December 2024 81,252

S0
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |continued)
as a1 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

13 FINANCE LEASES FIXED ASSETS

Cost
Beginning balance
Increase during tha year

Transfer to tangible fixed assets
Ending balance

Accumulated depreciation
Beginning balance
Charges for the year

Transfer to tangible fixed assels
Ending balance

MWet book value
Begnning balance

Ending balance

BOSTCTD-HN

Vehicles
LMD mmillion

158,313
1.837
(1,233}

158317

B4 57T
26,073
{1.078)

79,572

104,335

T8.74a

The Bank and #s subsidiary |sase some motor vehicles under various finance lease
agreemants. At the end of the lease term, the Bank and its subsidiary have the option 1o

purchase the motor vehiclas.

42
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

a5 at 51 December 2024 and for the year then ended

1E.

16.
16.1

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BOSTCTD-HN

Investment propertes. including land use rights with indefinte terms and bulkdings, were
acquired by Asset Management Limited Company - Nam A Commercial Joint Steck Bank
through bidding on foreciosed assels. These properties are held for the purpose of earning
rental income or for capital appreciation. However, due to the lack of information at the end of
the accounting year, the Board of Directors cannot eslimate the farr value of investment
procerties, As a result, the fair value of the Investment property has nol been formally

assassed and determined at the reparting date.

Cost

Beginning balance
Increase during the year
Disposal

Ending balance
Met book value

Beginning balance
Ending balanca

OTHER ASSETS
Receivables

Receivables in fast money transier
Constructions in progress (i)

Deposit, morigage, pledge

Orperating advances

Cash collateral agreement with card
cofparations

Receivables from card payment activities
Recerables from debt trading

Other recanables

I}  Conslructions in progress include;

Bulldings and struciures
Machinery and equipmeant
Transporiation vehicles
Purchase of other assels

Buitdings amd

Biruciures

VND mitlion

15,871

(7,354}

21,822

a0 4359

15971

30,435

Ending balance  Beginning balance
VWD million VND mition
440,683 515,070
178 G44 283,571
136,568 140,778
85,841 J63, 504

47 T85 30,250
26,233 326389

- BED 464

2,433 1,033
915,487 1,466,711
Ending balance  Beginning baiance
WYIND milion WD millian
126,330 250,038
26,832 2387

24 734 =
1648 1,158
179,644 283.5T

e
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
a3 &l 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

16.
16.1

16.2

16.3

OTHER ASSETS {continuad)

Receivables (continuad|

The movement of constructions in progress during the year are as follows:

Beqginning balance

Additions

Transfer to tangiole fixed assets
Transfer to intangible fixed assets
Transfer 1o finance lease fized assels
Transfer o instrument and ools

Transfer to prepaid and operating expenses
Ending balance

interast and fee receivables

Interest receivable from credit activities
Interest receivable from invasiment securities
Interest receivable from deposits

Interest receivable from swap coniracis
Interest receivable from lorwand contracts
Fee receivables

Other assets

Prepaid and defarred expansas (i)
Foreclosed assets awailing resalution (i}
Tooks and supples

BOSTCTD-HN

Curant year Frevious year
W milivan YIND million
203,571 531,850
B01,650 520,811
(588, 865) (457.681)
{2,391) (163.0635)

- (9,346)

(10,345) (19.675)
(13.975) (108,513)
179,644 283,5T1
Ending balance Beginning balance
VND mullion VND mitlion
2635625 1,577,705
332,084 450,910
31,181 21,807
1,078 5,684

- g’

263 20,170
3,001,116 2,076,285
Ending balahce Bsginning balance
VND million WNDY millicn
603,982 578,172
152902 103,888
23,425 20,748

TRO. 289 702,787

{il Prepaid and deferred expenses primanly include costs for asset of leasing and repairs,
costs for purchasing tools and supphes. and other types of prepaid expenses.

(i) The following are the details of foreclosed assets that have bean transfermed ownership
to other credit institutions and are awaiting resolutan:

Shares
Real estalas

45

Ending balance Beginning balance

YIND million YIND miilian
&0.684 H2 047
72218 21,822

152,502 103,869
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cantinued)

16.

T6.4

7.

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended BOSTCTD-HNM
OTHER ASSETS (continued)
Prowvision for other assols
Prowvision for other assets includes:
Ending balance  Beginning balance
VIND milfian VIND million
Provision for credit losses - 4,348
General provision - 274
Specific provision - 4 075
Provision for diminution 38,175 28,674
39,176 33,023
Changes in the provision for ather assats during the year are s follows.
Current yoar Previous year
VMND million VYND million
Beginning balance a3 023 26,623
Diminution provision reversal for the year 10,502 6 126
[Reversed)/charged for the general prowision
of dabi trading (4,348} 274
Ending balance 39,176 33,023
BEORROWINGS FROM THE GOVERNMENT AND THE SBV
Ending balance  Beginming balance
VD millon WD ruliton
Bomowing under credit facilities 156 345
Boerrowing through discount and rediscount of
valuable papers (1) 2 577 456 -
2,677 611 145

{1 This iz a bormowings from the SBY through a term ppen market operation with a principal

term of 7 days and an interest rate of 4.00% p.a

4
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cantinued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended BOS/TCTD-HMN

18, DUE TO AND BEORROWINGS FROM OTHER CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

18.1  Due to other credit institutions

Ending balance  Beginning balance

WND mullion WL millian
Demand deposits 11,524,751 8,014 487
In WMD 11,524 063 2.014 467
In foreign currencies BEB3 =
Term deposits 26,190,543 14,802,500
in VND 24,141 000 13,834 500
in foreign currencies 2,048,543 968.000

37,715,294 22,616,967

The annual interest rates applicable to due to other credit Insbtutions are as follows:

31 Decemnber 2024 31 December 2023

%p.a % pa
Term deposits in WND 380-550 08d- 500
Term deposits in foreign curmencies 445-510 530

18,2 Borrowings from other credit institutions
Ending balance  Beginning belgnce

W rmliian YND miltion

Borrowings from other credit institutions
In WD a6z 260 65,128
Pladge, mongage loans 917,875 -
Finance leasas 44 685 65,126
In foreign currencies 518,781 1,139,581
1,481,021 1.204,707

The annual interast rales applicable to borrowings from othar credit institlutions are as follows:

31 December 2024 3! Decomber 2023

% p.a. ¥%p.a
In WMND 10.00 - 10 55 B05-12.05
In foreign currancias 0.75- 502 075 638

47
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

18.1

DUE TO CUSTOMERS

Analysis by type of deposits

Demand deposits

Damand daposits in VMD

Demand deposits in foreign curmancies
Demand savings deposits in VND

Demand savings deposits in foreign cuffances

Term deposits

Term deposits in VND

Term deposits in fareign Currencies

Term savings deposits in VKD

Term savings deposits In forgign currencies

Deposits for specific purposes
Deposits for specific purposes in VND
Deposits for specfic purposes in foreign
CUImencies

Margin deposits
Margin deposits in WVND

BOBTCTD-HN

Ending balance  Beginning balance
VND million VNG milion
9. TE0.047 9 8467 185

0 509 &a04 8802907
211,925 364 457
37.851 24,385

SE7 636
147,840,718 134,373,843
30,157 878 28,055,149
2098412 102,080
116,804 420 104,511,347
564,503 708,287
497,745 769,501
457 722 TEY. 715

23 1,976

235,493 268,026
235483 268,026
158,334,003 145,428 945

Thie annual interest ratas apolcable 1o due to customears are as follows

Demand deposits in VND

Demand savings deposits in WND

Demand deposits in foreign cumencies
Dremand savings deposits in forelgn curencies
Tarm deposits in VHND

Term savings deposiis in WND

Term depasils In faralgn curancies

Term savings deposits in forgign cumencies
Deposits for specific purposes in YND
Deposits for specific purposes in foreign
CUrTencies

Margin deposits in VND

8

A1 Depember 2024

31 Decamber 2023

%8 0.4 Yo D8
0.00- 050 000 - 0.50
Q.50 0.50

0.00 0.00

.00 0.00
0.50-11.20 0.50 - 12,20
0.50 - 12.00 0.50-13.10
.00 0.00

.00 0.00

0.20- 0.50 0.20- 1.00
.00 0.09

0.20- 8.70 0.00 = 10.00

o] ot
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MNam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CGONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as al 31 December 2024 and for the yvear then ended

19. DUE TO CUSTOMERS (continuad)

19.2  Analysis by customers and type of business

Due to economic entities

Other joint stock companes

Other limited companies

One-member imited liability companies of which
100% charter capital is held by the State
Public administrative units, agencies of tha
Communist Party, unlons, and associations
State-ownad companies
Joint-foreign-invested enterpnzes

Partnership

Private companies

Cooperatives and inter-cooperatives

The joint stock company of which over 50% of
share capital or the total voling share capital is
held or coordinated by the State under the
company's charter

Due to individuals
Dthers

BOSTCTD-HM

Ending balance  Beginning balance
WND millian WND million
32,956,759 33,231,409
14,023 4580 15,408,078
8,807 5585 68,631,774
3,624 025 4, 156,586
1570633 4132212
895 720 1,085,544

426 58 G616, 324
21,170 40, 505

284 840 40,187

14 914 26160

267 785 1,003,425
123,735,973 110,553,797
1,641,271 1,643,739
158,334,003 145,428 945

20. GRANTS, ENTRUSTED FUNDS AND LOANS EXPOSED TO RISKS

in WND
In foreign currencies (i)

Ending balance Begwnning balance
VND mullion WND milion
ar 1,865

1.075 377 1,064 800
1,076,174 1,066 465

{fi This i3 a part of entrusted funds in USD that are used 1o finance projects with purposes

in compliance with the agresment.
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Mam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)

@s &t 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

1.

22,
22.1

VALUABLE PAPERS ISSUED

Cerificate of deposite lass than 1 year

Certificate of deposits over 1 year
Bonds having term aver 1 year

BOSTCTD-HN

Ending balance  Beginning balance

VYND mifion YND mifion
& 000,000 5,600,000
12,046,240 0,148 568
3,960,000 3,710,000
20,006,540 16,458,868

The annual interest ratas applicable to valuable papers issued are as folows:

Cerificats of deposile lass than 1 year

Cartificate of deposgils gver 1 year
Bonds having lerm over 1 year

OTHER LIABILITIES

interast and fee payables

Inferest on saving depesits
Interest on deposits

interest on valuable papers
Interest on grants, entrusted funds
Inferest on borrawings

Interest on swap contracts
interest on forward contracts

A1 December 2024 31 December 2023

% p.a. %pe
350 - 580 4.90- 9.50
554 - 6.00 520-11.70
5.30-T.80 440- 9.70

Ending balance Begmning balance
WND million VIND mittion
2,241 542 2913772

B28 963 675 464

804, 535 662,245
12.097 TATS

7.850 16,675

521 6,130

- 8

3,385,608 4,282,773

o
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

2. OTHER LIABILITIES (continued)

22.2  Other labilities

BOLTCTD-HN

Ending bafence Baginning baignce

+: VNG rmilicn YIND million
Internal payables 433 128 325,463
Payables to employees 386,240 271,885
Bonus and welfare fund (i} 106,588 53476
Extarnal payables 753.903 1,069,914
Payables o fast remittance ransaction 299180 580,478
Taxes and other payables to the State Budget 289.778 366,965
Payments pending in payment operations 75898 26,174
Payables related to card payment servicas 50.118 43,674
Cash held in trus! and waiting for setlement 15,367 17472
Othars N 23,563 35,151
1,247,031 1,298,377

{it The movement of the banus and welfare fund during the year is as follows:
Current year Previous year
WD e YIND milticn
Beginning batance 53,478 26,145
Appropriation in the year G0,000 28 607
Utilization during the year S {6,550) {2,274}
Eﬂdlﬂﬂ balance 1“5.&“ 53.4?3

3. STATUTORY OBLIGATIONS

31 Decempber _Mavemant during the year 31 Decamber
2023 FPayables Paid 2024
VND million  VIND mifforr VWD millicn VND milion
Value added tax 69,135 B3 388 {148 315) 4184
Corporale income tax 280,048 933 305 {950,901} 256,493
Other faxes 28,735 178 475 [17&140) 28,074
Parsgnal imcome tax 2E 648 163,590 (163 .603) 25633
Withholding tax 3089 74,742 (14,390) 3441
Licenzo fas - 147 {147) =
Others - 16,152 (16,134) 13
366,965 1,216,304 (1,293 490) 289,779

a1
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended BOSTCTD-HM

23,

23.7

STATUTORY OBLIGATIONS {continued)

Current corporate income fax

The Bank and its subsdiary have the obligations to pay corporate income tax ('CIT") at a rate of
20% of taxable profits for the curment year (previous year: 20%),

The tax returns of the Bank and fs subsidiary are subjacl 10 examination by the taxation
authorities. Since the application of tax laws and regulations to many types of ransactions s
susceptinle fo varying interpretations. the amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements could be changed st & later date upon fingl cetermination by the laxaton
authorities.

The current tax payable is based on taxable profit for the current year. Taxable income differs
from profit as reperted In the consolidete income statement because # excludes taxable
income of deductible expenses fram priar years due to differences between the Bank and its
subsidiany's accounting policies and the current income tax palicies. It also excludes non-
taxable income or non-deductible expanses. The current CIT payables are calculated based
on the statutory fax rates apphcable at the end of the year

Tha ealeulation of current CIT during 1hwe year 2 as foflows

Currant year Previous yaar

_ VND miflin VND million

Profit before tax 4,545,198 3,303,952

At applicable CIT tax rate of 200 0% 0RO 660, T80
Adpssimenits lo decrease

- Income from untaxable dividends (8} 8
Adiusiments fe Increase

- Men-daductible expenses 20,510 21,561

- Adjustment CIT for previous years 8,721 2

Estimated CIT expenses for the year 538,305 682,333

52
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MNam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

MOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 Decembar 2024 and for the yoear then ended

BOSTCTR-HN

4. OWHNER'S EQUITY (continued)
The movement of the Bank and ils subsidiany's reserves during the year are presanted beiow.
Capital
Firancial  supplemeaniary
FasEve resene  Ofher reserve Tl:fifa'
ftems VWND mitlign YND rllian VMD millon VND miliion
41 December 2023 858 706 475 0BG 11,939 1447 731
Appropriation to reserves 360,709 250,708 5,243 726,661
11 December 2024 1,317,415 839,795 17,182 2,174,392
Details of the Bank and its subsidiary 's shares ae as lollows:
37 Decamber 2024 37 December 2023
Charas Shares
Mumber of registerad shares 1,272 650 553 1,058 041 615
MNumbar of shares ssuad
- Drdinary shames 1.372 550 553 1,058,041,615
Mumbsar of outstanding shares
= Drfingry sharnes 1.372 550 553 1.058.041.615
25, BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are caloulated by dividing the nel profit after tax for the vear
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank and its subsidiary (after adustments for the
appropriation of bonus and welfare funds) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
puistanding during the year

The et profit afier tax used 1o calculate basic eamings per share Previous year has been
adjusied to refiect the actual allocation of the bonus and weifare fund for the year 2023, in
accordance with the resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders on 29 March 2024,

The infarmation for basic earmings per share calculation of the Bank and its subsidiary 15 as
follows:

Current year Previous year
VND million YHD mullion
Met prafit affributatle fo ordinary shareholders
of the Bank and its subsidiany (VND rmillion) 3.607.093 Z2821.61%
Adiustment for appropriaton to bonus and
weifare funds (VND million) = {60,000}
Wet profit altributable o ordinary shareholders
for basic eamings per share calculation (WMND
o) 3,607,003 2961615
Weighted average number of outstanding
nrdlnarr shares [shares) 1,334 E45 B35 1.322 580 553
2.7T02 1,937

Baslc sarnings per share (VND/share)

F o I T
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Mam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continuead)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

27,

INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME

Interest incema fram loans

Interest income from investing securiies
Interest ncome from deposit

Interest income from guarantee services
Interest incame from credit activities

INTEREST AND SIMILAR EXFENSE

Interest expanse on deposits
Interest expense on valuablé papers
Interest expanse on bormowings
Interest expense on finance lease
Expenses for other credit activities

MNET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Fee and commission income
Saltlement sevices

Account senices

Assel presarvation services
Property rental services
Consulting services

Insurance agency fees
Treasury services

Others

Fee and commission expenses
Setilerment sarvicas

Treasury S&rvicd

Censulting senvices

Others

BOSTCTD-HN

Current year Prawvious year
WD million VD miitlion
15,437,773 17,2465 142
1,120,944 1,075,430
616024 616,668
103,145 104,547
131,821 295,553
17.411,707 18,338,340
Current year Prewvious year
NG million WND million
7,086 386 11,306,027
1,526,634 1,004,283
214 817 213,260
5,883 7.208
40,357 69,263
9,473,887 12,691,031
Currant year Previous yaar
VND mullion VND mitfion
951,804 1,141,500
B21.452 T17,001
204 242 188, 388
3,767 39,536
43,251 AT AT0
10,536 31,123
3,344 12,867

2,583 3,124
52,633 113,981
{390,838) |551,468)
{372.541) {538 810)
{3,571} (3,507)
{4,981) (7.185)
(9.745) (4,267)
560,966 590,031
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended BOS/TCTD-HN

28.NET GAIN FROM TRADING OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Cumrant year Prawous yoar

VND mibien — VND million

Income from trading of forelgn currencies 156,345 271,855
Income from spot foreign exchange trading 126,065 207,706
Incame from currency demvatives 29.875 63,783
Income from gold trading a7h 386
Expense for trading of foreign currencies (153,538) (257 ,248)
Expense for spot foreign exchange trading (125,102) (87 285)
Expense for currency derivatives (28,.328) (165 666)
Expense for gold trading (108) (287)
2,807 14,607

30, HET GAIN FROM TRADING SECURITIES

Current yesr Prewvious year
YKD milicn VD milan

Income from trading of trading securilies 264 =

. NET GAIN FROM INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Curren! year Pravious year

YND million VIND rilfion

Income from trading of investment securities 120,888 70,882
Expense from frading of investment securities {1,182) (42, 385)
Reversad provision for avallable-for-sale sacurities 4,051 30,780
123,787 59,287

J2. NET GAIN FROM OTHER OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CLment year Previous year

WIND rreillicn YND mitlhion

Other operating Income 467 824 499,520
Income from recovery of loans previously written-off 465,822 455,695
Net income from disposals of fixed assets 1,181 1,158
Oither income 811 1,467
Other operating expense (42,027} (168,581)
Contract terminaton expenss - (B9, 000)
Value-added tax late payment expanse - 84,701}
Eponsoring expanse (24 803) (S 0B8]
Other expenses (17 .424) {3,812}
425797 332,939

i ME



Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)

33

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended BOBITCTD-HN
MET GAIN FROM INVESTMENT IN OTHER ENTITIES
Cumreni year Bravious year
VRD rruifion VD miitian
Equity investiment 22 38
OPERATING EXPENSES
Current yaar Pravious year
VND milion VND million
Personnel expenses 2,103,964 1,888,271
Salary and allowances 1,8BE5 508 1,706 557
Salary-related allowances 120,451 112,268
Allowances and others 117,807 65 44T
Depreciation expenses on fixed assots 175,048 145,802
Cm‘lnr operating expense 1,706,751 1,458,380
General managemeant expense 429423 366,073
Advertising, marketing, promotion, and
enferiainmeant 351 520 208,162
- Dffice rental 324,974 283,711
- Insurance expenses for cusiomer deposits 185,245 174 B45
- Repair and maintenance assets 181,454 165,693
- Other assets expenses 43,118 45,312
- Printing materials expenses 37,082 41,120
- Business nps expenses 24727 19,426
Unlon axpenses 3,107 43,536
Reversed provision for expenseas {excuding
previsions for credit losses and nvestment) 91,754 6,126
- Other expenses 19,886 14177
3,085,763 1,492 455

45,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated cash flows siatement comprise the
fellowing balances in the consolidaled statement of financial position:

Ending balance Beginning balance

Cash and gold

Balancas with tha SBY

Due from 2nd Inans to ofher credit institutions
with tarms of less than 3 months

WIND miliian VD miilicn

1,148 484 1,132,065
13,632 332 16,268,047
36,519,898 20,801,417
51,301,319 38,202,433

a7
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

HOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
a5 at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended BOSTCTD-HN

6.

3t
I7.1

ar.2

EMPLOYEES' INCOME

Curreni yaar Previous year
WND million ¥ND million
|. Total number of employees (pErsons) 5.298 B 128
ll. Employees' income (VND mifion)
1. Total salary 1,865,606 1,708,557
2 Bonus 6,550 B 1,080
3. Total income {1+2) 1,872,156 1,707,647
4 Average monthly salary
{VWND million/persaon} 29 28
5 Awverage monthly mcome
{¥ND millionperson) 28 28

TYPES AND BOOK VALUE OF COLLATERALS
Assels and valuable papers, mortgaged, pledged and discounted, re-discounted

The types and book value of customers’ collaterals at the year-end are as follows:

Ending balance Beginning balance

WIND rmiifion VD miflion

Real esiate properlies 147,796 464 146,305,613
Valuable papers 60,630,660 67,691.303
Movable assels 4,114,804 4,331,318
Other assets 81,085,852 64,540 019
293,628,010 282,878,154

Aszots and valuable papers of the Bank mortgaged, pledged and discounted, re-
discounted

The breakdown of financial assets morgaged, pledged by the Bank and iis subsidiary for
credit granting activities with the SBY, as well as those discounted, barrowed against or
ransferred under purchase and repurchase agresments with SBY and other cred?
institutions, is as follows

Encing balance Baginning balance
YAKD mificon YNNG milion

Valuable papers 2,510,000 7,379,000




Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank
NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the vear then ended

38,

BOSTCTO-HM

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

In the nommal course of businese the Bank and its subsidiary are parties 1o financial
nstruments that are recorded as off-statement of financial posiion ilems. These financial
mstruments mainly comprise foreign exchange commitmeanis, guaraniee commitmants, and
commercial latters of credit. These instrumanis invalve elements of cradit nisk for the: Bank
and its subsidiary, which are not reflected out of the items recognized n the consalidated
statemant of financial position

Credi risk for off-stetement of financial positien financial instruments is defined as the
possibility of sustaining a loss for the Bank and its subsidiary becausa any other party 1o a
financial instrument fails to perform in accordance with the terms of the confract.

Financla! guaraniees are cenditional cammitments kssued by the Bank and its subsidiary to
guarantee the performance of a customer to a third-parly. This includes guaranteas for
borrowings, settlement. perfarming contracis and bidding. The credit nsk involved in issuing
guarantees is essentially the same as that involved in extending loans to other customers.

Dafarred payment letters of credits represent the amounts at rsk should the contract be fully
performed but the client defaults in repayment to the bensficiary. Deferred payment letiers of
credit that defaulted by clients are recognized by the Bank and its subsidiary as granting of a
compulsery loan with a commespanding liability represanting the financial obligation of the Bank
and its subsidiary to pay the beneficiaries and to fullil the guarantor obligation.

The Bank and its subsidiary reguire margin deposits to support credit-reiated financial
instruments when 1§ is deemed necessary, The margin deposit reguired varies from nil [o
100% of the value of a granted commitment, depending on the creditwarthiness of clients as
assessed by the Bank and its subsidiary,

The currency trading commitments Include commitments to purchase, sell at spot and
CUMMency swap commitments. Commitments to purchase o, sefl al spot are commitments to
purchase, orf, sall currency at the deall exchange rate and make payment within 2 (two) days
since transaction date. Cumency swap commitments involve purchasing and selling with the
same notional prncipal amount (using anly bwo currencies) to one client. This includes one
transaction for term payment at spot and one transaction for term payment in the future with
the exchange rate of both transactions determined at spot transaction date

Detaits of outstanding carmmitments and contingent liabilities at the year-and are as follows

Ending balance Beginning balance

WIND) milian VND millian

Loan guarantees 3,658,967 .
Foreign exchange commitments B,075,790 14,684 595
Commitments on curansy swvap ransachion 8075 780 12 705,195
Spot foreign exchange commilmants - buy - 2,420,000

- Zpol faredgn exchange commilmants - sal - 188, 400

Letters of credit 549,681 6,116,593
Deferred fetters of credi S49, 881 8116, 593
Other guarantess 3,689,898 9,884,653
«  Spitement guarantes S20.51T 684 543
Contract performance guaranies 190, 387 231,470

Bid guarantes 13,858 g 752
Other guarantess 2844 938 B.959, 5BE
Othar commitments 143.663 =
16,104,005 30,685, 841

Lass Mamgin degosits (13, 448) (38,9101
Centingent liabilitles and commitmants 16,090,557 30,656,931
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MNam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continuid)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year than ended BOGTCTD-HN

a8.

41.

42,

INTEREST AND FEE RECEIVABLE BUT NOT YET COLLECTED

Detalls of outstanding interest and fee receivable but not yet collected at the year-end are as
follows

Ending balance  Beginning balance
VND miftion VND millian

Interest but not yet collected 2,312,141 2,019,149

WRITTEN-OFF DEBTS
Details of outstanding written-off dabls at the year-end are as follows:

Endirg baiance  Beginning balance

VNDmillign VKD mition

Written-off debis under monitoring 2,507,976 2,673,642
Frincipal 1,278,537 1,735,034
Irilerest 1,228,041 538808
Others - B05 BO5
2,508,183 2,674,247

ASSETS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS
Details of outsianding assets and other documents at the year-end are as follows:

Ending balance  Beginning balance

VIND rrlidcn VNG million
Dther assets kept for customers 3,350,780 2,188,083
Caollataral azssts received as d substitute for
the fulfitiment of abligations by the guarantod,
pending resciution 24 662 13,702
Gther valuable documents under safekeeping 6,748 430 0,268 734
10,123 872 11,470,531

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions include all transactions undertaken with other entities to which the
Bank and its subsidiary are related. Parties are considered &s related partes if one party is
able to confrol over or significantly influence to the other party in making decision of financial
and operational policies. A parly is deamed to be related to the Bank and its subsidiary if

(@) Directly, or indirectly through one or more intermedianies the party

» controls, is controlled by, or s undar common control with the Bank and its subsidiary
{inchuding parents and subsidiary);

»= hasan interest (owing 5% or more of the charter capital or vobng share capial) in the
Bank and iis subsidisry that gives it significant influence over the Bank and is
subsidiary,

= has jonl control over the Bank and its subsidiary,



Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS {centinued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

42.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cortinued)

BOSTCTD-HN

{b} The party is ajoint venture in which the Bank and its subsidiary are veniures {owning over
11% aof the chaner capital or voting share capital but is not a subsidiary of the Bank);

ic} The party i5 @ member al the key management personnal of the Bank and is subsidiary,

(d) The party is a close member of the family of any person referred 1o in (a) or (c), or

(2] The party ts an entity that is controlled, jointly contrelled, or significantly influencad by, or
for which significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly. any

parson raferred ta in (g or (d)

Remuneration for members of the Board of Directors, Board of Supervision, Board of

Managemaent of the Bank, and related parfies to thess individuals.

Salary and allowances of the Board of Managements
In which:

- Mr. Tran Khai Hoan (from 30 March 2024)

- Mr. Tran Ngoc Tam (o 28 March 2024)

= Othar mambers

FRemuneration for members of the Board of Direclors
I wihiich,

= Mr. Tran Mgo Phug Vu

- Mr, Tran Mgoc Tam

= Ms. Vo Thi Tuyel Nga

- Me, Tran Khai Hoan {from 28 March 2024)

- Mr, Ngirpen Due Minh Tr

=Mz, Nguyen Thi Thanh Dac

- M= Le Thi ¥im Anh

Remuneration for members of the Board of Supervision

Salary and allowances of the Board of Managemants
in which

- M. Tran Ngos Tam

= CHfrar rrembers

Remuneration fer members of the Board of Directors
In which:

= Mr. Tran Ngo Phuc Vu

- Mr. Tran Ngoe Tam

= Mz Vo Thi Tuyet Nga

- Mr. Nguyen Duc Mink Tn

= Ms. Nguwen Th Thamh Dao

-Ms. Le Thi Kim Anh

Remuneration for members of the Board of Supervision

61

Cument year
VNG milion

14530

2104
3.956
28,570

17,364

4,864
3,498
4,132
513
2,900
F2s
725

4.205

Frevious year
WA Frndlnen

34,091

7,035
27,058

11,700

3800
650
3.250
2,600
650
B50

3,770

5
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MNam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

HOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended BOSTCTO-HM

42,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS [continuad)
Signifizant transactions with related parties in the current year are as follows:

{a) Member of Board of Directors, Board of Supervision and Board of Managements

Cinrent year Pravicus year

WMD) millian VNG milifon

Loan interest income = 527
Imleresl expense on deposits (E20) (553)

{b) Other related paries (%)

CLrrent Wear Previous year

WD millicn VNG millicn

Loan intarest incoma 3675 A BBOD
Interest axpense on deposils 4,173} (5,071}
Income fram other achvitiss 104 .
Expanga for cther activities (233) +

(% Othar related parties include those associated with the Bank’s Member of Board of
Directors, Board of Supervisors and Board of Managements, businesses in which
thess indwiduals hold, directly or indirectly, a substantial portion of the voling mghts
or through which they can exercise significant influence over the Bank.

Recaivables and payables with related parties at the year-end are as follow:
Ending baiance Beginning balance

Related party Transactions VND million VND million
Mamber of Board of  Deposits (38,388) (29,224}
Directors, Board of Loans - 16

Superyisian and Beard Acerual interss] axpanss

of Managements from deposits {154) (148}
Other related parties  Deposits (B5.a28) (51.520)
Loans 58,214 48 851
Accrual iInlerest expense
from deposits {1.053) {1,453}
Accrual interest income
from loans 2561 2TE

62
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Mam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {contnued)]
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

43,

BOS/TCTD-HN

CONCENTRATION OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND OFF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION ITEMS BY GEOGRAPHICAL REGIONS

Assets at 31 December 2024

Due fram and loans io cther credit instiulions
Loans to customers - gross

Investmant securites - gross

Long-term investments - gross

Liabilities at 31 December 2024

Due to and borrowings from

other credit institutions

Due to cusiomers

Dervathves and omes financial fabiltes

(Total transection value amount (o contract
Grants. entrusted funds, and loans axposed 1o
rsks

“aluabie papers izsued

Off consolidated statement of financial
position commitments at 31 December 2024

Domestic Qverseas Tolal
WND millisn  VND mifion ~ VIND million
215,359,910 268,532 225628442
36,541.251 268532  36808,783
167,737,997 - 167,737,907
20,856,651 - 20,856,651
224 011 - 224,011
221,340,550 1,391,664 222,732,214
J8 850,028 318,287 38,196,315
158,332,003 - 158,334,003
4,118,782 = 4,118,762
TaT 1.075.377 1,076,174
20,006,940 20,008,540
16,090,557 - 16,090,557
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued|
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then endad BOS/TCTD-HN

45,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Rick is inherent in the acliviies of the Bank and its subsidiary ard is managed through an
angoing process of identification, measuremant, and monitoring, subject to risk limits and
other contrals. This risk management process is oritical to the continuing profitability of the
Bank and its subsidiary, and each individual within the Bank and its subsidiary is accountable
for risk prevention within their respective responsibiities, The Bank and 48 subsidiary are
exposed to credit risk, fiquidity risk. and market sk (which further subdivided info trading and
nen-frading risks) The Bank and &s subsidiary are also subject to varous cparational nsks.

The indepandent risk control process does not include business rigks such as changes in the
environment, technalagy, and industry. The Bank &nd its subsidiary’s policy is to monitor those
business risks through their strategic planning process.

[ Fizk management siriciurg

The Board of Direciors = ulimately responsible for identifying and controlling nisks.
However, each individual member is responsible for managing and manitaring risks.

(i} Board of Direptars

The Board of Directors ie rasponsible for menitoring the overall risk managament process
within the Bank and ifs subsidiary

(i) Risk Menagement Commilies

The Risk Management Committee advises the Board of Directors in the pramulgation of
proceduras and policies under its jurisdiction relating to risk management in the Bank and
its subsidiary's activities,

The Risk Management Commitiee analyses and provides warnings on potential nisks that
may affect the Bank and its subsidiary's operafion, along with preventive maasures in the
short term az well as long term

The Risk Managerment Committes reviews and evaluates the appropnatensss and
efiecliveness of the rigk management of procedures and palicies of the Bank and iis
subsidisry, making recommendations to the Board of Directors for the improvement of
proceduras, policies, and operational strategies.

(i) Board of Supervision

Tha Board of Supervision has the responsibility to conirol the overall risk management
process within the Bank and its subsidiary

{v) Internal Audit

According to the annual internal audit plan, business processas thraughout the Bank and
its subsidiary are audited annually by the intemnal audit function. This function examines
bath the adeguacy of the procedures and comphiance with the Bank and s subsigiary's
procedures. Internal Audit discusses the results of all assessmenis with the Board of
Directors and reports its findings and recommendations o the Boand of Supervision

(i} Risk measurement and reponing systems

The Bank and s subsiciary risks using a method that considers both the expected loss
likely fo arise in normal circumstances and unexpected losses, which are estimated based
on statistical models and represent the ulimate actual loss.

Monitaring and controlling of risks are prmarily performed based on limits established by
the Bank and its subsidiary in compliance with the regulations of the State Bank of
Viatnam. These limits reflect the business strategy, market environment, and the lewel of
rnek telerance of the Bank and ite subeidiary,
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Mam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad|
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then endad BOSTCTD-HN

45, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGMENT {continued)

fvil Risk measurement and reporting systems (continued)

Informafion compiled from all business activities is exemingd and processed fo analyze,
control and igentify risks at an early age This information is presented and sxplained o
the Board of Management, Board of Directors, and department heads. The report includes
aggregate credit exposura, credit metnc forecasts, limit exceptions, liquidity ratios and
changes in risk profile. The Board of Directors assesses the appropriateness of the
gllowance for credit losses on 3 quarterly basiz Additionally, the Board of Directors
receves a comprahensive risk report quarterly which is designed to provide all necassary
information for assessing and conclude an tha reks of the Bank and its subsidiary

Tailored nek reports are prepared and distributed to all levels throughout the Bank and its
subsidiary, ensuring thal alf business departments have access 10 extensive, necessary
and up=to-date mformation,

(i) Bisk reduchion
The Bank and its subsidary have actively used collateral to mitigate credit risk

{vii) Excessive risk concentration

Concenirations arise when a number of counterparties of the Bank and its subsidiary are
engaged in similar business activities, or actvities in the same geographic region, or havea
similar economic features that would affect the group of customers’ payment obligations
or payment receipt rghts when due under changes in economic, political or other
conditions.

These above concentrations indicate the relative senstivity of the Bank and its
subsidiary's performance to the developments of a particular industry or geograghic
allecatian,

To avoid excessive concentrations of risk. the Bank and its subsidiary's poicies and
procedures include specific guidelines to focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio.
Identified concentrations of credi risk are controlied and managed accordingly. Selective
hedging is used within the Bank and s subsidiary in respect of the industries and ciher
reiated faciors

486, CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that the Bank may expenence losses due to customers or counterpartias
failing to fulfill thesr contractual obiigations.

The Bank and its subsidiary manage and conirols credit risk by setting limits on the acceplable
leve! of risk for individual counterparties, geographical areas, and industry concentrations
They also monitor exposwres in relation to such limits,

The Bank and its subsidiary have established a credit quality review process 1o provide early
identification of potential changes in the financial postion and creditworthiness of
counterparties using both qualitative and quantitatve indicators. Counterparty kmits ara
determined through the use of a credit rating system, which assigns a risk raling to each
counterparty. These risk ratings are subject fo regular revisions.
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Mam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)

as af 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended BOSTCTD-HN
48. CREDIT RISK {continued)

46,1 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements

The maximum exposures o credit riek, which are equivalent to the book values of @ach group
of financial assets on the consclidated financial statemeant, ara lisled below

Ending balance Beginning baiance

WINDD rmllican VIE'.[ZI_FHJD.H
Credit risk exposures of on-consolidated
statement of financial position items
Due frorm and oans o ather credit institutions 35,809,783 22,581 302
Derivatives and other financial assets - A5 455
Loans o cuslomers
= |ndividuals 29,410,543 28,125,006
- Corporates 138,327 454 113,313,435
Investmant sacurtias
- Debt securties - available-for-sake 7,290,000 4 BR2 574
- Diebt gacurities - held-to-maturity 1,800,000 o0 201
Othar financial assals 3,740 9689 3249425
Credit risk exposures of off-consolidated
statemant of financial position ilems
Financial guarantees 7,328,065 6,884 353
Letiers of credil G40 BE1 6,118,593

This table presents the worsl case in which the Bank and its subsidiary will incur the maximum
credit exposures a5 ot 31 Degember 2024 and 31 December 2023, withoul congsidaring any
colisteral held or their credit enhancemanis.

46.2  Financial azsots neither past due nor impaired

The Bank and its subsidiary's financial assets which are neither past due nor impaired consist
aof ioans to customers classfied as Group 1 (Current) loans in accordance with Circular 31
and Decree B6; as well as securities. receivables and other financial assets that are not past
due and do not require any provision according o Circular 4B2018TT-BTC amended by
Circular 242022/TT-BTC.

The Bank and its subsidiary determine that they have an absolute capacity to fully and limely
recover these financial asseis m the future.

46.3  Financial assels pasi due but nol impaired

The age of inancial assets past due but not impaired as at 31 December 2024 is presented

below:
Past duw
Lessthan From 21 lo From 787 (e More lhen Total
90 days 180 days 360 cays 360 days ViND
VND million VNG mitvon  VIND million YWD millian mmlitart
Loans to custormers 1,245 438 32,644 171,330 405,661 1,945,023

Loams that are overdue but not impaired are considered overdue loans, but provisions are not
required, as the Bank holds all collaterals in the form of counterparty deposits, real estate,
movable assets, valuable papers, and other Wpes of collaterals.
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

@s at 31 Decamber 2024 and for the year then endad BOSTCTD-HN
47. MARKET RISK
AT 1 Interast rate risk

Interest rate risk arses from the possibility that changes in interast rates will affect the fair
values of financial instruments. The Bank and ts subsidiary are exposed to inlerest rale risk
due to mismatches in maturily dates or dales of interest rate repricing for assets, liabilities,
and oif-statament financial instruments over a certain paeriod. To manage this risk, the Bank
and itz subsidiary amploy risk management sirategies to malch the dates of interest rale
repricing of asses and |iabilities.

Analysis of assets and fabiities based on ilerest rale re-pricing dale

The repricing term of the effective interest rate refers to the remaining penod from the date of
the consalidated financial statements to the nearest interest rate repricing date or remaining
contractual term, whichaver |s earlier,

The following assumplions and condtions are used in analysis of the re-pricing perod of
intarast rates for the Bank and its subsidiary’s assate and liabilities:

» Cash and gold, balances with the SBY, investment securities - equity securities,
derivatives financial instruments, long-term investments: other gssets (including fived
@ssets and other asealz), and other liabilities are classified as non-interes) beanng items;

# The rapricing tarm of investment securities - debt securities; loans to customers; due from
and Ioans to other cradit insttutions; grants, entrusted funds and loans expased Lo risks,
borrowings from the Government and the SBY, valuable papers issued; due to and
bommowings from cther credit institutions and due to customers are determined as follows:

ltems which bear fixed interest rate during the contractual term: The re-pricing term
is determined bassd on the time to maturity from the consolidated staternent of
financial position deta

ltems which bear fioating interast rate: The re-pncing term is determined based on
the time to the nearast interast rate re-pricing date from the consolidatad statement
of financial position date.

The following table presents the interest re-pricing period of the Bank and its subsidiary’s
sssets and liabiltias as at 31 Dacember 2024:
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Mam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then endad BOS/TCTO-HN
47,  MARKET RISKS (continued)
471 Interast rate risk (conbnued)
Interest rate sensitivity
The Bank and its subsidiaries conducted an analysis of the sensitivity of net interest incomea
to changes in market interest rates for YND and USD as of 31 December 2024, as follows:
Assurmed lovel of change Effects on profit affer tas
¥ VN milian
Ag at 31 December 2024
VKD 0.02% i7.3)
VMD (0.02%) 7.3
LsD 0.02% (0.3)
ush (0.02%) 0.3
47.2  Currency risk

Curmrency risk Is the risk of fluctuations in the vaue of financial instruments due 1o changes in
forelgn exchange rates.

The Bank and its subsidiary are incorporated and operate in Vietnam, with the WND as its
reporting currancy. The primary currency used for s transaction s aiso VND. Financial assets
and liabiities of the Bank and its subsidiary are denominated in VND. with some aiso
denominated n USD, EUR, and gold. To control curmency positions, the Bank and its
subsidiary have esiablished limits, These positions are monitored on a daily basis, and
hedging strategies are employed to ensure that the positions of the currencies remain within

the established himiis.

The exchange rates between key foreign currencies and YND at the reporting date are
presonted at Mole 571,
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

#s a1 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended BOSTCTD-HN
47, MARKET RISK {continued)
47.2  Currency risk (continued)
Exchange ralte sensidivily
Assuming that all variables remain constant, the following table shows the effects on profit
after tax and equity of the Bank and its subsidiary due to changss in @xchange rates. The sk
due to changes of axchange rates for other currencias of the Bank and its subsidiary is not
eignificant.
Assumed level of change Eflects on profit affer tax
% VND mitlign
As at 31 December 2024
EUR 1% 27
EUR 1 1%) (27)
UsD 19 {15,440
UsD {1%) 15,440
SJC 1% 5
SJC {1%) (5]
47.3  Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk which the Bank and s subsidiary face dificulties in meeting their
financial Nabdities. Liquidity risk arises when tha Bank and 15 subsidiary are unable (o seltle
debt obligations on their dus dates under normal or siress conditions. To manage exposure
1o liguidity nsk, the Bank and its subsidiary diversify thé mobilizaton of deposits from various
sources In addition to its basic capital resources, In addition, the Bank and its subsidary have
established policies to control liquidity assets flexibly, monitar the future cash fiows and daily
liquidity. The Bank and is subsidiary have also evalualed the estimated cash flows and the
availability of current coliateral assets in case of eblaining more deposits.

The maturity term of assefts and kabilites is the remaining period of assets and liabilities
ealculated from the consofidated statement of financial position date to the sattliement date in
accardance with contraciual terms and conditions

The following assumptions and conditions are applied in the analysis of the matunly of the
Bank and its subsidiary's assets and labilites

» Balances with the SBY are classified as demand deposits, considered within ane (1}
month, including compulsory deposits;

= The maturity term of investment securties - debt securities is calculated based on the
maturity date of each type of securities; investmant securities - listed equity securities are
conskderad within one (1) month because of their high liquidity;

e The maturity lerm of borrowings from the Govarnment and the SBY, grants, entrusted
funds and lcars exposed to risks: valuable papers issued; due from and loans to ofhver
credit institubions: and loans fo customers is determined bazed on the maturity date
stipulated in confracts. The actual maturity ferm may be sitered if loan contracts are
axtendad,

= The maturity term of long-term investments is considerad to ba more than five (5) years
becausze these investmenis do not have specific maturity dates,

» The maturity term of due to and borrowings from other credit institutions; derivatives and
ather financial liabilities, and due 1o customers Is determined based on the features of
these Blems or the maturity date as stipulated in contracts, Vostro acsounts and demand
deposits are lransacted as required by customers and are classified as curent accounte.
The maturity term of borrowings and term deposits is determined basad on the maturity
dale in contracts In practice, these amaunts may be rolled over, and therafore, may
axtend beyend the onginal maturty data;

» The maturity term of fixed assets s determined based on the remaining useful e of the
asset

d

| g NS,



ks

RGP

i

defi Lupnby) oy

Z9R'BEN LE G9EZO0L'EH LSE'B50L'5L {c86'669'9) 06K LLO'VE)  (966'CES'ST)  ZE9'69F'T B.LG BOS'E

Osr'Ore'szz  vSeIeS'Y SC5'695°C) £ZrieL08 LBE'TLS I Lri'vea'se - SAMIIE) [E0 L
BEG'ZFOF 2 0O ¥O6'GE  Z0OCHR'L  990°0sE LZTE06'| - SR JaY0
b6 000'02 Of L TEG' 0LL'GEL 0L Okt JO0' Q00" 00G - - panss siaded S0ENEA
L0200 POZ 708 OLBELL - HNEU 0 PRSOdXE SUE0|
_u:._m ..m—u._._n.J EEE ..m—_._m._m_
B9L'9 5 §5L0'C BED'¥ = M|l
|E¥FUEULY 32D QUE Saf]EANS]
£00'PEE'BSL ZLT'LRE'E FBLOETEL 058'65 '3t ELE'955 FF SIILOYSND ) BN
5LE'9BL'6E o SPZ DY PEE'BLE a00'o0n's ZLO'9Eg'9E SRS JpesD
BEL[| FR-._- mm_.__..._.ﬂrt.ﬂ_ AUE aj ang
LB LsE'2 =13 BoR LG AGS B} pue
jusumEAOE 3y wod) stusanog
sanIIge]
ZIE'BZE LV LT 566 LY 93e'8L9'2E ObY LER'TL OB FEYLE LST'00E'6S ZI9'691°Z GLE'BDG'E bl b Lo o
Z0B'004 't FRE LT EGE'LEL'L ELO'EEE"L o6 G618 HO0BEL'E seid - sjasE BYI0
BEV'OE BEF'OE - - - - - SOILDBIE JLOLISaNL
BO0L'9EL'E LS ark'L H3E 5OE ad'el a5k L FOgHGE EJaGSE [and
LLO'vZE Lig'rZe ¥ = - . S0 - Sl woeg-Guon
L5o'SSR02 ZOR931'LL SEE L80°E 000'0L2's ECO'OLLE POE 2L " = TE0UT - SEHLIMSS jUsLsan|
LBEES 0L 00U'0LL'br BI6'REE 12 0090599 BPLIBETL QEF J80'R ZED'BOD'E GLB'ROB'E 950ull - SaLO0}SND O) SUED
EHL'G08'8% - FFOOEL LEL'LEL 000" 00E'E LV LPE TE - - BLI| ]S e
IS0 O] SR puE _..r__ﬂ.-_ ]
ZEE'ICOEE ZLE'ZED'EL ADS BUL LM SE0UEEG
BOF'FL' L BEYERL'L probl pue ysen
E}@ESY

Lo (A LITEL A LI (TAA Lo A LrOULT CINEA LR (JNA LOWI TNA UMM ONA

JEjin) siead G asoqy  sipado - | SYMOW 2| —F  SYMON £ — | WUOW [ Oy @) StpuoW £ o) df)  SYRMRE £ 8AOGY

S i i/ R s
FZOT JSqUWaca(] LE 1B Se jueg 31 j0 Saiiqer pue siasse jo fumiew ay) sjuasald 8|qe] Bulmopo) sy

(panuguoa) ysu oy E2E
(Penuuod) WSTH LINEYIN Ly
papus uay) jesd sy sy pue IOz JSquEoag L B B8
MH-OL12.L/508 (penufuos) SINIWILYLS IWIZNYNIE OILYANOSNOD FHL Ol SILON

HUET HO0)S IO [BI2JaUUDT) Y WEN




Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended BOSTCTD-HN
47.  MARKET RISK |continued)

47.4  Market price risk
Except for the assets and liabilities presented above, the Bank and its subsidiary have no
other market price risks that have risk level accounting for 5% or maore of net profit or the vialue
of assets and liabiliies accounting for 5% or more of tolal assets.

48. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Ending balance  Beginning balance

VND million VIND muitlion
Operating lease commitmeants 1,652,053 1,373,258
I which:
- Due within one year 278 840 229 (88
= Due from one 1o fve years B37 17 B42 805
- Due afler five years 535.102 301,362

49, SUPPLEMENTAL NOTES TO FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABLITIES

On & November 2009, the Ministry of Finance issued Circular 2102005TT-BTC, which
provides guidance for the adoption of the Intemational Financial Reporing Standards on the
presentastion and disclosures of financial instruments in Vietnam (refered o as "Circular
210"). This ciroular is effective for financial years beginning on or afier 1 January 2011

Circular 210 specifically addresses the presantation and disclosuras of financial instrumants.
Therefora, the concepts of financial assats financial abilities, and relaled concepls are
apphed solaly for supplemental presentation as requirements of Cirgular 210. The assats,
liabilities, and equity of the Bank and s subsidiary have beén recognized and measured in
accordance with Vieinamese Accoyntng Siandards, the Vietnamesa Accounting System Tor
Cradit instituteans, and the stalutory requiremenis relevant (o the preparation and presentation
of the consolidated financial statements

Financial assets

Financial assets of ihe Bank and it subsidiary within the scope of Circular 210 comprise cash
and goid; balances with the S8Y, due from and loans to other credit insiiutons; loans to
customers, investmeant securities; receivabbes and ather financial assels

According 1o Circular 210, financial assets are appropriately classified, for the purpose of
disclosure in the consolidatad financial statemants, into cne of the fallowing categories:

* A fingncial assel al falr valve through the consolidated incoms statement
s a financial asset that meets edher of the foliowing conditions
a) Itisclassified as held-for-trading. A financial assel is classified as held-for-frading if.

* |t is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing 4 in
the near term;

+ There 5 evidenrce of recent actual pattern of shod-term profit-tebong; or

« Denvabives [except for & darivalive that is a financial guaﬁn!u contract or a
designated and effective hadging instrumani};

b) Itis designaled by the Bank and its subsidiary as at fair value through the consolidaled
incomes staternant upon initial recognition

75
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MNam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 Decamber 2024 and for the vear then ended BOSTCTD-HN

49,

SUPPLEMEMNTAL MWOTES TO FIMANCIAL ASSETS AND FINAMCIAL LIABLITIES
jcontinued)

Financial assefs |continuad)

[

Helg-fo-matunily imvestments.

Mon-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fised maturities
that the Bank and ils subsidiary intend and can hobd to maturity, except for

@) Financial assets that at the time of initial recognition, have been classified as a
recognized group at thedr fair vaiue through the consolidated statement of income;

b} Financial assels classified as aYailable-for-gzale;
c) Finencial assels that satisfy the definiions of lcans and receivables.

Leans amd receivabies:;

Arg mon-dervatives. financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
guoted in an actve markat, axcept for

a) Those that the Bank and Its subsidiery intend to sall immaediately orf in the near term,
which shall be classified as hedd for trading, and those that ine Bank and its subsidiary,
wpon initial recognition, designate s at fair value through the consoldated income
siatemeni,

b) Those that the Bank and its subsidiary designate as available for sale upon intial
recognition; of

c} Those for which the holder may not recover substantially all its initial investment, other
tharn because of credit detericration, which shall be classified as avalable for sala

Avaiable for sale assels

Are non-derivative financial assets that are designaled as avaidable for sake or are not
classified a8

a) Leans and receivables,
b) Hebd-to-maturity investments.
£) Financial assals at fair value through the consolidated income stalemeant.

Financial abilities

Financial liabilities of the Bank and its subsidiary under the Circular 210 consist of borrowings
from the Government and the SBY: due o and bormowings from other credd institutons, due
lo customers, grants. entrusied funds, loans exposed to risks, valuable papers issued;
payables and other firancia| liabdities.

Fil ]
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended BOS/TCTD-HM

48,

SUPPLEMENTAL MNOTES TO FINAMCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABLITIES
{continuwead)

Financial liabilities (contimued)

According to Clrcular 210, financial labilities are appropriately classified into the foliowing
categories for the purpose of disclosure in the consalidatad financial statemeants:

# Financial labiiies al fair value through consolidaled income stalemeant
Is a financial liability that meets either of the following conditions:
a) Itisclassified as held for frading. A financial liability is deemed hald for trading it

+ Itis acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in
the niear term;

+ There is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taxing; or

+ Denvatives (except for 2 dervative that is 5 inancial guaranies contract o designated
and effective hedging instrument)

b} Upon initial recognition, it is designated by the Bank and its subsidiany a5 at fair value
thraugh the consolidated income slatameant.

Financial lablifies al amorbied cosl
Financial liabilities that are not categonzed as at fair value through the consclidated income
statemant will be classified as financial fiabilties at amoriized cost.

Offsetting financial assets and abilities

Financeal ssseis and firancial liatdities are offsal and repoamed 21 the net amount in e
consalidated statemant of financial position if, and only if, the Bank end its subsidiary have an
enforceable legal right to offset financizl assels against fnancial liabilities and the Bank and
s subsidiary have the intention 1o seltie on @ net basis, or the reaization of the assets and
setirement of habiiities is made simultanscusly,

Determine the falr value of financlal (instruments

The fair value of cash and short-term deposits approximates thair carrying value due to the
short-term matunty of these lems.

O
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Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCGIAL STATEMENTS (cantinued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended BOS/TCTD-HN

50. EVENTS AFTER THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DATE

There i3 no matter or circumstance that has arisen since 31 Dacember 2024 that requires
adjustmant or disclosure in the coneolidated financial statements of the Bank and its
subsidary.

51. EXCHANGE RATES OF APPLICABLE FOREIGN CURRENCIES AGAINST VIETNAM
DOMG AT THE END OF THE YEAR

31 Dacamber 2024 31 December 2023 i

VD VND S

'3
uso 26,303.00 24 200.00
EUR 28 877.00 26.780.00
GBRP 31.968.00 30,580.00
CaD 17.718.50 18,315.50
SGD 1B.755.00 18,287.50
ALD 15.859.50 16,526.00

GHF 28,165.50 2B EXT.00 X

JPY 162,31 17201 |

HED 3.279.50 3,110.00 o

KRW 17.73 16.74 -

L3

Gold SJC (ounce) 8,320,000 7,100,000

Mr. Le Db Tu M. Nguyen Thi My Lan Mr. Tran Khai Hoan .’——*“‘[‘}—
Head af Accounting Director of Finance Division  Acting Ghief Executive Officer
Department cum Chiel Accountant

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

206 February 2025



NAM A BANK

DOCUMENT NO. 05

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence — Freedom - Happiness

NAM A BANK — HEAD OFFICE

201-203 Cach Mang Thang Tam, District 3, HCMC
[T] 028 3929 6699 - [F] 028 3929 66 88

[Hotline] 1900 6679 - [W] www.namabank.com.vn

No.: .../2025/PAQT-NHNA

DRAFT

Ho Chi Minh City, March ..., 2025

THE 2024 PROFIT DISTRIBUTION AND DISTRIBUTION OF
SHARES FROM THE EQUITY CAPITAL SOURCE PLAN

To: THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders (AGM) for consideration and approval of the 2024 profit distribution and
distribution of shares from the equity capital source Plan, details as follows:

Seq CRITERIA Amount (VND)
| | THE 2024 PROFIT DISTRIBUTION PLAN:
1 | Profit before corporate income tax 4,545 398,166,073
2 | Corporate income tax to be paid 938.305,686,840
3 | Profit after corporate income tax [(3)=(1)-(2)] 3,607,092,479,233
4 | Establishment of funds in accordance with regulations 721,418,495,846
4.1 | - Capital supplementary reserve fund 360,709,247,923
4.2 | - Financial contingency fund 360,709,247,923
5 | Other funds 47,214,184,958
5.1 | - Development investment fund 3,607,092,479
5.2 | - Scientific research and training fund 3,607,092,479
5.3 | - Reward fund 30,000,000,000
5.4 | - Welfare fund 10,000,000,000
6 | Undistributed profits in 2024 [(6)=(3)-(4)-(5)] 2,838,459,798,429
7 | Undistributed profits before 2024 502,862,821,694
8 | Form of profit distribution Shares
T DISTRIBUTION OF SHARES FROM THE EQUITY CAPITAL SOURCE
PLAN:
1 | Equity capital_Undistributed profits:
1.1 | Undistributed profits on consolidated audited Financial | 3,341,322,620,123
Statements in 2024 (after fund allocations)
1.2 | Undistributed profits used to distribute shares 3,033,336,720,000
1.3 | Remaining undistributed profits 307,985,900,123




Seq CRITERIA Amount (VND)
2 | Equity capital_Additional reserve fund of charter
capital:
2.1 | Capital supplementary reserve fund on consolidated audited 839,795,291,748
Financial Statements in 2024
2.2 | Capital supplementary reserve fund to distribute shares 398,039,660,000
2.3 | Remaining additional reserve fund of charter capital 441,755,631,748
3 | THETOTAL AMOUNT OF SHARES DISTRIBUTION | 3,431,376,380,000
[(3)=(1.2)+(2.2)]
=> | Shares Distribution Ratio 25.00%

(*): The amount of actual shares distribution depends on the Share Capital at the closing
date of the shareholder list for the distribution of shares. The remaining amount due to
rounding after the distribution of shares will be put into the equity capital according to
the regulations.

Respectfully submitted./.

Recipients:

FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHAIRMAN

Nam A Bank’s Shareholders;
BOD, BOS;
- Archived: Office of the BOD.

Tran Ngo Phuc Vu
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NAM A BANK SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

Independence — Freedom — Happiness

NAM A BANK — HEAD OFFICE
201-203 Cach Mang Thang Tam, District 3, HCMC DRAFT
[T] 028 3929 6699 - [F] 028 3929 66 88

[Hotline] 1900 6679 - [W] www.namabank.com.vn

No. : .../2025/TTQT -NHNA Ho Chi Minh City, March ... 2025
PROPOSAL
ON THE APPROVAL OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITING FIRMS FOR
THE YEAR 2026

To: THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

- Pursuant to the Law on Credit Institutions No. 32/2024/QH15 dated January 18", 2024
and the implementing, amending and supplementing documents;

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17", 2020 and the
implementing, amending and supplementing documents,

- Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26™, 2019 and the
implementing, amending and supplementing documents,

- Pursuant to the Circular No. 39/2011/TT-NHNN dated December 15", 2011 of the State
Bank of Vietnam regulating independent audit of credit institutions and foreign bank
branches (Circular 39/2011);

- Pursuant to the Circular No. 24/2021/TT-NHNN dated December 31*, 2021 of the State
Bank of Vietnam amending and supplementing some articles of Circular 39 (Circular
24/2021),

- Pursuant to the list of approved auditing firms authorized to perform audits for public
interest entities in the securities sector as announced by the State Securities Commission,

- Pursuant to the qualifications of the auditing firms.

Following the list of auditing firms approved by the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders (AGM), the Board of Directors (BOD) has decided to select Ernst & Young
Vietnam Limited Company to conduct the review of the interim Financial Statements, audit
the Financial Statements, the internal control system activities regarding the internal
evaluation of capital adequacy and for the preparation and presentation of financial statements
at Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank in 2025.

In accordance with the regulations, we respectfully submit to the AGM for approval and
authorization for the BOD to decide the selection of an independent auditing firm to review
the interim Financial Statements, audit the Financial Statements, the internal control system
activities regarding the internal evaluation of capital adequacy and for the preparation and
presentation of financial statements at Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank for the year 2026,



ensuring compliance with the provisions of Circular 39/2011, Circular 24/2021 and current
laws.

The BOD proposes selecting an independent auditing firm from the following list:
o Ermst & Young Vietnam Limited Company;

o KPMG Vietnam Limited Company;

o Deloitte Vietnam Limited Company;

o Price Waterhouse Coopers Vietnam Limited Company.

The BOD will report the results of the selection at the next AGM.

Respectfully submitted./.

Recipients: FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- Shareholders of Nam A Bank; CHAIRMAN
- BOD, BOS;

- Archived: Office of BOD.

Tran Ngo Phuc Vu
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No. : .../2025/TTQT -NHNA Ho Chi Minh City, March ... 2025

PROPOSAL
ON THE OPERATING BUDGET FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AND THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2025

To: THE 2025 ANNUAL GERNAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

—  Pursuant to the Law on Credit Institutions No. 32/2024/QH15 dated January
18th,2024 and the implementing, amending and supplementing documents;

—  Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17th, 2020 and the
implementing, amending and supplementing documents;

—  Pursuant to the Charter of Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank (“Nam A Bank”).

In 2024, the global economy has shown numerous signs of postitive transformation;
however, it continues to face unpredictable challenges. This situation presents significant
risks to the momentum of economic recovery and growth.

With unwavering determination and a strong sense of responsibility, the Board of
Directors (BOD) and the Board of Supervisors (BOS) managed and supervised Nam A
Bank's operations in a stable, safe, and efficient manner. The operating budget and
remuneration of the BOD and the BOS were utilized for these purposes and remained within
the limits approved by the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (AGM).

Moving into the fiscal year 2025, the economy is expected to remain volatile and
unpredictable, increasing the pressure on macroeconomic management. To achieve the
objectives assigned by the AGM, key priorities for the BOD and the BOS in 2025 will
include enhancing macroeconomic analysis and forecasting, improving management
quality, and strengthening the efficiency of oversight activities. Therefore, the BOD
respectfully submits the following proposals to the 2025 AGM for approval:

—  The operating budget (including remuneration, bonuses, benefits, and other expenses)
for the BOD and the BOS in the fiscal year 2025 shall be equivalent to 3% of the
consolidated profit before tax for 2025, with a minimum amount of 20 billion dong.

—  The accounting of the operating budget will comply with applicable laws.

This is a necessary condition to support the BOD and the BOS in fulfilling their
assigned duties, ensuring that Nam A Bank operates in a safe, efficient and sustainable
manner while maximizing shareholder benefits.

Respectfully submitted./.

Recipients: FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- Shareholders of Nam A Bank; CHAIRMAN
- BOD, BOS;

- Archived: Office of BOD.

Tran Ngo Phuc Vu
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PROPOSAL
ON THE INCREASE OF CHARTER CAPITAL IN 2025

To: THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

—  Pursuant to the Law on Credit Institutions No. 32/2024/QH15 dated January 18", 2024
and the implementing, amending and supplementing documents;

—  Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17™, 2020 and the
implementing, amending and supplementing documents;

— Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2019 and
the implementing, amending and supplementing documents;

— Pursuant to the Charter of Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank.

The Board of Directors (BOD) respectfully reports to the 2025 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders (AGM) on the implementation results of the charter capital increase under
the 2024 Charter Capital Increase Plan and the 2025 Charter Capital Increase Plan as follows:

I.  Charter Capital Increase Situation under the 2024 Charter Capital Increase Plan.

At the 2024 AGM, held on March 29" 2024, the 2024 Charter Capital Increase Plan was
approved, raising the charter capital from 10,580,416,150,000 dong (Ten trillion, five hundred
eighty billion, four hundred sixteen million, one hundred fifty thousand dong) to
13,725,520,180,000 dong (Thirteen trillion, seven hundred twenty-five billion, five hundred
twenty million, one hundred eighty thousand dong). Accordingly, the BOD reports to the
AGM the implementation results of the 2024 Charter Capital Increase Plan, as attached in
Proposal No. 421/2024/TTQT-NHNA dated March 22" 2024, as follows:

—  Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank (Nam A Bank) has completed the issuance of
264,508,938 shares to increase share capital from equity capital. Accordingly, the
number of outstanding shares of Nam A Bank increased from 1,058,041,615 shares (One
billion, fifty-eight million, forty-one thousand, six hundred and fifteen shares) to
1,322,550,553 shares (One billion, three hundred and twenty-two million, five hundred
and fifty thousand, five hundred and fifty-three shares), corresponding to a charter
capital of 13,225,505,530,000 dong (Thirteen thousand two hundred and twenty-five
billion, five hundred and five million, five hundred and thirty thousand dong). Nam A
Bank has received Official Dispatch No. 4632/UBCK-QLCB dated July 25™, 2024 of
the State Securities Commission of Vietnam on the document reporting the results of
issuing shares to increase share capital from equity capital of Nam A Bank;



Nam A Bank has completed the issuance of 50,000,000 shares under the Employee
Stock Ownership Plan. Accordingly, the number of outstanding shares of Nam A Bank
increased from 1,322,550,553 shares (One billion, three hundred and twenty-two
million, five hundred and fifty thousand, five hundred and fifty-three shares) to
1,372,550,553 shares (One billion, three hundred and seventy-two million, five hundred
and fifty thousand, five hundred and fifty-three shares), corresponding to a charter
capital of 13,725,505,530,000 dong (Thirteen thousand seven hundred and twenty-five
billion, five hundred and five million, five hundred and thirty thousand dong). Nam A
Bank has received Official Dispatch No. 7015/UBCK-QLCB dated October 17", 2024
of the State Securities Commission of Vietnam regarding the document reporting the
results of issuing shares under the Employee Stock Ownership Plan of Nam A Bank;

Currently, Nam A Bank is in the process of carrying out procedures to amend the charter
capital limit in the Establishment and Operation License with the State Bank of Vietnam
(SBV) in accordance with the current legal procedures and regulations.

The 2025 Charter Capital Increase Plan.

In order to implement Nam A Bank’s strategic development orientation in 2025, with a

vision to 2030; to improve financial capacity to meet the requirements of business
development and risk management and align employee benefits with Nam A Bank's
performance, the BOD respectfully submits to the 2025 AGM for consideration and approval
of the 2025 Charter Capital Increase Plan with the following contents:

Approving the 2025 Charter Capital Increase Plan by a maximum of 4,281,376,380,000
dong (Four thousand two hundred and eighty-one billion, three hundred and seventy-
six million, three hundred and eighty thousand dong), raising the charter capital from
13,725,505,530,000 dong (Thirteen thousand seven hundred and twenty-five billion, five
hundred and five million, five hundred and thirty thousand dong) to 18,006,881,910,000
dong (Eighteen thousand and six billion, eight hundred and eighty-one million, nine
hundred and ten thousand dong), of which:

+ Increase charter capital from issuing shares to increase share capital from equity capital:
Maximum 3,431,376,380,000 dong (Three thousand four hundred and thirty-one billion,
three hundred and seventy-six million, three hundred and eighty thousand dong),
corresponding to 343,137,638 shares (Three hundred and forty-three million, one hundred
and thirty-seven thousand, six hundred and thirty-eight shares).

+ Increase charter capital from issuing shares under the Employee Stock Ownership
Plan of Nam A Bank (ESOP): Maximum 850,000,000,000 dong (Eight hundred and
fifty billion dong), corresponding to 85,000,000 shares (Eighty-five million shares).

The number of additional ESOP shares issued will be specifically determined by the
BOD at the time of issuance and will be in compliance with the provisions of Clause
2, Article 64 of Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 315t 2020 of the
Government detailing the implementation of a number of articles of the Law on
Securities. Specifically: “2. The total number of shares issued under the program in
each 12 months will not exceed 5% of the company's outstanding shares.”.



—  The increase in charter capital from issuing ESOP shares will be carried out after the
increase in charter capital from issuing shares to increase share capital from equity
capital.

The BOD respectfully submits to the 2025 AGM to authorize the BOD to organize the
implementation of the charter capital increase contents according to the 2025 Charter Capital
Increase Plan attached to this Proposal and proactively adjust and change related contents in
accordance with legal regulations; at the same time, carry out procedures to submit to the
competent State Agencies for approval of the charter capital increase according to
regulations and report to the next AGM.

FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Recipients: CHAIRMAN
- Nam A Bank’s Shareholders;

- BOD, BOS;
- Archived: Office of the BOD.

Tran Ngo Phuc Vu
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THE 2025 CHARTER CAPITAL INCREASE PLAN

(Attached to Proposal No.  /2025/TTQT-NHNA on the increase of charter capital in 2025
of Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank)

Based on the operational plan and capital requirements for 2025, the Board of Directors
(BOD) has formulated the Proposal to increase charter capital during the fiscal year 2025 as
follows:

. NECESSITY OF ISSUING SHARES TO INCREASE CHARTER CAPITAL

1.  Charter capital is one of the important criteria that determines the safety level in the
bank's operations as well as the bank's ability to develop in the future. Therefore,
increasing charter capital will determine the level of success in expanding the scale of
operations, enhancing the bank’s safety level, and strengthening resilience against
market fluctuations.

2. Meeting the requirements of the State Bank of Vietnam (SBV) on improving the
financial capacity of commercial joint stock banks, creating a foundation for expanding
branch networks and technical infrastructure, enlarging market share, and contributing
to promoting the restructuring plan of the financial sector as directed by the SBV.

3. Increasing credit limits for customers and raising medium-term and long-term capital
sources to finance credit activities in order to expand customer base. Enabling
investment in business solutions, technological infrastructure, digital banking
development, and risk management systems.

II.  PURPOSES OF INCREASING CHARTER CAPITAL

1. Enhancing financial capacity to meet the development needs of banking activities, such
as procuring and investing in fixed assets, improving facilities, upgrading banking
technology and developing human resources.

2.  Meeting conditions for expanding operational networks, establishing subsidiaries or
affiliated companies and contributing capital or acquiring shares in compliance with the
laws.

3. Increasing capital scale to expand business activities, such as lending and providing
other banking services, while ensuring the fulfillment of planned targets to improve Nam
A Bank's business efficiency.

4. Aligning the interests of employees with the performance results of Nam A Bank.
I1l. CHARTER CAPITAL INCREASE PLAN



Increase in Charter Capital:

Based on the results of the implementation of the 2024 Charter Capital Increase Plan and
Official Dispatch No. 4632/UBCK-QLCB dated July 25", 2024 of the State Securities
Commission on the document reporting the results of issuing shares to increase share capital
from equity capital of Nam A Bank, Official Dispatch No. 7015/UBCK-QLCB dated
October 17", 2024 of the State Securities Commission regarding the document reporting
the results of issuing shares under the Employee Stock Ownership Plan of Nam A Bank,
the total number of outstanding shares of Nam A Bank is 1,372,550,553 shares (One billion,
three hundred and seventy-two million, five hundred and fifty thousand, five hundred and
fifty-three shares), corresponding to a charter capital of 13,725,505,530,000 dong (Thirteen
thousand seven hundred and twenty-five billion, five hundred and five million, five hundred
and thirty thousand dong).

The expected charter capital increase in 2025 is a maximum of 4,281,376,380,000 dong
(Four thousand two hundred and eighty-one billion, three hundred and seventy-six
million, three hundred and eighty thousand dong), corresponding to 428,137,638 shares
(Four hundred and twenty-eight million, one hundred and thirty-seven thousand, six
hundred and thirty-eight shares), raising the charter capital from 13,725,505,530,000
dong (Thirteen thousand seven hundred and twenty-five billion, five hundred and five
million, five hundred and thirty thousand dong) to 18,006,881,910,000 dong (Eighteen
thousand and six billion, eight hundred and eighty-one million, nine hundred and ten
thousand dong), corresponding to 1,800,688,191 shares (One billion, eight hundred
million, six hundred and eighty-eight thousand, one hundred and ninety-one shares).

Issuance Form:

Issuing shares to increase share capital from equity capital.

Issuing shares under the Employee Stock Ownership Plan of Nam A Bank.
Issuance Plan:

Share Name: Shares of Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank.

Share Type: Ordinary shares.

Currency of Issuance: Vietnamese Dong (dong).

Par value: 10,000 dong/share.

Total number of shares expected to be issued: 428,137,638 shares (Four hundred and
twenty-eight million, one hundred and thirty-seven thousand, six hundred and thirty-
eight shares).

Total par value: 4,281,376,380,000 dong (Four thousand two hundred and eighty-one
billion, three hundred and seventy-six million, three hundred and eighty thousand dong).

The specific release sequence and plan are as follows:

« Issuing shares to increase share capital from equity capital:

+  Number of shares expected to be issued: 343,137,638 shares (Three hundred and



forty-three million, one hundred and thirty-seven thousand, six hundred and thirty-

eight shares).

Total par value: 3,431,376,380,000 dong (Three thousand four hundred and thirty-
one billion, three hundred and seventy-six million, three hundred and eighty

thousand dong).

Issuance rate: 25% (343,137,638 shares + 1,372,550,553 shares).

Handling of fractional shares: additional shares issued to shareholders will be
rounded down to the nearest whole unit. Fractional shares arising from rounding
(if any) will be canceled.

For Example: On the record date, Shareholder A holds 187 shares. The number of
shares to be received is 46,75 shares (= 187 x 25%). After rounding down,
Shareholder A will receive 46 shares. The fractional share of 0,75 will be canceled.

Issuance subjects: existing shareholders listed on the record date will receive
additional shares as per the BOD’s Resolution.

Issuance capital: From equity capital (undistributed profit after tax and other funds
as prescribed by law as of December 31%, 2024 based on the 2024 consolidated
audited financial statements of Nam A Bank), specifically as follows:

Figures as of
31/12/2024
according to

Figures as of
31/12/2024
according to

Amount utilized
for charter

No. Items Interim seperate Consolidated capital increase
Audited Financial | Audited Financial P (dong)
Statements Statements g
(dong) (dong)
y | Capital supplementary | o4 591 850 703 | 839795291748 | 398,039,660,000
reserve
2 | Surplus equity 62,989,081 62,989,081 -
Retained earnings
3 | (after deducting other | 3,341,322,620,123 | 3,341,322,620,123 | 3,033,336,720,000
funds)
Profit amount utilized
g1 | for shares issuance 10|, g 396 290 000 | 3,033,336,720,000 | 3,033.336,720,000
increase share capital
from equity captital
3.2 | Residual earnings 307,985,900,123 | 307,985,900,123 -
4 | Other Funds 1,315,590,395,417 | 1,334,597,217,503 -
4.1 | Financial reserve 1,298,408,567,607 | 1,317,415,389,693 -




Figures as of Figures as of
31/12/2024 31/12/2024 .
. . Amount utilized
according to according to
. . for charter
No. Items Interim seperate Consolidated capital increase
Audited Financial | Audited Financial P (dong)
Statements Statements g
(dong) (dong)
4.2 Bi‘f'(’pmem nvestment | ¢ 567615773 | 8,567,615,773
g3 | Sclence  and wraining | ge4 910037 | 8,614,212,037
research fund
Amount utilized for charter capital increase 3,431,376,380,000

_l_

Expected issuance time: in 2025, upon obtaining approval from the SBV and the
State Securities Commission (SSC).

Expected completion time: expected in 2025, as prescribed in the Approval
Document of the competent State Agencies.

Number of shares expected to be in circulation after completing of issuing shares
to increase charter capital from equity capital: 1,715,688,191 shares (One billion,
seven hundred and fifteen million, six hundred and eighty-eight thousand, one
hundred and ninety-one shares).

Issuing shares under the Employee Stock Ownership Plan of Nam A Bank

(ESOP):
Number of shares expected to be issued: 85,000,000 shares (Eighty-five million shares).

The number of additional ESOP shares expected to be issued is determined to be
a maximum of (=) 5% of the number of shares expected to be in circulation after
completing of issuing shares to increase charter capital from equity capital
according to this 2025 Charter Capital Increase Plan, rounded down to the nearest
whole unit, and therefore a maximum of (=) 85,784,409 shares (=5% x
1,715,688,191 shares).

The issuance of shares under the ESOP Program must ensure that at the time of
issuance, it is in compliance with the provisions of Clause 2, Article 64 of Decree
No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31%, 2020 of the Government detailing the
implementation of a number of articles of the Law on Securities: Specifically:
“2. The total number of shares issued under the program in each 12-month period
must not exceed 5% of the company's outstanding shares.”.

Total par value: 850,000,000,000 dong (Eight hundred and fifty billion dong).
Issuance price: At par value (10,000 dong/share).

Issuance subjects: Officers and employees of Nam A Bank and its subsidiaries
(Employees).




+

Standards for employees eligible to participate in the ESOP Program: Employees
with Vietnamese nationality and:

o Have been officially recruited for at least 01 (one) year up to the time of making
the list of employees participating in the ESOP Program.

e Have been recognized as an individual emulation title in 2024.

¢ Not fall into 01 (one) of the cases that are not eligible to participate in the ESOP
Program according to the Regulations on issuance of shares under the employee
selection program of Nam A Bank issued from time to time.

Transfer Restrictions: Shares issued under the ESOP Program are subject to
transfer restrictions of 100% of the shares within 01 (one) year from the end date
of issuance and 50% of the shares in the following year.

Issuance Purposes:

e To reward employees with outstanding achievements.

e To align employee benefits with Nam A Bank's performance.

e To attract and retain qualified employees for senior leadership positions.

Plan for handling undistributed shares: In case employees refuses to purchase or
do not purchase all the shares entitled to purchase, the BOD has the right to
distribute these shares to other employees who meet the criteria for selecting
employees entitled to purchase ESOP shares. The issuance price and transfer
restrictions of these shares are similar to those for shares offered to employees
under the ESOP Program.

Share Buybacks Terms: Details as specified in the Regulations of issuing shares
under the ESOP Program of Nam A Bank.

Expected issuance time: In 2025, upon obtaining approval from the SBV, the SSC
and after completing the issuance of shares to increase share capital from equity
capital according to this 2025 Charter Capital Increase Plan.

Information on the issuance of shares under the ESOP program in the last 12
months:

e Number of issued shares: 50,000,000 shares (Fifty million shares).
e Completion date: October 2", 2024,

PLAN FOR UTILIZING PROCREEDS FROM ISSUING SHARES TO
INCREASE CHARTER CAPITAL

Total expected proceeds from issuing shares to increase charter capital will be allocated
as follows:

Procurement of fixed assets and tools; construction of facilities for existing and future
business units.

Supplementing capital for business operations.



2. The BOD is responsible for balancing and allocating proceeds from capital increases

effectively, ensuring benefits for Nam A Bank and shareholders.

V. LIST OF SHAREHOLDERS AND OWNERSHIP RATIOS OF
SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 5% OR MORE OF THE VOTING SHARE
CAPITAL AT THE CURRENT TIME AND AS PROJECTED AFTER THE
CAPITAL INCREASE

Expected
Enterprise Current |Ownership Ratio
Share Registration L eqal Ownership |of Voting Shares
No. | holder’s | Address Certificate No., Re resgntative Ratio of |after completing
Name Issue Date, Issuing P Voting  [the 2025 Charter
Authority Shares Capital Increase
Plan
Ha Hoc D
| No.0301835179 | o oW
600 Dien issued by HCMC ID No.
Pacific Bien Phu, D f 068089000203
Dragon Ward 22 epartment o issued b
1 . ! Planning and y 9.092% 8.663%
Company | Binh Thanh | Department of
. o nvestment on . .
Limited District, oo Social Security
first issuance date - )
HCMC Oct 07" 1999 Administration
’ on Dec 22" 2021
Total 9.092% 8.663%

VI. LIST OF SHAREHOLDERS AND OWNERSHIP RATIOS OF SHAREHOLDERS
HOLDING 5% OR MORE OF THE CHARTER CAPITAL AT THE CURRENT
TIME AND AS PROJECTED AFTER THE CAPITAL INCREASE

Expected
Enterprise Current Ownership Ratio
. . i of Charter
Share Registration L eqal Ownership Capital After
No. | holder’s Address Certificate No., gal Ratio of prtal
' | Representative completing the
Name Issue Date, Issuing Charter
Authorit Capital 2025 Proposal of
Y P Charter Capital
Increase
Ha Hoc Duy
600 Dien No. 0301835179 DN
. ) issued by HCMC ©.
Pacific Bien Phu, 068089000203
Dragon Ward 22 Department of issued b
1 ; ! Planning and y 9.092% 8.663%
Company | Binh Thanh Department of
Limited Dist Investment on Social Securit
H CM’C first issuance date Administrati y
Oct 07 1999 ministration
on Dec 22" 2021
Total 9.092% 8.663%




VII.

LIST OF SHAREHOLDERS AND AFFILIATED PARTIES HOLDING 15%
OR MORE OF THE CHARTER CAPITAL COMPARED TO THE CURRENT
AND EXPECTED CHARTER CAPITAL: None.

VIiIl. SHARE OWNERSHIP OF FOREIGN INVESTORS

Total ownership by foreign investors as of February 28", 2025: 17,304,994 shares
(Seventeen million, three hundred and four thousand, nine hundred and ninety-four
shares), accounting for 1.261% of the charter capital (based on the shareholder list
finalized on February 28™ 2025 by the Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing
Corporation).

Total expected ownership by foreign investors after the charter capital increase:
21,631,242 shares (Twenty one million, six hundred thirty one thousand, two hundred
and forty-two shares), accounting for 1.201% of the charter capital.

IX. EXPECTED FINANCIAL INDICATORS POST-ISSUANCE
Unit: Billion VND
Seq Indicator Dec 31%, Dec 315, Increase/
2024 2025 Decrease
1 Charter capital 13,726 18,007 4,281
2 Total assets 245,129 270,000 24,871
3 Mobilizing capital from customers and 178,341 209,000 30,659
issuing valuable papers
4 Outstanding credit balance 167,738 194,000 26,262
5 Non-performing loans ratio 2.33% <2.5%
6 Cgpital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) under
Circular 41:
6.1 | + Independent Minimum CAR 12.54% 13.67% 1.13%
6.2 | + Consolidated Minimum CAR 12.66% 13.77% 1.11%
7 Profit before tax 4,545 5,000 455
8 Profit after tax 3,607 4,000 393
9 Return on average assets (ROA) 1.55% 1.55% 0.00%
10 | Return on average equity (ROE) 20.61% 18.42% (2.19%)
X. MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY CAPABILITIES OF NAM A BANK

FOR POST-ISSUANCE CAPITAL AND OPERATION SCALE

The BOD, the Board of Supervisors, and the Board of Management possess the

expertise, experience and qualifications in banking and finance industry in order to manage,
operate, and supervise the bank'’s scale of operations effectively. They ensure efficient capital
utilization while complying with banking capital safety regulations as stipulated by the SBV.

XI.

AUTHORIZATION MATTERS



To facilitate the implementation of the 2025 Charter Capital Increase Plan, it is

respectfully proposed that the General Meeting of Shareholders authorize the BOD and the
Legal Representative of Nam A Bank to undertake the following tasks:

Decide on the appropriate timing for issuing shares to increase share capital from equity
capital and for issuing shares under the ESOP program in accordance with the 2025
Charter Capital Increase Plan;

Determine the record date to finalize the list of shareholders entitled to rights after
receiving approval from the competent State agencies;

Issue the Regulations of issuing shares under the Employee Stock Ownership Plan of
Nam A Bank, decide on specific criteria, the list, principles for determining the number
of shares distributed to each eligible employee and the number of shares employees are
entitled to under the program and rounding principles when distributing shares to
employees;

In case at the time of implementing the increase in charter capital through the issuance
of shares under the ESOP program, the law allows the General Meeting of Shareholders
to authorize the BOD to decide on the standards for employees participating in the ESOP
Program, the BOD may decide on additional standards in addition to the standards
approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders in this Proposal, ensuring compliance
with the actual situation and current legal regulations;

Amend, supplement, finalize, and explain all matters and contents of the 2025 Capital
Increase Plan (including any unmentioned content) and sign related documents to
implement the capital increase in accordance with legal regulations;

Amend charter provisions relating to charter capital, shares, and stocks in the Nam A
Bank’s Charter to reflect the actual charter capital post-issuance;

Handle procedures to amend in the Establishment and Operation License, register for
additional depository and register for additional listing with the competent State
Agencies after completing the issuance in accordance with legal regulations;

Empower the BOD to consider and select consulting units and actively undertake related
tasks regarding share issuance in accordance with legal regulations;

Decide on other arising matters to complete the 2025 Charter Capital Increase Plan.
Respectfully submitted./.
FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Recipients: CHAIRMAN
- Nam A Bank’s Shareholders;

BOD, BOS;

- Archived: Office of the BOD.

Tran Ngo Phuc Vu
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PROPOSAL

ON THE APPROVAL OF THE PLAN FOR PRIVATE PLACEMENT OF

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

To: THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to the Law on Credit Institutions No. 32/2024/QH15 dated January 18™", 2024
and the implementing, amending and supplementing documents;

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020 and the
implementing, amending and supplementing documents;

Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2019 and
the implementing, amending and supplementing documents;

Pursuant to the Charter of Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank.
The Board of Directors (BOD) of Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank (Nam A Bank)

respectfully submits to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (AGM) for approval
the Plan for the Private Placement of Convertible Bonds with the following key points:

I.
1.

I1.

NEED FOR PRIVATE PLACEMENT OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS.

To increase the scale of operating capital and supplement medium- and long-term capital
for credit activities at Nam A Bank.

To implement Nam A Bank’s charter capital increase plan by converting convertible
bonds into common shares in accordance with the Placement Plan.

PLAN FOR THE PRIVATE PLACEMENT OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS.
Details of the private placement of convertible bonds.

The Plan for the Private Placement of Convertible Bonds (Placement Plan) will have

some main contents as follows:

a. Type of bonds Convertible bonds, without warrants and unsecured.

b. Bond term Up to 5 (five) years from the issuance date. The AGM
delegates and authorizes the Board of Directors (BOD) to
determine the specific bond term.

c. Bond interest rate ~ Fixed and/or floating interest rate, depending on market
conditions at the time of issuance. The AGM delegates
and authorizes the BOD to decide based on market
conditions at the time of issuance.



d. Currency for

issuance and payment

e. Issuance market

f. Total face value of

bonds

g. Issuance volume

h. Issuance method

1. Expected issuance

timeline

j.  Terms
conversion

of bond

Vietnamese Dong (dong) and/or as per the regulations on
issuance currency in foreign markets (if issued in foreign
markets).

Bonds will be offered in domestic or international
markets. The AGM delegates and authorizes the BOD to
select the 1ssuance market.

Up to 2,000,000,000,000 dong and/or an equivalent value
in the currency and face value specified in foreign
markets (if i1ssued in foreign markets), issued in one or
multiple tranches. The AGM authorizes the BOD to
decide the issuance value of each tranche.

Up to 20,000 convertible bonds with face value in VND
and/or up to the volume regulated in foreign markets,
converted from the issuance value (if issued in foreign
markets).

Private placement through issuance agents and/or
underwriting agents and/or direct sales to investors. The
AGM delegates the BOD to decide on the issuance
method in accordance with current legal regulations.

Expected in 2025 or 2026. The AGM delegates and
authorizes the BOD to decide the issuance timing based
on market conditions, subject to approval from competent
authorities.

% Conversion period: Not exceeding the bond term. The
AGM delegates and authorizes the BOD to determine
the conversion period, number of conversion phases,
and specific timing for each phase.

¢ Principles and conversion price: Conversion may be
performed in one or multiple phases until all issued
bonds are converted. The conversion price shall be
determined by the BOD as authorized by the AGM,
but not lower than the book value per share of Nam A
Bank based on the consolidated Annual Financial
Statements or the consolidated Semi-Annual
Financial Statements audited or reviewed by the
qualified auditors closest to the date of signing the
Contract for the sale of the convertible bonds with the
investors.



The AGM delegates and authorizes the BOD to
determine the conversion rate, the conversion rate
and/or the method of determining the specific
conversion rate for each conversion phase when
implementing the issuance, the anti-dilution
conditions and other relevant provisions on the basis
of the principle of no less than the book value
guarantees as above.

* Adjustment of conversion price: The conversion price
may be adjusted in case of share dilution events. The
AGM delegates and authorizes the BOD to adjust the
conversion price (if applicable) in accordance with
market conditions and legal regulations before
conversion.

+» Conversion ratio: Determined as the bond face value
divided by the conversion price determined at the time
of conversion. The number of shares received after
converting from convertible bonds will be rounded
down to the nearest whole share. Fractional shares
will be canceled, and Nam A Bank will not pay for
fractional shares canceled.

*» Investor requirements: Investors must comply with
legal regulations on shareholding limits and
maximum ownership ratios for foreign investors when
converting convertible bonds.

¢ Conversion conditions: Conversion will only occur
after the State Bank of Vietnam approves the increase
in charter capital, as per its regulations and legal
provisions.

k. Other terms and As specified in the terms and conditions of the

commitments convertible bonds, based on current legal regulations. The
AGM delegates the BOD to decide in compliance with
legal regulations, including deposit procedures, early
redemption terms, and rights to purchase new shares in
case of additional issuance.

III. PROPOSAL.

To facilitate and proactively implement procedures in compliance with legal regulations
related to the private placement of convertible bonds, the BOD respectfully submits to the
AGM the following proposals:

1. Approve the Plan for the Private Placement of Convertible Bonds attached to this
Proposal.



Authorize the BOD to decide on all matters related to the convertible bond placement
plan and the plan for issuing shares to convert the bonds, in accordance with legal
regulations, including but not limited to the following:

Decide on specific issues assigned in the Placement Plan; determine (i) the conversion
price and specific conversion ratio at the time of conversion, (ii) the specific terms and
conditions of the bonds, including but not limited to matters/contents not specifically
detailed in this Placement Plan;

Select and appoint organizations providing services related to the issuance, including
but not limited to advisory organizations for bond offering documents, issuance agents,
bond registration and custody organizations, underwriting organizations (if any), and
credit rating agencies (if any);

Decide on the content of transaction contracts with investors, agreements, and
documents in which Nam A Bank is a party to sign or issue in relation to the bond
issuance (collectively referred to as “Transaction Documents”);

Develop a plan and detailed strategy for utilizing proceeds from the bond issuance;

If necessary, the BOD may change/adjust the Placement Plan and the plan for utilizing
proceeds from the bond offering to ensure the highest benefits for Nam A Bank and its
shareholders. Such changes/adjustments must be within the authority of the BOD and
comply with relevant legal regulations;

Plan the allocation of resources and methods for paying bond interest and principal
based on the actual situation of Nam A Bank at the time of issuance, as required by
investors and competent state authorities (if applicable);

Sign, execute, and fulfill obligations, commitments, and agreements of Nam A Bank in
the Transaction Documents;

Sign and/or deliver all documents and notices to be signed and/or delivered by Nam A
Bank under the Transaction Documents;

Decide and execute all other necessary tasks in accordance with legal regulations, Nam
A Bank’s Charter, and the Transaction Documents to complete the bond issuance under
the Placement Plan, including appointing and authorizing individuals to sign related
documents and opening bank accounts for bond issuance purposes;

Organize and carry out tasks related to the offering, registration, and custody of
convertible bonds, including but not limited to the following: (i) deciding on the
documents and materials submitted to the State Securities Commission, relevant state
authorities, in compliance with legal regulations on offering, registration, and custody
of bonds; (i1) liaising and providing explanations to competent authorities and other
related entities regarding the registration documents and other matters related to the
bond offering;

Actively identify and create a list of investors interested in purchasing bonds and select
investors to participate in the bond offering;



—  Execute other necessary tasks to successfully offer privately placed convertible bonds,
register the bonds with the Registration Agent, and address any matters arising during
the bond circulation period;

—  Depending on specific circumstances, the BOD may authorize the Chief Executive
Officer to carry out part or all of the above tasks.

The BOD will report the implementation results at the next Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders.

Respectfully submitted./.

ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Recipient: CHAIRMAN
- Shareholders of Nam A Bank;

- BOD, BOS;
- Archived: Office of BOD

Tran Ngo Phuc Vu
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PRIVATE PLACEMENT PLAN FOR CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(Attached to Proposal No. 422/2024/TTQT-NHNA regarding the approval of the private
placement plan for convertible bonds by Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank)

To: THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
PART I - INTRODUCTION TO THE ISSUER:
1. Full name of the issuer: Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank.
2.  English name: Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank.
3.  Abbreviated name: Nam A Bank.
4.  Type of business: Joint-stock company (public company).
5

Head office address: 201 - 203 Cach Mang Thang Tam, Ward 4, District 3, Ho Chi Minh
City.

6. Telephone: (028) 3929 6699. Fax: (028) 3929 6688.
7.  Website: www.namabank.com.vn.

8. Charter capital: 13,725,505,530,000 dong (In words: Thirteen trillion, seven hundred
twenty-five billion, five hundred five million, five hundred thirty thousand dong).

9.  Stock code: NAB (listed on HOSE).

10. Enterprise registration certificate number: 0300872315 issued by the Ho Chi Minh City

Department of Planning and Investment, first issued on September 01%, 1992, revised
for the 45th time on August 3™, 2023.

11. Establishment and operation license: License No. 18/GP-NHNN issued by the State
Bank of Vietnam on April 13%, 2023 (replacing License No. 0026/NH-GP issued on
August 22", 1992); Decision No. 1506/QD-NHNN amending the charter capital in the
Establishment and Operation License of Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank issued
by the State Bank of Vietnam on August 09', 2023.

12.  Account for receiving bond purchase payments for this offering: VCB_CN HCM — VND
— NDT, Account number: 0071001359575 at the Joint Stock Commercial Bank for
Foreign Trade of Vietnam — Ho Chi Minh City Branch (or another account based on
actual circumstances at the time of implementing the plan).

13. Main business activities:

- Accepting demand deposits, term deposits, savings deposits, and other types of deposits;



Providing credit in the following forms: loans, discounting, rediscounting of negotiable
instruments and other valuable papers, bank guarantees, issuance of credit cards,
domestic factoring;

Opening payment accounts for customers; providing domestic payment services: issuing
payment instruments, executing payment services for checks, payment orders, collection
orders, collection mandates, letters of credit, bank cards, collection and payment
services;

Opening accounts: accounts at the State Bank of Vietnam, accounts at other credit
institutions and foreign bank branches;

Organizing internal payments, participating in the national interbank payment system;

Cash management services, banking consulting, financial consulting, management
services, safekeeping of assets, leasing safes and safe deposit boxes;

Consulting on corporate finance, mergers, acquisitions, and investment;

Bidding, purchasing, and selling treasury bills, negotiable instruments, government
bonds, State Bank of Vietnam bills, and other valuable papers in the money market;

Trading government bonds and corporate bonds;
Providing currency brokerage services;

Issuing certificates of deposit, promissory notes, treasury bills, and bonds to raise capital
as per the Law on Credit Institutions, the Securities Law, Government regulations, and
State Bank guidelines;

Borrowing from the State Bank under refinancing mechanisms as regulated by the Law
on the State Bank of Vietnam and related guidelines;

Lending, borrowing, depositing, and receiving deposits from credit institutions, foreign
bank branches, and financial institutions both domestically and internationally under the
law;

Contributing capital, purchasing shares as regulated by law and State Bank guidelines;

Entrusting, receiving entrustment, and acting as agents in banking-related activities,
insurance, and asset management under the law;

Trading and providing foreign exchange services in the domestic and international
markets within the scope of State Bank regulations;

Trading and offering derivative products on exchange rates, interest rates, foreign
exchange, currency, and other financial assets in domestic and international markets;

Securities custody services;

Gold bullion trading;

Insurance agency services;

Leasing unused portions of Nam A Bank’s business premises;

Debt trading;



E-wallet services;
Offering derivative products on commodity prices;
Investing in government bond futures contracts;

Providing securities clearing and settlement services under the Securities Law; custody
banking under securities regulations;

Other activities (after approval from the State Bank of Vietnam).

PART Il - PLAN FOR PRIVATE PLACEMENT OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS
NAM A COMMERCIAL JOINT STOCK BANK

l.
1.

LEGAL BASIS FOR THE BOND ISSUANCE

Pursuant to the Law on Credit Institutions No. 32/2024/QH15 dated January 18™, 2024
and the implementing, amending and supplementing documents;

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17", 2020 and the
implementing, amending and supplementing documents;

Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26™, 2019 and
the implementing, amending and supplementing documents;

Pursuant to Decree No. 153/2020/ND-CP dated December 31%, 2020 on the offering
and trading of privately placed corporate bonds in the domestic market and the offering
of corporate bonds in international markets;

Pursuant to Decree No. 65/2022/ND-CP dated September 16", 2022 amending and
supplementing several articles of Decree No. 153/2020/ND-CP dated December 31%,
2020 on the offering and trading of privately placed corporate bonds in the domestic
market and the offering of corporate bonds in international markets;

Pursuant to Decree No. 08/2023/ND-CP dated March 05", 2023 amending,
supplementing, and suspending the implementation of certain articles in decrees
regulating the offering and trading of privately placed corporate bonds in the domestic
market and the offering of corporate bonds in international markets;

Pursuant to Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31%, 2020 of the Government
detailing the implementation of certain articles of the Law on Securities;

Pursuant to the Charter of Nam A Bank;
Other relevant legal documents.
PURPOSE OF ISSUANCE

To increase the scale of operational capital and supplement medium- and long-term
capital sources to meet the credit demand of Nam A Bank.

To implement Nam A Bank's plan to increase charter capital by converting convertible
bonds into common shares in accordance with the Placement Plan.

EXPLANATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH BOND OFFERING CONDITIONS



No.

Issuance Conditions

Compliance

Explanation

Conditions under Article 9 of Decree 153/2020/ND-CP

The issuing enterprise is
a joint-stock company.

Complied

Enterprise Registration
Certificate No. 0300872315
issued by the Ho Chi Minh City
Department of Planning and
Investment, initially on
September 01%, 1992, and
amended for the 45th time on
August 039, 2023.

The participants in the
offering comply with
Point b, Clause 1, Article
8 of Decree
153/2020/ND-CP, as
amended in Clause 6,
Article 1 of Decree
65/2022/ND-CP.

Complied

Commitment to comply with
Articles 11 and 31 of the Law on
Securities 2019 and Clause 6,
Article 1 of Decree 65/2022/ND-
CP.

Full payment of
principal and interest on
issued bonds or full
settlement of due debts
in the three consecutive
years prior to the bond
issuance.

Complied

The Issuer has fully paid the
principal and interest of bonds
issued and matured in the three
consecutive years prior to this
issuance. The Issuer has also
fully settled all due debts during
the same period. For outstanding
bonds at the time of this
issuance, the Issuer has fully
paid the due interest. Principal
obligations for these outstanding
bonds have not yet arisen as of
this issuance date.

Compliance with
financial safety ratios
and safety assurance
ratios in activities as
prescribed by
specialized laws.

Complied

Nam A Bank complies with
financial safety ratios and safety
assurance ratios in operations as
reported periodically to the State
Bank of Vietnam (SBV).




Having an approved

The Placement Plan has been
approved and accepted by the

5 | bond Placement Plan as Complied i
er reaulations competent authority, namely the
perred | AGM.
Having audited financial Separated and consolidated
statements  for  the audited financial statements as of
H H st
6 preceding fiscal _yfaar, Complied December 31%, 2024.
prepared by an eligible
auditing organization as
prescribed.
The interval between Nam A Bank has not issued
private placements of convertible bonds privately in
convertible bonds must the past six months.
7 | be at least six months Complied
from the completion date
of the most recent
offering.
The conversion of bonds Nam A Bank commits to comply
into shares must comply with regulations when issuing
with  regulations on . shares to convert convertible
8 i i Complied
foreign investors bonds.
ownership  ratios  as
prescribed by law.
Conditions Under Article 10 of Decree 153/2020/ND-CP, Amended in
Il | Clause 7, Article 1 of Decree 65/2022/ND-CP and Adjusted by Decree
08/2023/ND-CP
The offering conditions Fulfilled as detailed in Part |
specified in Article 9 of . above.
1 I
Decree  153/2020/ND- |  COMPlied
CP.
Need for capital Nam A Bank requires multi-
mobilization in multiple tranche capital mobilization,
2 | tranches consistent with Complied aligned with the approved
the approved bond issuance purpose, and this has
issuance purpose. been approved by the AGM.
Having a bond The multi-tranche placement
3 | placement plan| Complied | plan, detailing specific volume,

specifying the volume,

timing, and usage for each




timing, and capital usage tranche, has been approved by

plan for each tranche. the AGM.

The distribution time for Nam A Bank commits to
each tranche must not ensuring  bond  distribution
exceed 90 days from the complies with the specified
date of pre-issuance timeline requirements.

information disclosure,
and the total issuance Complied
time for all tranches
must not exceed 12
months from the
issuance date of the first
tranche.

10.

11.

12.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE BONDS
Issuer: Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank.
Bond Name: Nam A Bank Convertible Bond.

Currency of Issuance and Payment: Vietnamese Dong (dong) and/or in compliance with
currency regulations for issuance in foreign markets (if issued in foreign markets).

Type of Bond: Convertible bond, without warrants and unsecured.

Issuance Method: Private placement through issuance agents and/or underwriting agents
and/or direct sales to investors. The AGM authorizes the BOD to determine and
implement the issuance method in accordance with applicable laws.

Form of Bond: Registered bond.

Issuance Date: Expected in 2025, with the AGM delegating and authorizing the BOD to
decide the issuance timing based on market conditions and approvals from competent
authorities.

Maturity Date: Expected to be a maximum of five (5) years from the date of issuance
completion.

Bond Term: Maximum five (5) years from the issuance date. The AGM delegates and
authorizes the BOD to determine the specific bond term.

Par Value of the Bond: Minimum of 100,000,000 dong per bond and in multiples of
100,000,000 dong and/or in compliance with par value regulations in foreign markets
(if issued in foreign markets).

Estimated Number of Convertible Bonds to Be Issued: Maximum of 20,000 convertible
bonds with par value in VND and/or as per foreign market regulations converted from
the issuance value (if issued in foreign markets).

Issuance Price: Convertible bonds will be issued at 100% of their par value.



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Estimated Total Value of Convertible Bonds to Be Issued (Par Value): Maximum of
2,000,000,000,000 dong and/or an equivalent value in currency and par value
regulations in foreign markets (if issued in foreign markets).

Coupon Rate: Fixed and/or floating interest rate, depending on market conditions at the
time of issuance. The AGM delegates and authorizes the BOD to decide based on market
conditions at the issuance time.

Issuance Phases and Plan:
Expected
Issuance Expected Number of Issuance Value Expected
Phase Convertible Bonds (at face value, Issuance Timing
VND)
From Quarter 111 -
Phase 1 10,000 1,000,000,000,000 IV 2025
From Quarter IV
Phase 2 10,000 1,000,000,000,000 | 2025 to Quarter I
2026
Total 20,000 2,000,000,000,000

In the event that the entire issuance of convertible bonds for each Phase is not sold as
originally planned, the unsold quantity will be carried over to the next issuance phase.

The AGM authorizes the BOD to decide on the issuance timing, adjust the number of
issuance phases, modify the number of bonds issued, and determine the issuance dates
(if necessary) for each phase, based on the market demand and the disbursement
situation of Nam A Bank, ensuring that the total number of bonds issued does not exceed
the originally planned quantity.

Method of Payment for Principal and Interest: The interest on the bonds will be paid on
the 12th (twelfth) month following the Issuance Date, from the Issuance Date until
maturity or the Early Redemption Date as specified in the public disclosure of the
issuance. The principal will be repaid in a single payment on the Maturity Date or Early
Redemption Date, as specified in the public disclosure of the issuance.

Issuance Market: The bonds will be offered on either the domestic or international
market. The AGM authorizes the BOD to select the issuance market.

Terms for Bond Conversion:

Conversion Period: The conversion period shall not exceed the bond's maturity. The
AGM authorizes the BOD to decide the conversion period, the number of conversion
phases, and the specific conversion dates for each phase.

Conversion Principles and Price: Conversion can be carried out once or multiple times,
in accordance with the number of conversion phases, until all issued bonds are converted.
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The conversion price is determined by the AGM, and the BOD is authorized to set this
price, which shall not be lower than the book value per share of Nam A Bank based on
the consolidated Annual Financial Statements or the consolidated Semi-Annual
Financial Statements audited or reviewed by the qualified auditors closest to the date of
signing the Contract for the sale of the convertible bonds with the investors.

The AGM authorizes the BOD to decide the conversion price, conversion ratio, or
method of determining the conversion price for each conversion phase during the
issuance, including anti-dilution measures and any other related terms, ensuring that the
price is not lower than the book value as specified above.

Conversion Price Adjustment: The conversion price will be adjusted in the event of
share dilution. The AGM authorizes the BOD to adjust the conversion price (if any
adjustments are necessary) in accordance with market conditions and in compliance with
legal regulations before proceeding with the conversion.

Conversion Ratio: The conversion ratio is calculated as the face value of the bond
divided by the conversion price determined at the time of conversion.

Number of Shares After Conversion: The number of shares received after converting
from convertible bonds will be rounded down to the nearest whole share, and any
fractional shares will be canceled. Nam A Bank is not required to pay any amount for
the canceled fractional shares.

Investor Eligibility: Investors purchasing convertible bonds must comply with current
legal regulations regarding capital contribution limits, share purchase limits, and the
maximum ownership ratio for foreign investors when converting the convertible bonds.

Conversion Conditions: Bond conversion into shares can only occur after receiving
approval from the State Bank of Vietnam for increasing the charter capital in accordance
with the State Bank's regulations and applicable laws.

Cases, Conditions, Terms, and Commitments of the Issuing Entity Regarding Early
Bond Redemption and Bond Conversion:

Depending on the actual situation, the early redemption of bonds by Nam A Bank aims
to restructure capital, reduce debt obligations, save costs, and minimize interest rate risk.
The convertible bonds may be partially or fully redeemed, provided that after the
redemption, the safety ratios and limits set by the State Bank of Vietnam are maintained
and in accordance with legal requirements. Additionally, if an Investor exercises the
right to convert bonds into shares, and the foreign ownership ratio at the time of
conversion does not meet the requirements for conversion, the issuing organization will
redeem the bonds.

Nam A Bank may redeem convertible bonds at any time before the maturity date. The
redemption price, timing, and specific redemption conditions will be decided by the
BOD, depending on market conditions and the specific provisions set forth in the terms
and conditions of the convertible bonds.

Mandatory Redemption at Investor's Request:
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+ If the issuing company violates laws related to the offering or trading of corporate
bonds as per the decision of the competent authority, and the violation cannot be
rectified, or the remedy is not approved by bondholders representing 65% or more of
the total outstanding bonds of the same type, the investors has the right to request

redemption.

+ If the issuing company violates the bond placement plan and the violation cannot be
rectified, or the remedy is not approved by bondholders representing 65% or more of
the total outstanding bonds of the same type, the investors has the right to request

redemption.

Key financial indicators of the company for the last three consecutive years prior to the
year of issuance and changes after issuance (if any), including:

Unit: Million VND

Indicator 31/12/2024 31/12/2023 31/12/2022

Equity Capital 19,228,533 15,241,792 | 12,649,780
Ilr']stmig:ia' of - Credit| 13 755 604 10,580,866 | 10,036,613
a. Charter Capital 13,725,506 10,580,416 8,464,347
o ot 0w
c. Share Premium 63 415 1,572,231
d. Other Capital 25 25 25
2. Funds 2,174,392 1,447,731 1,051,414
3. Undistributed Profit 3,388,537 3,213,195 1,561,753
4. Revaluation Difference of ] ] ]
Assets
5. Exchange Rate Difference - - -
Total Liabilities 225,840,450 194,654,447 | 164,928,954
+ Bank Loans 1,481,021 1,204,707 1,064,988
+ Bond Issuance Debt 3,960,000 3,710,000 500,000
+ Other Liabilities 220,399,829 189,739,740 | 163,363,966

Customer Deposits 158,334,003 145,428,945 | 124,993,335




Indicator 31/12/2024 31/12/2023 31/12/2022
Deposits and Loans from
) o 39,196,315 24,021,674 21,344,036
Other Credit Institutions
Issued Valuable Papers
_ 16,046,940 14,748,868 11,883,663
(excluding bonds)
Debt-to-Asset Ratio 92.13% 92.74% 92.88%
Debt-to-Equity Ratio (times) 11.71% 12.77% 13.04%
Bond Debt-to-Equity Ratio 20.53% 24.34% 3.95%
Profit Before Tax 4,545,398 3,303,952 2,267,979
Profit After Tax 3,607,093 2,621,619 1,807,876
Return on Assets (ROA) 1.55% 1.29% 1.06%
Return on Equity (ROE) 20.61% 18.57% 15.02%
Some financial indicators expected to change after issuance:
_ _ Change After Issuance
Indicator (consolidated) .
(million dong)
Total Liabilities 227,840,850
+ Including Bond Issuance Debt 5,960,000
Debt-to-Asset Ratio 92.21%
Debt-to-Equity Ratio 11.83%
Bond Debt-to-Equity Ratio 30.94%
Other Indicators No change

Note: The above data represents the projected changes after issuance based on the
figures as of 31/12/2024, assuming all other indicators remain unchanged.

21. Capital Adequacy Indicators:

Change
No.| Indicators AT | 5111212024 | 31/12/2023 | 3171272022 | It Of
Issuance SBV
(Expected)
Minimum
Capital
1 | Adequacy 12.66% 12.66% 11.16% 8.92% > 8%
Ratio
(CAR, %)




Liquidity Ratio
(%)

2.1

Cash Reserve
Ratio

23.42%

20.38%

16.37%

> 10%

2.2

Liquidity Ratio
within 30 Days
(VND)

87.83%

87.74%

91.93%

> 50%

2.3

Liquidity Ratio
within 30 Days
for USD and
Other Foreign
Currencies

282.65%

254.73%

None

>10%

Short-Term
Funding Used
for  Medium
and Long-Term
Loans (%)

21.09%

22.33%

19.93%

23.65%

<34%

Loan-to-
Deposit
(%)

Ratio

76.28%

76.98%

75.05%

74.70%

< 80%

<85%
(from
2020)

Foreign
Currency and
Gold Position
as a Percentage
of Equity (%)

5.1

Positive
Foreign
Currency
Position as a
Percentage of
Equity

0.19%

0.09%

2.77%

<18%

5.2

Negative
Foreign
Currency
Position as a

4%

1.11%

>-18%




Percentage of
Equity

Gold Position
at the End of
5.3 |the Day as a 0%
Percentage of
Equity

0.01% 0.01% <1%

Government
Bonds and
Government-
6 Guaranteed 5.4%
Bonds as a
Percentage of
Average Total

Liabilities

1.47% 9.52% <27%

Note: The above data represents the projected changes after issuance based on the figures
as of December 31%, 2024, assuming all other indicators remain unchanged.

22. Payment status of interest, principal on issued bonds, and maturing debts (excluding
bond debts) for the last three consecutive years before the bond offering: Nam A Bank
ensures full compliance with its obligations, with no overdue debts arising.

23. Report on the issuance and use of capital for outstanding bonds, payment of interest and
principal on issued bonds in the last three consecutive years before the bond offering:

Unit: Million VND

Indicator Year 2024 Year 2023 Year 2022
Opening balance 3,710,000 500,000 700,000
Total bond issuance during 2 960,000 3.410,000 300,000
the year
Interest and principal on
bonds paid
- Interest on bonds paid 244,482 62,707 44,600
- Principal on bonds paid 2,710,000 200,000 500,000
Outstanding bond debt (at 3,960,000 3.710,000 500,000
the end of the year)




Use of bond capital

Supplementing
capital for loans,
adding
mandatory
reserves at the
State Bank in
case the capital

Supplementing
capital for loans,
adding
mandatory
reserves at the
State Bank in
case the capital

Increasing  the
operational

capital size of
Nam A Bank and
meeting loan
demand for Nam

A Bank during

raised from bond | raised from bond | each period
issuance IS | issuance IS
temporarily idle | temporarily idle
due to | due to
disbursement disbursement
progress progress
Plan for interest/principal | Payment in | Payment in | Payment in
bond payments accordance with | accordance with | accordance with
the terms and|the terms and|the terms and

conditions of the
bonds as stated in
the information
disclosure at the
time of bond
purchase

conditions of the
bonds as stated in
the information
disclosure at the
time of bond
purchase

conditions of the
bonds as stated in
the information
disclosure at the
time of bond
purchase

Legal violations related to
the issuance of corporate
bonds in the last three
consecutive years before
the bond offering

None

None

None

24. Assessment of the financial situation and the ability to settle due debts of the enterprise,
and the ability to repay the bonds expected to be issued: Nam A Bank ensures its
financial capacity and the ability to settle due debts according to the plan, honoring

commitments to investors, and complying with legal regulations.

25. Auditor’s opinion on the financial statements or review opinion on the financial
statements: Based on the audited financial statements (separate and consolidated) for
2024 performed by the auditing firm chosen by Nam A Bank, the audit opinion on the

financial statements is an unqualified opinion.

26. Method of bond issuance: The bonds will be issued privately through the issuance agent

and/or underwriters and/or directly to investors.

27. Targeted bond offer recipients: The targeted bond purchasers are professional securities
investors and strategic investors, with the number of strategic investors not exceeding

100. Additionally, they must comply with current legal regulations on capital



28.

29.

30.

31.

contribution, share purchase limits, and maximum foreign ownership percentage when
converting convertible bonds.

Issuer's commitment to public information disclosure: Nam A Bank commits to
disclosing information about the convertible bond issuance in accordance with the law
and takes legal responsibility for the content and accuracy of the disclosed information.

Terms of bond registration and custody according to regulations: The privately issued
convertible bonds will be registered and deposited with the Vietnam Securities
Depository and Clearing Corporation in accordance with current regulations.

Terms of bond transactions according to regulations:

The privately issued convertible bonds will be registered for trading at the Stock
Exchange according to current regulations.

The transaction and transfer of privately issued convertible bonds are restricted for a
minimum of 03 years for strategic investors and a minimum of 01 year for professional
securities investors from the completion of the issuance, except for transfers between
professional securities investors or in accordance with a valid court ruling, arbitration
decision, or legal inheritance.

Rights and Responsibilities of Bond Investors:
Rights of Bond Investors

Bondholders will be provided with full information by Nam A Bank in accordance with
the regulations in Decree 153, Decree 65, and any amendments or supplements (if any).
They have the right to access the bond issuance documents upon request.

Bondholders are entitled to receive full and timely payment of principal and interest
when due, as specified in the issuance terms.

Bondholders may transfer, gift, inherit, discount, or use the bonds as collateral in civil
and commercial relationships in accordance with the law.

They are allowed to pledge the bonds at other credit institutions in accordance with the
relevant provisions on loan security if the credit institution agrees.

They have the right to request Nam A Bank to repurchase the bonds before maturity, in
accordance with Article 7, Clause 3 of Decree 153, as amended by Decree 65, and the
repurchase terms and conditions specified in the Placement Plan.

Bondholders can request the bond seller to provide the full information disclosed by
Nam A Bank in accordance with Decree 153 (amended by Decree 65 and Decree 08)
when purchasing bonds on the secondary market.

Bond investors have voting rights on matters related to the Bonds at the Bondholders'
Meeting or through written consultations. A resolution or decision is considered valid if
approved by at least 65% of the total outstanding bonds of the same type.
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The approval rate for decisions on terms and conditions after a successful issuance:
subject to Nam A Bank's competent authority's approval and the consent of bondholders
representing 65% or more of the total outstanding bonds of the same type.

Other rights as specified in the Bond Subscription Agreement and relevant legal
provisions.

Responsibilities of Bond Investors:

To access the fully disclosed information from Nam A Bank; fully understand the
Placement Plan, terms and conditions of the bonds, and other commitments by Nam A
Bank before deciding to purchase and trade the bonds.

To understand the risks involved in investing in and trading bonds; to ensure compliance
with regulations on investor eligibility and the trading of corporate bonds as stipulated
in Decree 153, Decree 65, and relevant legal provisions.

To independently evaluate and take responsibility for their investment decisions,
bearing all associated risks in bond investments and transactions. The State does not
guarantee that Nam A Bank will fully and timely pay interest, principal, or other rights
to bond investors.

Before purchasing bonds (both on the primary and secondary markets), the investors
must sign a confirmation letter stating that they have complied with the aforementioned
regulations and accept responsibility for their decision to purchase the bonds after
signing this confirmation. The confirmation letter must follow the form provided in
Appendix V issued with Decree 65 and must be stored in the bond offering file at the
time of bond issuance or with the securities company where the investors conducts the
bond transaction, in accordance with the law.

Bond transactions must comply with the provisions of Article 16 of Decree 153
(amended by Decree 65); investors are prohibited from selling or co-investing in bonds
with non-professional securities investors in any form.

When selling bonds on the secondary market, investors must provide the full disclosure
of information from Nam A Bank as specified in Decree 153 (amended by Decree 65)
to the bond buyers.

Investors are responsible for fulfilling any tax obligations arising from taxable income
related to their bond investment.

Additional responsibilities as specified in the Bond Subscription Agreement and
relevant legal provisions.

Rights and Responsibilities of Nam A Bank:

Nam A Bank has the right to use all the funds raised from the bond issuance for the
stated purposes and to enjoy all other rights under the law and the Bond Documents.
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34.

35.

Nam A Bank will prepare (on the issuance date) a list of bondholders for the purpose of
submitting the registration file and depositing the bonds with the Vietnam Securities
Depository and Clearing Corporation in accordance with regulations.

Nam A Bank will make payments of principal, interest, and any other obligations related
to the bonds (if any) to the Bondholders at each and all times that Nam A Bank is
obligated to make these payments in accordance with the bond offering documents and
legal requirements.

Nam A Bank commits to maintaining its legal status as a company operating under the
laws of Vietnam, fully complying with the disclosure requirements, managing financial
documents and accounting systems, fulfilling tax obligations, and conducting all
transactions in accordance with the law and the bond offering documents.

Compliance with the legal regulations on bond issuance.

Nam A Bank is responsible for managing and using the funds raised from the bond
iIssuance according to the approved Placement Plan and legal regulations.

Nam A Bank is legally responsible for the accuracy, truthfulness, and completeness of
the bond offering documents and the disclosed information; it will implement the
financial, accounting, statistical, and auditing management systems as required by law.

Nam A Bank is responsible for explaining to investors all information related to the
Placement Plan, legal risks, investment risks, risks associated with the use of capital, the
rights, benefits, and legal responsibilities of the issuer and the investors.

Other rights and obligations as specified in the Bond Subscription Agreement and
relevant legal provisions.

Responsibilities and obligations of each organization or individual providing services
related to the bond issuance: These responsibilities are specified in the service provision
contracts related to each specific bond issuance.

Criteria for selecting strategic investors and list of strategic investors:

Selection criteria: Investors with financial potential, technological expertise, and a
commitment to collaborate with the company for at least 3 years; those who can support
Nam A Bank in its business activities, have the ability to participate in and advise on
corporate governance, and align with Nam A Bank's development needs.

Investor list: The BOD is authorized to select investors who meet these criteria, ensuring
that the total number of investors does not exceed 100.

Plan for allocating funds and methods of paying interest and principal on bonds:

Source allocation plan for paying interest and principal: Nam A Bank will use legal
sources of funds such as accumulated interest from customer loans funded by the bonds,
general operating capital, business income, and other legal sources to pay the principal
and interest on bonds when due.
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Principal payment: Paid in full on the maturity date via bank transfer or cash. If the
maturity date falls on a holiday, payment will be made on the next working day.

Interest payment: Paid annually via bank transfer or cash. The interest payment date will
coincide with the bond issuance date. If the interest payment date falls on a holiday,
payment will be made on the next working day.

Other commitments to bond investors: None

Other terms and conditions: The AGM authorizes the BOD to develop and decide on
adjustments, amendments, or additions to the contents of this Placement Plan based on
market analysis and notify bondholders, including but not limited to: terms for early
bond repurchase, the right to purchase new shares for investors in case of additional
issuance by the issuer, in compliance with legal regulations and to protect the interests
of investors.

PLAN FOR USING FUNDS RAISED FROM THE BOND ISSUANCE:

The total amount of funds raised from the offering is expected to be used as follows:

Round Purpose of Fund Usage Issue Value (at Capital Usage
par value, dong) Plan
1 Increase operational capital,
supplement medium- to long- From Quarter 11 -
term funding for medium- to 1,000,000,000,000 IV 2025

long-term credit needs.

2 Increase operational capital,
supplement medium- to long-
term funding for medium- to
long-term credit needs.

From Quarter IV
1,000,000,000,000 | 2025 to Quarter |
2026

Total 2,000,000,000,000

In the event that the funds raised from the bond issuance are temporarily idle due to

disbursement delays, they will be used by the Nam A Bank to supplement the mandatory
reserves at the State Bank of Vietnam in accordance with regulations. The BOD will decide
on the allocation and adjustment of the detailed fund usage plan based on the actual situation
of Nam A Bank, ensuring compliance with legal requirements.

PART Il - PLAN FOR ISSUANCE OF SHARES FOR CONVERSION OF
CONVERTIBLE BONDS, INCREASE IN CHARTER CAPITAL

Plan for issuance of shares for conversion for Convertible Bondholders as outlined in

Part Il of this plan (hereinafter referred to as "Shares™):

1.
2.

Type of securities to be issued: Common shares

Issuance currency: Vietnamese Dong (dong)
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11.

12.

13.

14.

Nominal value: 10,000 dong/share

Issuance timing: Within the conversion period and corresponding with the conversion
schedule of each bond conversion as specified in Part 11 of this plan, and will increase
charter capital according to the number of shares issued for conversion.

In cases where the bondholder’s conversion results in ownership of 25% or more of the
outstanding shares of the Issuing Organization, or in other cases requiring a public
tender offer under the Securities Law or related amendments:

— The investors will not be permitted to convert and/or exercise purchase rights for the
number of shares exceeding the allowable threshold; or

— The Issuing Organization will seek shareholder approval via written consent for an
exemption from the public tender offer for the investor.

Total shares to be issued: Equal to the number of convertible bonds held by the investors
and eligible for conversion, multiplied by the number of shares granted for each bond
converted.

Total nominal value of shares issued: Dependent on the actual number of shares issued.

Issuance targets: Convertible bondholders; subject to compliance with current legal
regulations on investment limits, share purchases, and maximum foreign ownership
percentages during bond conversions. Share conversion can only occur after approval
from the State Bank of Vietnam for the capital increase according to legal requirements.

Number of issuance rounds: Corresponding to the number of convertible bond
conversion rounds outlined in Part 11 of this plan.

Purpose of the issuance: To convert convertible bonds into common shares.

Issuance price: Equivalent to the bond conversion price as defined in Section IV, Part Il
of this proposal.

Foreign ownership ratio during conversion: The AGM authorizes the BOD to follow
necessary procedures (if any) to ensure foreign ownership ratios comply with current
legal regulations when issuing shares for bond conversion.

Handling of fractional shares arising from conversion: The number of shares received
after conversion will be rounded down to the nearest whole number, with any fractional
shares being canceled. Nam A Bank will not be required to pay any amounts for canceled
fractional shares.

Transfer regulations: Shares issued for conversion will be freely transferable once the
conversion and related procedures are completed. If the bond conversion occurs before
the end of the transfer restriction period, the issued shares will be subject to the
remaining transfer restrictions of the convertible bonds.

Date for recognizing increased charter capital: The increased charter capital will be
recognized on the date Nam A Bank receives the updated Business Registration
Certificate from the Ho Chi Minh City Department of Planning and Investment
reflecting the new charter capital amount.



15.

16.

Registration, custody, and listing of shares: All converted shares will be registered with
the Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation (VSDC) and will be
eligible for trading on the Stock Exchange according to current regulations for shares of
Nam A Bank.

Other provisions: The AGM authorizes the BOD to formulate and decide on other
relevant matters.

PART IV - AUTHORIZATION TO THE BOD

The AGM delegates and authorizes the BOD to decide all matters related to the issuance

of convertible bonds, the issuance of shares for conversion of convertible bonds, in
accordance with legal regulations, including but not limited to the following:

1.

10.

Decide on specific issues delegated in the Placement Plan; determine (i) the conversion
price and conversion ratio at the time of conversion, (ii) the specific terms and conditions
of the bonds, including but not limited to all issues and matters not yet specified in this
Placement Plan;

Select and appoint organizations to provide services related to the issuance, including
but not limited to consultants for the bond issuance file, issuing agents, registration and
depository organizations, underwriters (if any), and credit rating agencies (if any);

Decide on the content of contracts with investors, agreements, and documents in which
Nam A Bank is a signing party or issues related to the bond issuance (collectively
referred to as "Transaction Documents");

Develop detailed plans for the use of funds raised from the bond issuance;

If necessary, the BOD has the right to amend/adjust the Placement Plan and the use of
proceeds from the bond sale to ensure the highest benefit for Nam A Bank and its
shareholders. Any amendments/adjustments to the Placement Plan and the use of funds
by the BOD must be within the BOD’s authority and comply with relevant legal
regulations;

Develop a plan for arranging sources and methods of paying interest and principal on
bonds according to investor and relevant government authority requirements (if any),
based on the actual situation of Nam A Bank at the time of issuance;

Sign and transfer Transaction Documents; implement the obligations, commitments,
and agreements of Nam A Bank in the Transaction Documents;

Sign and/or transfer all documents, notices that will be signed and/or transferred by Nam
A Bank in the Transaction Documents;

Decide and perform all necessary tasks in compliance with the law, the Charter of Nam
A Bank, and the Transaction Documents to complete the bond issuance as outlined in
the Placement Plan, including appointing and assigning individuals authorized to sign
related documents and opening bank accounts for the bond issuance purpose;

Organize and carry out all tasks related to the convertible bond offering, registration,
and depository, including but not limited to the following: (i) decide on documents and



11.

12.

13.

files to be submitted to the State Securities Commission, relevant government agencies
related to the offering, registration, and depository of bonds in compliance with legal
regulations, (ii) work and provide explanations to the authorities and relevant units
regarding the offering registration file and other related issues;

Actively seek, compile a list of investors interested in purchasing bonds, and select the
investors to participate in the bond issuance/sale;

Perform necessary tasks to successfully complete the private offering of convertible
bonds, bond registration at the registration agent, depository, and related issues during
the bond’s circulation period;

Depending on the specific case, the BOD may delegate part or all of the above tasks to
the CEO for implementation.

Above is the content of the Plan for the Private Placement of Convertible Bonds and the

plan for issuing shares for the conversion of convertible bonds. The BOD respectfully submits
it to the AGM for approval.

Respectfully submitted.
FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Recipients: CHAIRMAN
- Shareholders of Nam A Bank;

- BOD, BOS;
- Archived: Office of BOD.

Tran Ngo Phuc Vu
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No.: .../2025/TTQT-NHNA Ho Chi Minh City, March ... 2025
PROPOSAL

ON THE LISTING OF BONDS ISSUED TO THE PUBLIC
BY NAM A COMMERCIAL JOINT STOCK BANK

To: THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26%, 2019
(Law on Securities) and the implementing, amending and supplementing documents;

Pursuant to the Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31%, 2020 of the
Government detailing the implementation of several articles of the Law on Securities
(Decree 155);

Pursuant to the Decision No. 17/QD-HDTV dated March 31%, 2022 of the Members’
Council of the Vietnam Stock Exchange on the issuance of the listing and trading
regulations for listed securities;

Pursuant to the Charter of Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank (Nam A Bank).

In accordance with applicable laws, upon the completion of the public bond issuance,

Nam A Bank’s bonds shall be registered for listing on the securities trading system. The
listing shall also be approved by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (AGM).

Accordingly, to facilitate and ensure proactive compliance with legal procedures, the

Board of Directors (BOD) respectfully submits to the AGM for approval of the listing of
bonds issued to the public by Nam A Bank with the following details:

Approval of the listing of bonds (including bonds to increase Tier Il capital) issued to
the public from 2025 by Nam A Bank on the securities trading system (currently the
Stock Exchange) after the completion of the offerings, in compliance with the Law on
Securities and relevant legal documents.

Approval to authorize the BOD to direct, execute and make necessary decisions
related to the implementation of the bond listing as approved by the AGM, ensuring
compliance with legal regulations. This includes:

+ Deciding the listing schedule and the quantity of bonds to be listed based on the
number of bonds issued through the public offering by Nam A Bank;

+ Implementing procedures, deciding on the contents, signing relevant documents,
and addressing any arising issues related to the listing of Nam A Bank’s bonds on



the securities trading system in accordance with current legal regulations and
guidance from competent State Agencies;

+ Making other decisions related to the bonds listing.
The BOD will report the implementation results at the next AGM.
Respectfully submitted./.

Recipients: FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- Shareholders of Nam A Bank; CHAIRMAN
- BOD, BOS;

- Archived: Office of BOD.

Tran Ngo Phuc Vu
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PROPOSAL

ON CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION AND SHARE ACQUISITION
To: THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

—  Pursuant to the Law on Credit Institutions No. 32/2024/QH15 dated January 18", 2024;
- Pursuant to the Charter of Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank (Nam A Bank).

The Board of Directors (BOD) respectfully submits to the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders (AGM) for consideration and approval of the following matters:

—  Approval in principle for Nam A Bank to:

a) Establish, acquire subsidiaries or affiliated companies to conduct business
activities, including: securities underwriting, securities brokerage; management
and distribution of securities investment fund certificates; securities portfolio
management, buying and selling of shares; financial leasing; insurance;

b) Establish, acquire subsidiaries, affiliated companies operating in the fields of:
management of debts and utilization of assets, remittances, foreign exchange
trading, gold trading, factoring, credit card issuance, intermediary payment
services, and credit information;

c) Contribute capital to or acquire shares of enterprises operating in the fields of:
insurance, securities, remittances, gold trading, factoring, credit cards issuance,
consumer credit, intermediary payment services, credit information;

d) Contribute capital to or acquire shares of enterprises operating in other fields
other than those specified in item (c) above, after obtainment of the written
approval from the State Bank of Vietnam.

—  Authorize the BOD to decide the form, method, sequence, percentage of capital contribution,
share acquisition; establishment, acquisition of subsidiaries or affiliated companies in
accordance with current legal regulations. The BOD shall report the results of these activities
at the next AGM.

Respectfully submitted./.

FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Recipients: CHAIRMAN
- Shareholders of Nam A Bank;

- BOD, BOS;
- Archived: Office of BOD.

Tran Ngo Phuc Vu
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PROPOSAL

ON THE POLICY TO PARTICIPATE IN

RESTRUCTURING PEOPLE'S CREDIT FUNDS
To: THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

—  Pursuant to the Law on Credit Institutions No. 32/2024/QH15 dated January 18™", 2024
and the implementing, amending and supplementing documents;

— Pursuant to the Charter of Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank.

In recent years, the world economy has experienced unpredictable fluctuations due to the impact
of natural disasters, epidemics and conflicts between nations around the world. This has negatively
affected the development of the banking system in general and the People's Credit Fund in particular.
Faced with that situation, the State Bank of Vietnam (SBV) has taken many decisions to strengthen,
adjust, arrange, restructure the weak People's Credit Funds and at the same time encourage commercial
banks to participate in restructuring People’s Credit Funds with the aim of not causing insecurity,
monetary security, negatively affecting the system of credit institutions.

Implementing the policy of the Government and SBV, Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank
(Nam A Bank) has participated and successfully processed 03 Specially Controlled People's Credit
Funds in Dong Nai province and has been highly appreciated by SBV. The participation in the
restructuring of the People's Credit Fund contributes to enhancing the reputation of the Nam A Bank
in the financial market and also clearly demonstrates the responsibility of Nam A Bank in jointly
maintaining the stability of the national banking and financial system.

Following the success of the above, the Board of Directors (BOD) respectfully submits to the
2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval of the initiative of the
Nam A Bank to continue participating in restructuring People's Credit Funds and at the same time
authorizing the BOD in selecting and deciding on the option to participate under the review and
approval of SBV. The BOD will report the implementation results at the next AGM.

Respectfully submitted./.

FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Recipients: CHAIRMAN
Shareholders of Nam A Bank;
BOD, BOS;

- Archived: Office of BOD.

Tran Ngo Phuc Vu
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PROPOSAL
ON THE POLICY TO EXPAND OPERATIONAL NETWORK INTO
INTERNATIONAL MARKETS

To: THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

—  Pursuant to the Law on Credit Institutions No. 32/2024/QH15 dated January 18",
2024 and the implementing, amending and supplementing documents;

—  Pursuant to the Charter of Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank.

In the context of globalization, business entities are increasingly integrating deeply
across all aspects of life, economy, and society, including the financial - banking sector. This
trend has created numerous potential growth opportunities for credit institutions in Vietnam
to expand their market operation, diversify their customer base using financial services, and
attract foreign investment and currency inflows.

The Board of Directors (BOD) recognizes that establishing an operational network in
international markets brings economic benefits and helps Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank
(Nam A Bank) to strengthen its brand reputation, management capability and financial strength
on the global market. Although the strategic direction to expand business operations
internationally was approved at the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (AGM)), it has
not yet been implemented due to unfavorable market conditions and the need for further research
and thorough analysis of the economic, cultural, and legal characteristics of each country.

Based on this, the BOD respectfully submits to the AGM for continued approval of the
policy to expand the operational network into international markets in 2025, with the
following key aspects:

—  Form: Establishment of branches, representative offices, or subsidiaries of Nam A Bank
in foreign markets.

—  Scope of operations:
+ Financial and banking services.

+ Supporting trade and investment promotion activities, fostering connections
between foreign investors, enterprises and Nam A Bank, attracting foreign capital
and expanding international business activities.

+ Other activities as permitted by the laws of Vietnam and the relevant foreign
jurisdictions.



To ensure flexibility and proactiveness in implementing legal procedures, the BOD
respectfully submits to the 2025 AGM for consideration and continued approval of the following:

—  Approval of the strategic direction to establish branches, representative offices, and
subsidiaries of Nam A Bank in foreign markets.

—  Authorization for the BOD to determine the timing, form, location, and scope of
operations, as well as to undertake necessary legal procedures in accordance with the
law to expand the operational network in line with the direction approved by the AGM.

The BOD will report the implementation results at the next AGM.
Respectfully submitted./.

FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Recipients: CHAIRMAN
- Nam A Bank’s Shareholders;

- BOD, BOS;
- Archived: Office of the BOD.

Tran Ngo Phuc Vu
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PROPOSAL
ON THE APPROVAL OF REMEDIAL PLAN IN CASE OF EARLY
INTERVENTION AT NAM A COMMERCIAL JOINT STOCK BANK

To: THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

— Pursuant to Law on Credit Institutions No. 32/2024/QH15 dated January 18", 2024,
and the implementing, amending and supplementing documents;

— Pursuant to Charter of Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank (Nam A Bank).

According to the provisions of Law on Credit Institutions No. 32/2024/QH15, the credit
institutions have to develop a remedial plan in case of early intervention and report to the
State Bank of Vietnam (SBV).

Therefore, to ensure compliance with relevant regulations and increase the initiative
and timely in formulating and adjusting the Remedial Plan, the Board of Directors (BOD)
respectfully submitted to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (AGM),
authorizing the BOD:

—  Directing the research, development and adoption of the "Remedial plan in case of
early intervention at Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank" (Remedial Plan) to
report to the SBV on the regulatory compliance. The BOD will report on the results of
the development of the Remedial Plan to the AGM at the next annual meeting.

—  Proactively adjust, change the contents related to the Remedial Plan depending on the
objective reality or at the request of the competent State Agencies.

Respectfully submitted./.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOD

Recipients: CHAIRMAN
- Nam A Bank’s Shareholders;
BOD, BOS;

- Archived: Office of BOD.
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